
 

 

The Assembly Commission 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Conference Room 4B - Ty Hywel 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
16 June 2011  

 

Meeting time: 
13:00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Helen Finlayson 029 2089 8705 
Secretariat 
 

  

 

Agenda 

AC(4)2011(1) 

 

1. Introduction   

 
Introduction and apologies   
 
 

Declarations of interest   
 
 

Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

2. Assembly Commission Governance and Procedure  (Pages 5 - 30) 

3. Assembly Commission Portfolios  (Pages 31 - 33) 

4. Communicating Effectively with Assembly Members  (Pages 34 - 37) 

5. Assembly Commission Legacy Report  (Pages 38 - 80) 

6. Assembly Case Management System (Electoral Registers)  (Pages 81 
- 83) 

Public Document Pack



 

1 

Comisiwn y Cynulliad 

Assembly Commission 

 

NAFWC 2011 

Minutes of 14 March 2011 meeting 

Date:  14 March 2011 

Time: 17:00 

Venue: Conference room 4B 

Minutes of 14 March 2011 meeting 

Present:  

Llywydd, Chair 

William Graham AM (Conservatives) 

Lorraine Barrett AM (Labour) 

Peter Black AM (Liberal Democrats) 

Chris Franks AM (Plaid Cymru) 

Officials present: 

Claire Clancy, Chief Executive and Clerk 

Dianne Bevan, Chief Operating Officer 

Keith Bush, Director of Legal Services 

Adrian Crompton, Director of Assembly Business 

Craig Stephenson, Head of Commission and Member Support Service 

Helen Finlayson, Secretariat 

Helen Birtwhistle, External Communications – item 2 

Natalie Drury-Styles, Outreach and International Relations Manager – 

item 2 

Independent Advisers: 

Mair Barnes 

Observers: 

None 

Others: 

None 

Agenda Item 1c

Page 1



NAFWC 2011 
Minutes of 14 March 2011 meeting 

2 

1. Introduction and apologies 

No apologies were received 

Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

Minutes of meeting – 27 January 2011 

The minutes were formally agreed. 

Matters arising from the meeting on 27 January 2011 

There were no matters arising. 

2. Opening of the Fourth Assembly 

Helen Birtwhistle introduced the paper, outlining the proposals for a 

multi-cultural, inclusive celebration which would be representative of 

Welsh society. 

The Commission discussed the proposals, but was unable to reach 

agreement on the details of the arrangements, and was therefore 

unable to approve the proposals. 

3. Review of achievements in the Third Assembly: legacy report of 

the Assembly Commission 

Claire Clancy introduced the paper, noting that the draft legacy report 

recorded the achievements of the Assembly Commission during the 

Third Assembly, and made recommendations which sought to assist 

the new Commission in the Fourth Assembly. 

The Commission agreed that it was content with the structure and 

focus of the report, and that the final report should be published in 

w/c 9 May 2011. 

4. Framework for the Assembly Commission annual report and 

accounts 2010-11 

Claire Clancy introduced the paper.  She outlined the proposed 

framework for the annual report and accounts, and noted that it was 

similar to the framework used in previous years. 

The Commission agreed the proposed outline and timetable for the 

annual report and accounts 2010-11. 

5. Report and Determination of the Remuneration Board 

Adrian Crompton introduced the paper, noting that the National 

Page 2



NAFWC 2011 
Minutes of 14 March 2011 meeting 

3 

Assembly for Wales (Remuneration) Measure 2010, which had 

established the Remuneration Board, placed a duty on the Commission 

to lay the Determination of the Board, and any accompanying report, 

before the Assembly as soon as was reasonably practicable. 

The Commission noted its thanks to the Remuneration Board for its 

first Determination and report, and to the secretariat which had 

supported the Board’s work. 

William Graham AM, as chair of the Members’ Pension Scheme 

Trustees, noted that Trustees were keen to work with the Board on its 

review of Members’ pension arrangements, and welcomed the 

development of a clear Memorandum of Understanding between the 

Board, the Trustees and the Commission. 

The Commission agreed that the Determination and accompanying 

report should be laid before the Assembly on 15 March, and published 

on its website on the same day. 

6. Management Board report to the Commission  

The Commission noted the paper, which provided updates on work 

across the Assembly. 

The Commission considered the process for consultation on a 

proposed Bilingual Services Measure and its new Bilingual Services 

plan, and agreed that the public consultation should be deferred until 

the beginning of the Fourth Assembly. 

The Commission discussed the issue of access to the non-public areas 

of the Assembly estate during dissolution for Members’ support staff 

who were themselves standing as candidates in the Assembly 

elections.  The Commission supported the principle of equal treatment 

for all candidates, and agreed that support staff standing as 

candidates should therefore not be permitted access to non-public 

areas during dissolution. 

The Commission discussed a request by a Welsh artist to secure a 

commission for a painting of the Fourth Assembly in session, and 

agreed that it could not support the request. 

The Commission noted that the guidance for Member-hosted events 

on the Assembly estate was under review by the Chief Legal Adviser.  

The amended guidance would clarify Members’ responsibilities in 

relation to events they sponsored as well as tightening up conditions 

Page 3



NAFWC 2011 
Minutes of 14 March 2011 meeting 

4 

as to the conduct of events.  It would provide an opportunity for 

considering how best to respond to concerns raised recently about use 

of Assembly resources by an organisation some of whose members 

appeared to have been involved in damage to an Assembly Member’s 

constituency office. 

7. Matters to note 

The Commission noted its thanks to its independent advisers, Mair 

Barnes, Richard Calvert, Tim Knighton and Professor Robert Pickard, 

for their support and constructive challenge during the course of the 

Third Assembly. 

Page 4



1 

Comisiwn y Cynulliad 

Assembly Commission 

NAFWC 2011 (Paper 2) 

Commission governance and procedure 

 

Date:  16 June 2011 

Time: 13:00 

Venue: Conference Room 4B 

Author name and contact number: Ian Summers, ext 1824 

Commission governance and procedure 

1.0 Purpose and summary of issues 

1.1 At its first meeting in June 2007, the Commission approved 

three documents which set out the overarching framework 

principles for the governance of the organisation, the rules for 

conduct of Commission meetings and the delegation of 

functions to the Chief Executive.  These documents have not 

been updated during the Third Assembly. 

1.2 Since 2007, a number of developments have taken place in the 

field of corporate governance and the Commission has had four 

years of operational experience.  The recent Assembly elections 

and the change of Commissioners presented an ideal 

opportunity to review these documents in the light of experience 

and best practice. 

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1 The Commission is asked to approve: 

(i) the revised governance principles and supporting 

provisions – attached at Annex A; 

(ii) the revised rules for conduct of Commission business – 

attached at Annex B; and 

(iii) the amended delegation of Commission functions and 

arrangements for the exercise of the Clerk’s functions – 

attached at Annexes C and D. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



NAFWC 2011 (Paper 2) 

Commission governance and procedure 

2 

3.0 Discussion 

Governance principles and supporting provisions 

3.1 The 2007 governance principles and supporting provisions were 

in line with the Corporate Governance Code of Good Practice 

published by the Treasury in 2005.  The main deviations were to 

take account of the devolved environment and the status of the 

Commission as a body corporate with a “governing board” 

consisting wholly of elected Members. 

3.2 The Treasury is currently in the final stages of amending the 

2005 Code to take account of a number of changes in Whitehall 

since 2005.  The revised Code focuses primarily on government 

departments and, in particular, the new advisory boards which 

will be chaired by Ministers and include non-executive 

members.  Much of this will not apply in Wales and certainly not 

to the Commission (although we do have our independent 

advisers who perform a role akin to that of NEDs but without 

voting rights). 

3.3 The Financial Reporting Council updated its Corporate 

Governance Code for UK private sector companies in June 2010.  

The principles in that Code place new emphasis on leadership 

and effectiveness, rather than compliance and control, whilst 

retaining sections on accountability and risk management. 

3.4 The updating of the Commission’s Governance Principles and 

Supporting Provisions has drawn on both the FRC and Treasury 

publications, with a significant amount of tailoring to suit the 

Commission’s own status, role and remit.  The resulting 

document is in line with existing practices and standards that 

have evolved since the Commission was established in 2007 and 

is also consistent with the Good Governance Standard for Public 

Services published by the Independent Commission on Good 

Governance in Public Services.  

Page 6



NAFWC 2011 (Paper 2) 

Commission governance and procedure 

3 

Rules for the conduct of Commission business 

3.5 The original rules for the conduct of Commission business were 

considered by the Shadow Commission prior to the 2007 

election, and formally adopted by the Commission at its first 

meeting in June 2007.  Whilst they have largely stood the test of 

time, they were drafted in the absence of any practical 

experience of how the Commission would operate.  A number of 

relatively minor changes have therefore been made to reflect the 

four years’ worth of experience that we now have. 

Instrument of delegation 

3.6 The amendments to the instrument of delegation reflect: 

(i) the existence of a Chief Legal Adviser, who was not with 

us in June 2007; and 

(ii) the transfer of certain Commission functions to the 

Remuneration Board. 

3.7 The previous requirement that the Chief Executive should 

consult the Commission before acquiring or disposing of land 

and buildings of any value and before embarking on ICT projects 

has also been reviewed, and it is proposed that the requirement 

should be reworded to embrace all capital projects costing in 

excess of £1 million.  This reflects the Commission’s strategic 

role, and the responsibility of the Chief Executive for operations 

and, as Accounting Officer, for the management of the 

organisation’s finances.  The Commission would still be 

consulted for major (strategic) projects such as UNO. 

Page 7



Comisiwn y Cynulliad 

Assembly Commission 

AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 
 

1 
 

 

Governance principles and supporting provisions 

Introduction 

1. The National Assembly for Wales Commission has adopted the 

following governance principles and supporting provisions.  

Together they are intended to help instil an effective operational 

culture throughout the organisation which, in turn, will aid the 

process of managing key business risks. 

2. The principles and supporting provisions are consistent with the 

UK Corporate Governance Code and the Good Governance Code 

for Public Services and they will used to guide the work of the 

Commission and its staff. 

3. Corporate governance is the way in which organisations are 

directed, controlled and led.  It defines relationships and the 

distribution of rights and responsibilities among those who work 

with and in the organisation, determines the rules and procedures 

through which the organisations objectives are set, and provides 

the means of attaining those objectives and monitoring 

performance.  Importantly, it defines where accountability lies 

throughout the organisation. 

4. The Commission has been established as a corporate body to 

provide property, staff and services required for the Assembly’s 

purposes.  The Assembly, and the people of Wales that it 

represents, are therefore key stakeholders and it is incumbent on 

the Commission to engage with them to ensure that it provides the 

highest possible standard of service. 

5. The Commissioners are charged with the governance of the 

organisation and are accountable to the Assembly.  The 

responsibilities of the Commissioners as the “governing board” 

include setting the organisation’s strategic aims, providing the 

leadership to put them into effect, overseeing the delivery of those 

strategic aims and reporting and being accountable to the 

Assembly on their stewardship. 

Page 8



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

2 
 

6. The Commissioners have collective responsibility for decisions and 

have equal status in discussions.  The Presiding Officer, other 

Commissioners and independent advisers should challenge 

individual Commissioners if they do not: 

• respect constructive challenge by others; 

• support this collective responsibility for fulfilling the 

organisation’s purpose; 

• work together towards intended outcomes for the Assembly 

and the people of Wales; and 

• appear to act in the interests of the Assembly as a whole but 

solely in the interests of the political group with which they 

are associated. 

7. Good governance is central to the effective operation of the 

organisation.  The National Assembly for Wales Commission is not 

a profit making corporation, but does need to be business-like 

and operate according to recognised precepts of good governance:  

• leadership – articulating a clear vision for the organisation 

and giving clarity about how activities contribute to achieving 

this vision, including setting risk appetite and managing risk; 

• effectiveness – bringing a wide range of relevant experience 

to bear, including through offering rigorous challenge and 

scrutinising performance; 

• accountability – promoting transparency through clear and 

fair reporting; and 

• sustainability – taking a sensible, long-term view about 

what the organisation is trying to achieve and what it is doing 

to get there. 

  

Page 9



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

3 
 

Section A: Leadership 

A.1 Role of the Commission 

Principles 

• The Commission should be an effective board which is 

collectively responsible for the long-term success of the 

organisation and therefore the Assembly as an institution that 

serves the people of Wales. 

• The Commission’s role is to provide leadership of the 

organisation within a framework of prudent and effective 

controls which enables risk to be assessed and managed. 

• The Commission should set the organisation’s strategic aims, 

ensure that the necessary financial and human resources are in 

place for the organisation to meet its objectives and review the 

performance of management. 

• The Commission should set the organisation’s values and 

standards and ensure that its obligations to the Assembly and 

others are understood and met. 

• Commissioners must act collectively in what they consider to be 

the best interests of the Assembly, consistent with any statutory 

obligations. 

Provisions 

• The Commission should meet sufficiently regularly to discharge 

its duties effectively. 

• The annual report should include a statement of how the 

Commission operates, including a high level statement of which 

types of decisions are to be taken by the Commission and which 

are to be delegated to management.  The annual report should 

set out the number of meetings of the Commission and 

individual attendance by Commissioners and independent 

advisers. 

Page 10



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

4 
 

A.2 Division of Responsibilities 

Principle 

• There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the 

Commission and the operational management of the 

organisation’s business. 

Provision 

• The division of responsibilities between the Commission (and 

the Presiding Officer as its Chair) and the Chief Executive should 

be clearly established and agreed. 

A.3 Presiding Officer 

Principles 

• The Presiding Officer is responsible for leadership of the 

Commission and ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its 

role. 

• The Presiding Officer is responsible for agreeing the 

Commission’s agenda and ensuring that adequate time is 

available for discussion of all agenda items, in particular 

strategic issues.  The Presiding Officer should also promote a 

culture of openness and debate by facilitating the effective 

contribution of independent advisers and ensuring constructive 

relations. 

• The Presiding Officer should facilitate and ensure effective 

communication with Assembly Members. 

A.4 Independent advisers 

Principles 

• Independent advisers should challenge constructively and help 

develop proposals on strategy. 

• Independent advisers should scrutinise the performance of 

management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and 

monitor the reporting of performance.  They should satisfy 

themselves on the integrity of financial information and that 

Page 11



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

5 
 

financial controls and systems of risk management are robust 

and defensible. 

Provision 

• Where independent advisers have concerns which cannot be 

resolved about the running of the organisation or a proposed 

action, they should ensure that their concerns are recorded in 

the minutes.  On resignation, an independent adviser should 

provide a written statement to the Commission if they have any 

such concerns. 

Section B: Effectiveness 

B.1 Commitment 

Principle 

• Commissioners and independent advisers should be able to 

allocate sufficient time to discharge their responsibilities 

effectively. 

Provision 

• The Commission should make arrangements to evaluate its 

effectiveness from time to time. As a minimum, this should 

include a legacy report at the end of each Assembly which 

covers examples of good practice and lessons learned. 

B.2 Development 

Principles 

• New Commissioners and independent advisers should receive 

appropriate induction on appointment. 

• Senior management should provide the necessary resources for 

appropriate development and training that a Commissioner or 

independent adviser might require. 

• To function effectively, all Commissioners and independent 

advisers need appropriate knowledge of the organisation and 

access to its operations and staff. 

Page 12



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

6 
 

B.3 Information and support 

Principles 

• The Commission should be supplied in a timely manner with 

information in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to 

discharge its duties. 

• The Commission and Member Support Service is responsible for 

ensuring that the Commissioners receive accurate, timely and 

clear information. 

• The Commission and Member Support Service’s responsibilities 

include ensuring good information flows within the Commission 

and between senior management and independent advisers, as 

well as facilitating induction and assisting with other 

development that might be required. 

Provisions 

• Under the direction of the Chief Executive, the Commission and 

Member Support Service’s responsibilities include: 

• developing and agreeing the agenda for Commission 

meetings with the Presiding Officer, ensuring all relevant 

items are brought to the Commission’s attention; 

• ensuring good information flows within the Commission 

and between senior management and independent advisers, 

including: 

• challenging and ensuring the quality of papers and 

information;  

• ensuring papers are received by Commissioners 

according to an agreed timetable; and 

• providing advice and support on governance matters 

and helping to implement improvements in the 

governance structure and arrangements; 

• ensuring the Commission follows due process; and 

Page 13



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

7 
 

• recording Commission decisions accurately and ensuring 

action points are followed up. 

Section C: Accountability 

C1. Accountability to the Assembly 

Principles 

• The Commissioners are responsible and answerable to the 

Assembly for the exercise of the statutory functions of the 

Commission.  They have a duty to the Assembly to account and 

to be held to account, for all the policies, decisions and actions 

of the organisation. 

• The Chief Executive is the Commission’s Principal Accounting 

Officer by virtue of Section 138 of the 2006 Act.  She is 

personally responsible and accountable to the Assembly for the 

organisation and quality of management in the Assembly 

Commission, including its use of public money and the 

stewardship of its assets. 

Provisions 

• The Commissioners may allocate responsibility for oversight of a 

defined range of organisational work to an individual 

Commissioner. 

• The delegation of the Commission’s functions to the Chief 

Executive should be documented and clearly set out any 

exceptions and reservations. 

• The duties of the Principal Accounting Officer are set out in a 

letter of designation issued by the Treasury.  She should 

establish and document a clear allocation of responsibilities 

amongst officials, but retains overall personal responsibility and 

accountability to the Assembly for: 

• propriety and regularity; 

• prudent and economical administration; 

• avoidance of waste and extravagance; 

Page 14



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

8 
 

• ensuring value for money, judged for the Welsh block and 

more widely for the Exchequer as a whole, not just for the 

Assembly Commission; 

• efficient and effective use of available resources; and 

• the organisation, staffing and management of the Assembly 

Commission. 

• If the Principal Accounting Officer is instructed by the 

Commission or the Presiding Officer acting on its behalf to take 

a course of action that she believes to be contrary to her 

personal responsibilities, she must seek a written direction from 

the Commission.  She may not rely on a Commission minute as 

an alternative to a formal written direction.  Such directions will 

be forwarded to the Auditor General, who will normally draw the 

matter to the attention of the Public Accounts Committee. 

• All directions that would be subject to public disclosure under 

the Freedom of Information Act 2000 if an appropriate request 

were to be made should be disclosed in the governance 

statement that forms part of the annual accounts for the period 

in which the direction was granted.  

Section D: Risk management 

D1. Risk management and internal control 

Principles 

• The Commission and the Chief Executive should ensure that 

there are effective arrangements for governance, risk 

management and internal control for the Assembly Commission. 

• The Chief Executive should take the lead on, and oversee the 

preparation of, the “governance statement” for publication with 

its resource accounts each year. 

Provision 

• The Chief Executive should assure herself of the effectiveness of 

the organisation’s risk management system and procedures and 

its internal controls.  She should give a clear steer on the desired 

risk appetite for the organisation and ensure that: 

Page 15



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

9 
 

• there is a proper framework of prudent and effective 

controls, so that risks can be assessed, managed and 

taken prudently; 

• there is clear accountability for managing risks; and 

• officials are equipped with the relevant skills and 

guidance to perform their assigned roles effectively 

and efficiently. 

D2. Internal audit and the Audit Committee 

Principle 

• The Commission and the Principal Accounting Officer should be 

supported by: 

• an Audit Committee, chaired by a suitably experienced 

internal adviser; and 

• an internal audit service operating to Government 

Internal Audit Standards. 

Provisions 

• The Head of Internal Audit should periodically be invited to 

attend senior management meetings, where key issues are 

discussed relating to governance, risk management or control. 

• The Commission and the Principal Accounting Officer should be 

supported by an Audit Committee, comprising at least three 

independent advisers.  At least one, but preferably more, of 

these committee members should have recent and relevant 

financial experience. 

• Advising on key risks is a role for the Commission and senior 

management.  However, the Audit Committee should support 

this role. 

• The Audit Committee should not have any executive 

responsibilities or be charged with making or endorsing any 

decisions.  It should take care to maintain its independence.  

The Committee should be established and function in 

accordance with the Treasury’s Audit Committee Handbook. 

Page 16



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

10 
 

• The annual governance statement is published with the resource 

accounts each year.  In preparing it, the Principle Accounting 

Officer should assess the risks facing the organisation and 

ensure that its risk management and internal control systems 

are effective.  The Audit Committee should normally lead this 

assessment. 

• The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, including its role 

and the authority delegated to it by the Commission, should be 

made available publicly.  The Committee should submit an 

annual report to the Commission who should report annually on 

the work of the Committee in its report to the Assembly. 

Section E: Remuneration 

E.1 Remuneration of senior management 

Principles 

• Levels of remuneration should be sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate senior managers of the quality required to run the 

organisation having regard to wider issues of pay and 

remuneration within the public sector. 

• There should be a formal and transparent procedure for 

developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the 

remuneration packages of the Chief Executive and directors.  No 

individual should be involved in deciding his or her own 

remuneration. 

Provisions 

• The Commission should appoint a Remuneration Committee 

consisting of at least three independent advisers to give advice 

on the remuneration. 

• Where senior management are involved in advising or 

supporting the Remuneration Committee, care should be taken 

to recognise and avoid conflicts of interest. 

• The Remuneration Committee should make available its terms of 

reference, explaining its role.  Where remuneration consultants 

Page 17



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A 

11 
 

are appointed, a statement should be made available of whether 

they have any other connection with the organisation. 

Section F: Relations with Assembly Members 

F.1 Dialogue with Assembly Members 

Principle 

• The Commission and Chief Executive should establish a regular 

dialogue with Assembly Members based on the mutual 

understanding of objectives. 

• The Chief Executive and the Presiding Officer should ensure that 

all Commissioners and independent advisers are made aware of 

Assembly Members’ major issues and concerns. 

Provisions 

• The Presiding Officer and Chief Executive should ensure that the 

views of Assembly Members are communicated to the 

Commission as a whole. 

• The Commission and Member Support Service should establish 

communication with Assembly Members by a variety of means to 

ensure that they are kept up to date with the Commission’s 

deliberations and to receive and handle any concerns and issues 

that Members might have. 

• The Commission should state in the annual report the steps they 

have taken to ensure that the Commissioners develop an 

understanding of the views of Members about the organisation, 

for example through direct face-to-face contact and surveys of 

opinion. 

Page 18



Comisiwn y Cynulliad 

Assembly Commission 

AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B 

1 

 

 

Conduct of business by the National Assembly for 

Wales Commission 

A. Background and introduction 

1. Section 27 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (the Act) 

established the National Assembly for Wales Commission as a body 

corporate with the principal statutory duty to provide, or ensure 

that the Assembly is provided with, the property, staff and services 

required for the Assembly’s purposes. 

2. The Act provides for the Commission to comprise the Presiding 

Officer and four other Assembly Members appointed in accordance 

with the Standing Orders.  Paragraph 1 of Schedule 2 to the Act 

and Standing Order 7 governs the membership of the Commission. 

3. With the exception of the Presiding Officer, Commissioners are 

nominated by the main political parties.  However, all 

Commissioners represent the interests of the Assembly as a whole 

rather than acting as party representatives. 

4. A Commissioner continues to hold office until another Member of 

the Assembly is appointed in his or her place unless the 

Commissioner resigns, ceases to be an Assembly Member other 

than by dissolution of the Assembly, or is removed by a resolution 

of the Assembly.  When the Assembly is dissolved, Commissioners 

continue in post with the same responsibilities until such time as a 

new Commission is appointed by the next Assembly following the 

election. 

5. The validity of any action taken by the Commission is not, 

according to the Act, affected by any vacancy in its membership, or 

by any defect in the appointment of members or lack qualification 

for membership. 

6. The Chief Executive is the senior permanent employee of the 

Assembly Commission and, under Section 138 of the Act, is also 

Page 19



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B 

2 

its Principal Accounting Officer.  Under paragraph 7 of schedule 2 

to the Act, the Commission may delegate any of its functions to 

the Presiding Officer or the Chief Executive.  

7. Paragraph 11 of schedule 2 to the Act allows the Commission to 

determine its own procedure. This document therefore sets out the 

procedures for the conduct of business which the Commission has 

agreed.  

B. Governance and leadership 

8. The Commission has been established as a corporate body to 

manage the Assembly estate, employ Assembly staff and facilitate 

the smooth running of the Assembly.  The Commissioners are 

therefore corporately responsible for setting the organisation’s 

strategy and overseeing its performance. 

9. The Commissioners are also charged with the governance of the 

organisation and are accountable to the Assembly for its 

performance.  As this is a corporate responsibility, it is important 

that all Commissioners act, and be seen to act, in the interest of 

the Assembly as a whole rather than as representatives of 

individual political parties. 

10. The Chief Executive is responsible for the management of staff, 

and operational delivery of the strategy set by the Commission.  As 

Principal Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive is also responsible 

for economic, efficient and effective use the organisation’s 

resources, for ensuring regularity and propriety of financial 

transactions, and for ensuring that appropriate arrangements are 

in place for the effective identification and management of risk. 

11. It is incumbent upon the Commissioners, Chief Executive and all 

levels of management to show leadership in taking the 

organisation forward to ensure that the Assembly is regarded as a 

powerful and respected democratic institution in the service of the 

people of Wales. 

C. Procedures for meetings of the Commission 

Meetings 

12. Meetings will normally be held in private unless otherwise 

determined by the Commission.  

Page 20



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B 

3 

Regularity of meetings 

13. The Commission will determine the regularity of its meetings.  

Such meetings will normally take place when the Assembly is 

sitting but may also be during a recess if the need arises. 

Adjournment of meetings 

14. Any Commissioner may propose that a meeting be adjourned.  The 

decision on any such adjournment is for the Commission. 

Special meetings  

15. The Presiding Officer may convene a special meeting of the 

Commission when it appears to him or her that an item of 

business requires urgent attention.  The date of any such special 

meeting will be determined by the Chief Executive after contacting 

as many Commissioners as practical. 

16. A Commissioner may request the Presiding Officer to convene a 

special meeting.  It is for the Presiding Officer to determine 

whether or not to grant such a request.  Any two Commissioners 

may call a special meeting by writing to the Chief Executive 

specifying the business to be transacted. 

17. The Chief Executive will arrange for such special meetings to be 

convened and, where possible, the meeting should take place no 

later than seven clear working days after the date of the request or 

call. 

Chair 

18. The Presiding Officer will chair meetings.  If the office of Presiding 

Officer is vacant, or if the Presiding Officer is unable to act, the 

remaining members will appoint a Commissioner to chair the 

meeting. 

19. The role of the Chair is: 

• to preserve order and ensure that Commissioners and special 

advisers have sufficient opportunity to express their views on 

any matter under discussion; 

• to decide in which order those wishing to speak shall do so; 

Page 21



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B 

4 

• subject to these Rules, to decide on all matters of practice 

and procedure; 

• to ensure that Commission decisions or resolutions are 

clearly expressed; and  

• Where no motion is under consideration to summarise the 

discussion for the purposes of the minutes. 

Quorum 

20. The quorum for any meeting is three members. 

Attendance 

21. Commissioners and independent advisers should, where practical, 

inform the Commission and Member Support Service in advance if 

they are unable to attend a particular meeting. 

22. Where a Commissioner or independent adviser is, for whatever 

reason, unable to attend a meeting then he or she may submit 

written comments with views on any of the issues under 

consideration. 

23. In addition to the Commissioners, the following will normally 

attend: 

• independent (non-executive) advisers appointed by the 

Commission1; 

• the Chief Executive; 

• the Directors; and 

• a minute secretary provided by the Commission and Member 

Support Service. 

Other officials may attend meetings as required. 

                                       
1 Independent advisers may be appointed to act in a non-executive capacity 
providing support and constructive challenge to the Commission and its senior 
management – see the Commission’s governance principles and supporting 
provisions. 

Page 22



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B 

5 

24. The Commission may if appropriate, invite individual Assembly 

Members to attend for specific meetings or individual items of 

business.   These Members would not be permitted to vote. 

25. Where, in the opinion of the Commissioners, an issue is 

particularly sensitive or confidential in nature, the Chair may 

recommend that the item be considered without observers, 

advisers or officials present.  If the Commission approves such a 

recommendation such individuals as the Commissioners determine 

must withdraw, but the minute secretary should normally remain in 

attendance. 

Papers 

26. Papers for any meeting, other than a special meeting, should be 

set out in accordance with guidance to be issued by the 

Commission and Member Support Service. 

27. All papers should be presented in a clear, concise format setting 

out the issues, the background, a discussion on the options 

available, resource implications, next steps and the decision 

required from the Commission. 

28. Where the purpose of the paper is to ask the Commission to 

express a view, it should include an appropriate conclusion rather 

than a recommendation.  Where the paper is simply providing 

information, the conclusion should invite the Commission to note 

the information provided. 

29. Commission minutes and papers will normally be published one 

week after the meeting, except those papers containing 

information which is considered may be exempt from publication 

under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

30. The Commission and Member Support Service will issue the papers 

and agenda by email, where practical, not later than three working 

days preceding the date of the meeting.  Commissioners may 

consult colleagues on any issue but should take reasonable steps 

to prevent any action that would pre-empt full and proper 

consideration by the Commission at the meeting. 

Page 23



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B 

6 

Agenda 

31. The agenda for each meeting will be set by the Chief Executive in 

consultation with the Presiding Officer and, other than for a special 

meeting, should include: 

• date, time and location of the meeting; 

• minutes of the previous meeting; 

• matters arising; and 

• papers which are to be considered at the meeting  

32. Under normal circumstances there will be no heading of “Any 

Other Business” on the agenda.  However, if any Commissioner, 

independent adviser or official wishes to raise an urgent matter 

under this heading, notice should be given to the Presiding Officer 

at least one day in advance.  Should this not be possible notice 

must be given as quickly as possible prior to the commencement 

of the meeting.  It is for the Commission to determine whether 

such items will be discussed and at what point in the meeting. 

Minutes  

33. The minutes of meetings should record: 

• the date, venue and time of the meeting; 

• Commissioners present; 

• independent advisers, officials and observers in attendance; 

• apologies for absence; 

• declarations of interest; 

• approval of the previous minutes or any amendments 

thereto; 

• matters arising from the previous minutes; 

• a note of any issues considered by correspondence since the 

previous meeting and any decisions taken; 

Page 24



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B 

7 

• issues discussed at the meeting and any decisions taken or 

resolutions made on each issue; 

• the outcome of voting on any decision taken; and 

• any actions arising. 

34. Minutes of meetings must be approved by the Commission at the 

following meeting and the duly approved minutes will then be 

formally signed off by the Chair. 

35. When an amendment to the minutes is agreed the Chair must, 

unless the meeting determines otherwise, authorise the 

amendment to the minute, which thereafter must be agreed. 

36. The approved minutes of meetings will be published on the 

Assembly’s website. 

Decisions and voting 

37. Only Commissioners are entitled to vote.  Each Commissioner has 

a vote.  The Chair of the meeting also has a casting vote in the 

event of a tie. 

Disclosures of interest 

38. A Commissioner, independent adviser or participating official must 

disclose any financial interest in any matter under consideration at 

a meeting.  Where such an interest has been declared the 

individual concerned must take no part in the proceedings and 

should withdraw from that part of the meeting. 

39. Where a Commissioner or independent adviser has an interest, 

other than financial (e.g. family), advice should be sought as to 

whether the interest may be regarded as significant. 

40. A Commissioner or independent adviser may seek advice from the 

Commission’s Legal Services Directorate in relation to any 

particular circumstances which he or she believes may constitute a 

direct or indirect interest in a matter before a meeting.  All 

declarations of interest must be recorded in the minutes. 

Page 25



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B 

8 

Resolutions 

41. The Chair should attempt to secure a consensus for all 

Commission resolutions. Where this is not possible, the Chair must 

call for a vote. 

42. Votes will be taken by a show of hands unless the meeting 

determines that a roll call vote should take place. 

43. Any motions to be submitted for consideration of the Assembly 

require the prior approval by a resolution of the Commission at a 

duly constituted meeting. 

Dealing with items by correspondence 

44. Any issues to be dealt with by correspondence, at the discretion of 

the Chief Executive, must be limited to issues: 

• of real urgency where it is clear that a decision is needed 

before the next meeting; 

• to note for information; 

• agreed at a previous meeting to be dealt with by 

correspondence; or 

• where it is likely to gain consensus agreement with no need 

for discussion. 

45. When a paper is issued, it should clearly state a closing date by 

which comments are required.  It will be presumed that if a 

Commissioner does not respond by the closing date it will be 

interpreted as if consent was given to the proposal under 

consideration.  The Commission and Member Support Service will 

strive to achieve a consensus on all papers issued by 

correspondence. 

46. If there is a consensus in favour (or not in favour) of a proposal or 

if there is a majority view then that decision will be put to the next 

meeting for formal ratification.  However, where there is a majority 

view, but a Commissioner dissenting considers that the matter 

requires further discussion then the issue will be considered at the 

next available meeting.  If the issue is significantly urgent then 

Page 26



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B 

9 

consideration should be given to calling a specially convened 

meeting to resolve the issue. 

Amendments to procedures 

47. These procedure rules may be varied, revoked or added to by the 

Commission at a meeting where due notice has been given. 

Page 27



Comisiwn y Cynulliad 

Assembly Commission 

AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex C 

1 

 

 

Delegation of Assembly Commission functions 

1. In accordance with the provisions of paragraph 7 of Schedule 2 to 

the Government of Wales Act 2006, the Assembly Commission 

hereby delegates its functions, including its responsibility for the 

management of staff, to the Chief Executive and Clerk subject to 

the following exceptions and conditions. 

2. The following matters are excepted from this delegation: 

a) the appointment, terms and conditions and remuneration 

of the Chief Executive and Clerk, non-executive advisers 

to the Commission, and members of the Audit Committee; 

and 

b) the authorisation of expenditure under paragraph 6 of 

Schedule 2 to the 2006 Act (provision of financial 

assistance to the Electoral Commission). 

3. The Chief Executive and Clerk must consult the Commission 

before: 

a) making appointments to the posts of Chief Operating 

Officer, Director of Assembly Business and Chief Legal 

Adviser; 

b) changing the remuneration and terms and conditions for 

the staff occupying those posts; 

c) creating new director posts or abolishing existing director 

posts; 

d) authorising capital expenditure for projects in excess of 

£1 million; and 

e) authorising expenditure on matters that could be 

regarded as novel or contentious. 

Page 28



AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex C 

2 

4. The delegation of functions mentioned above does not prevent the 

exercise of those delegated functions by the Commission. 

Signed on behalf of the Commission by the Presiding Officer 

 

……………………………………………… 

 

   June 2011 

Page 29



Comisiwn y Cynulliad 

Assembly Commission 

AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex D 

1 

 

 

Exercise of Clerk’s functions 

In accordance with Section 26(3) of the Government of Wales Act 

2006, the Assembly Commission hereby authorises the Chief 

Operating Officer, the Director of Assembly Business and the 

Chief Legal Adviser to exercise the Clerk’s functions if the Clerk 

is for any reason unable to act. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Commission by the Presiding Officer 

……………………………………………… 

 

   June 2011 

Page 30



1 

Comisiwn y Cynulliad 

Assembly Commission 

NAFWC 2011 (Paper 3) 

Assembly Commission portfolios 

 

Date:  16 June 2011 

Time: 13:00 

Venue: Conference Room 4B 

Author name and contact number: Claire Clancy, ext 8233 

Assembly Commission portfolios 

1.0 Purpose and summary of issues 

1.1. The Commission is corporately responsible for the exercise of 

the functions conferred upon it and for the governance of the 

organisation.  During the Third Assembly each Commissioner 

had particular responsibility for a portfolio of services. 

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1. The Commission is asked to agree portfolios for each 

Commissioner. 

3.0 Discussion 

3.1. The Commissioners are corporately responsible for the exercise 

of the functions conferred on the Commission and for the 

governance of the organisation and, accordingly, act in the 

interests of the Assembly as a whole. 

3.2. During the Third Assembly, the Commission’s responsibilities 

were split into separate portfolios.  Each Commissioner took a 

particular interest in an area of the Commission’s work.  This 

provided Commissioners with the opportunity to build up their 

knowledge in particular areas and to work with officials to 

provide strategic direction on a more regular and thorough basis 

than Commission meetings alone would allow. 

3.3. The draft portfolios attached at Annex A are, in part, aligned 

with the structure by which services to Members are delivered, 

Agenda Item 3

Page 31



NAFWC 2011 (Paper 3) 

Assembly Commission portfolios 

2 

but also balanced to ensure a reasonable distribution between 

Commissioners.  These reflect experience of portfolio working in 

the Third Assembly.  A senior official has been paired with each 

portfolio to act as the key link between the Commissioner and 

service areas. 

3.4. Although the Deputy Presiding Officer is not a member of the 

Commission, the Presiding Officer has asked him to attend 

meetings.  Identifying areas of interest upon which he will focus 

complements his other responsibilities as DPO and will support 

the portfolios of Commissioners.  Possible areas of interest 

include Assembly business, the Pierhead as a centre for 

Assembly development and debate, and links with Wales 

Governance Centre and other bodies relevant to this role.  Adrian 

Crompton would be the lead official for these purposes. 

Page 32



Comisiwn y Cynulliad 
Assembly Commission 
 
AC(4)2011(1) Paper 3 Annex A 
 

 

 

Assembly Commission - draft portfolios 2011-16 

Portfolio Lead official(s) 

Presiding Officer as Commission Chair Claire Clancy 
Budget, governance, including Audit Committee 

membership, and links with the Remuneration 

Board.  Improvement of services to Members, 

employment support and professional 

development for Members and their staff. 

Claire Clancy with 

Steve O’Donoghue and 

Craig Stephenson 

ICT, broadcasting and e-democracy, the 

Assembly estate, facilities and sustainability.  The 

Commission as the employer of Assembly staff. 

Dianne Bevan 

Education services, front of house, catering and 

security.  The Commission’s statutory equality 

functions. 

Connie Robertson 

Citizen engagement and communications, 

national and international outreach.  Freedom of 

information and the Commission’s Welsh 

language functions and policy. 

Non Gwilym 

 

Note: Proposed focus of interest for the Deputy Presiding Officer referred to 

in the covering paper. 

 

Page 33



1 

Comisiwn y Cynulliad 

Assembly Commission 

NAFWC 2011(Paper 4) 

Communicating effectively with Assembly Members 

 

Date:  16 June 2011 

Time: 13:00 

Venue: Conference Room 4B 

Author name and contact number: Craig Stephenson, ext 8230 

Communicating effectively with Assembly 

Members 

1.0 Purpose and summary of issues 

1.1. This paper seeks the Assembly Commission’s views on the 

actions proposed to communicate the work of the Assembly 

Commission to Assembly Members more effectively in the Fourth 

Assembly.  The proposals set out in this paper enhance the role 

of the secretariat in this respect, allowing Commissioners to 

concentrate on the strategic and decision making elements of 

their role. 

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1. The Assembly Commission is asked to agree the proposals set 

out at paragraphs 5.1 – 5.4. 

3.0 Discussion 

3.1. In 2009-10, an Assembly Member satisfaction survey was 

undertaken.  Thirty-one Members, sometimes also accompanied 

by their support staff, provided feedback on the services we 

provide to them.  During those discussions it became apparent 

that a number of Members were dissatisfied with the level of 

feedback and pre-decision consultation on the work of the 

Assembly Commission.  The Chief Executive and Clerk also met 

party leaders periodically and similar feedback was provided 

during those discussions. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 34



NAFWC 2011(Paper 4) 

Communicating effectively with Assembly Members 

2 

3.2. A number of actions were in place already to keep Members 

informed and these were strengthened as a result of the 

feedback.  We now have an opportunity to engage Members 

more proactively on the work of the Assembly Commission and 

the following paragraphs detail those proposals. 

4.0 Approaches taken to date 

4.1. The following bullet points summarise the approaches taken in 

the Third Assembly and it is proposed that these should 

continue: 

• the Chief Executive met with opposition Party Leaders to 

discuss a number of current and on-going issues.  Regular 

meetings were also undertaken with individual Assembly 

Commissioners; 

• Assembly Commission papers were supplemented with 

briefing sheets which were made available prior to 

Commission meetings and were designed specifically to 

engage Members on the Commission’s work; 

• a few days after each Commission meeting, a summary of 

the discussions was published on the Members’ homepage; 

• Commission papers were also published bilingually one 

week after a meeting and a link to the published papers is 

provided in an email to Members; 

• Chief Executive monthly update was introduced and well 

received; 

• Chief Executive and other staff discussed specific issues 

with Members at party group meetings; 

• Senedd drop-in sessions were arranged so that Members 

could meet key staff in the margins of Plenary sessions.  

These were largely related to Members’ Business Support 

and ICT work; 

• an Assembly Member Reference Group was established for 

consultation purposes on the work of the Fourth Assembly 

Page 35



NAFWC 2011(Paper 4) 

Communicating effectively with Assembly Members 

3 

Programme to facilitate pre-decision consultation with 

Members and Groups; and 

• a Members’ support staff advisory group was also 

established and worked well. 

5.0 Opportunities for the Fourth Assembly 

5.1. In addition to maintaining the communication strands listed 

above, we also suggest the following actions to enhance 

engagement with Members: 

5.2. The Chief Executive’s monthly update could be used to signpost 

forthcoming consultations to encourage engagement from the 

outset.  There might also be opportunities for senior officials to 

attend party group meetings periodically, upon invitation, to 

discuss particular issues.  Subject to the Commissioners’ views, 

this could commence before the summer recess so that the role 

of the Commission can be explained, in particular, to new 

Members. 

5.3. The Head of Member Liaison and Professional Development has a 

pivotal role in engaging Members on the work of the 

Commission and would take forward the following initiatives as 

part of her duties: 

• re-establish the Assembly Member Reference Group which 

provided valuable intelligence on corporate services in the 

lead up to the Fourth Assembly elections.  Using the 

Reference Group as a mechanism for consultation would 

allow Commissioners to be the decision makers who receive 

the product of consultation.  We would need to ensure that 

it was specific and focused with involvement being fluid and 

picking up on special interests that Members may have; 

• take a proactive role in capitalising on the partnership 

approach that has developed with Group Managers through 

the Members’ Support Staff Advisory Group and make 

arrangements for that to continue; 

• use to best effect the Members’ pages on the Intranet to 

communicate the work of the Commission; and 

Page 36



NAFWC 2011(Paper 4) 

Communicating effectively with Assembly Members 

4 

• communicate and clarify decisions taken by the Assembly 

Commission when she meets with individual or groups of 

Members. 

5.4. Operationally, the secretariat could continue to advise Members 

that Commission papers have been published but this could be 

done by using the Presiding Officer’s mailbox which would have 

the effect of raising the status of the communication.  To help 

ensure that all Members receive the Assembly Member Briefing 

Sheet at the same time prior to Commission meetings, the 

secretariat could also provide these directly to Members, or 

publish the briefing on the Members’ Intranet, on behalf of the 

Commissioners. 

Page 37



!"#$%&"'()**+,-'.(/%0(1"'+*(
!""#$%&'()*$$+""+*,

-#./0'(1#2*13(
4556(3*(4577

Agenda Item 5

Page 38



! 89#(:/3+*,/&(!""#$%&'(;*1(</&#"(+"(39#(
=#$*01/3+0/&&'(#&#03#=(%*='(39/3(1#21#"#,3"(
39#(+,3#1#"3"(*;(</&#"(/,=(+3"(2#*2&#>(
$/?#"(&/@"(;*1(</&#"(/,=(9*&="(39#(<#&"9(
A*B#1,$#,3(3*(/00*C,3D

"""#$%%&'()*"$)&%#+,-
$%%&'()*#./0+1"$)&%#-+2#34
$%%&'()*#(++4./-%1"$)&%#-+2#34
56789:67;76::776

</-$-&6".=>6=>&6?%%&'()*6+/6@$A&(++4B6C+353(&B65".==&,6$/D6@).A4,#

E6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6H+''.%%.+/6H+I*,.->=6!7;;
5>&6=&J=6+06=>.%6D+A3'&/=6'$*6(&6,&I,+D3A&D60,&&6+06A>$,-&6./6$/*60+,'$=6+,6'&D.3'6I,+2.D./-6=>$=6.=6.%6,&I,+D3A&D6
$AA3,$=&)*6$/D6/+=63%&D6./6$6'.%)&$D./-6+,6D&,+-$=+,*6A+/=&J=#65>&6'$=&,.$)6'3%=6(&6$A4/+")&D-&D6$%6A+I*,.->=6+06=>&6
F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6H+''.%%.+/6$/D6=>&6=.=)&6+06=>&6D+A3'&/=6%I&A.K&D#Page 39



2%&#+&#*

7;L@+,&"+,D66 6 7M6

7!LN=,$=&-*6$/D6+,-$/.%$=.+/6 6 78

7OLP.)&%=+/&%6$/D6>.->).->=%6 6 ;O

79LN=,$=&-.A6-+$)%6

!"#$#%&'()*'+,*&)'&)-(-&$&)%',)'*&.#/0%,#)' 6 6 6666 !:

12#+'0),%34'/&(*&"52,64'()*'('7#/*'"&56#)5&66 6 6 6 !Q
%#'8#)5%,%0%,#)(/'82()-&

9&$#)5%"(%&'"&56&8%4'6"#7,%3'()*'-##*'-#.&")()8&6 6 6666 OO

:#";'505%(,)(7/3' ' ' ' ' ' ' ''''''''''' '''''''''''''OM

<)50"&'%2(%'%2&'=55&$7/3'2(5'%2&'7&5%'5&".,8&4'' ''''''''''''''''' '''''''''''''O8
6"#.,*&*',)'%2&'$#5%'&>&8%,.&'+(3

7:LN&,2./-6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6 6 6 6 6 66666666666 666666666666697

Page 40



9

Page 41



:N&A=.+/67L666666666666666666666666666666666666666666 JJJJJJJJJJJJJJ

Page 42



7M

3%0+4%05

5+6>&)I6I)$//./-6$/D6D&).2&,*6+06%&,2.A&%6D3,./-6=>&6@+3,=>6
?%%&'()*B6=>.%6)&-$A*6,&I+,=6,&2.&"%6=>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/R%6
"+,46+2&,6=>&6I$%=60+3,6*&$,%#

5>&6S+2&,/'&/=6+06G$)&%6?A=6;QQ86+,.-./$))*6A,&$=&D6=>&6F$=.+/$)6
?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6$%6$6T(+D*6A+,I+,$=&U6".=>6,&%I+/%.(.).=*60+,6
&J&,A.%./-6(+=>6I$,).$'&/=$,*6$/D6-+2&,/'&/=$)603/A=.+/%#6V&./-6
$6(+D*6A+,I+,$=&6'&$/=6=>$=B6./6)$"B6.=6A+/=./3&D6=+6&J.%=6&2&/6
D3,./-6$/6&)&A=.+/6A$'I$.-/L=>&6?%%&'()*6"$%6/+=6D.%%+)2&D6$/D6
P&'(&,%6,&'$./&D6$%6%3A>6,.->=63I6=+6=>&6D$=&6+06=>&6&)&A=.+/#6

5>&6S+2&,/'&/=6+06G$)&%6?A=6!77M6WT=>&6?A=UX60+,'$))*6%&I$,$=&D6
=>&6="+6,+)&%6WI$,).$'&/=$,*6$/D6-+2&,/'&/=$)X6$/D6A,&$=&D6
%&I$,$=&6)&-$)6&/=.=.&%6=+6A$,,*6=>&'6+3=Y6=>&6G&)%>6?%%&'()*6
S+2&,/'&/=6WG&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=X6=+6&J&,A.%&6-+2&,/'&/=$)6
03/A=.+/%6$/D6=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6=+6&J&,A.%&6
I$,).$'&/=$,*603/A=.+/%B6./A)3D./-6)$"6'$4./-6$/D6%A,3=./*6
+06=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=#6

5>&6,&A+/%=.=3=&D6?%%&'()*6.%6/+=6$6(+D*6A+,I+,$=&6(3=6,$=>&,6$/6
3/./A+,I+,$=&D6$%%+A.$=.+/6+06M76P&'(&,%6">.A>6.%6D.%%+)2&D6$60&"6
"&&4%6(&0+,&6&$A>6?%%&'()*6&)&A=.+/6$/D6,&A+/2&/&D6$0=&,6=>&6
/&")*6&)&A=&D6P&'(&,%6$,&6,&=3,/&D#65>&6?%%&'()*6.%6=>&,&0+,&6
/+=6$6I&,'$/&/=B6A+/=./3./-6(+D*6$/DB6$%6%3A>B6.%6/+=6A$I$()&6W0+,6
&J$'I)&X6+06&/=&,./-6./=+6)+/-Z=&,'6A+/=,$A=%6+,6+"/./-6I,+I&,=*#6
5>&6!77M6?A=6=>&,&0+,&6A,&$=&D6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6$%6$6I&,'$/&/=6
)&-$)6&/=.=*6=>$=6.%6$()&6=+6&/=&,6=>&6)+/-Z=&,'6A+/=,$A=%B6$II+./=6
=>&6%=$[6$/D6+"/6=>&6I,+I&,=*6/&A&%%$,*60+,6=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*6
0+,6G$)&%6=+6&J&,A.%&6.=%603/A=.+/%#

?#/&'#@'%2&'A#$$,55,#)
5>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6D3=*63/D&,6=>&6?A=6.%6=+6I,+2.D&6=>&6TI,+I&,=*B6
%=$[6$/D6%&,2.A&%6,&\3.,&D60+,6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6I3,I+%&%U#6]/6I,$A=.A&B6
=>.%6'&$/%6=>$=6.=6.%6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6,&%I+/%.(.).=*6=+Y
6L $A\3.,&B6>+)D6+,6D.%I+%&6+06$/*6I,+I&,=*6+/6(&>$)06+06=>&6
?%%&'()*^
6L '$4&6$,,$/-&'&/=%6=+6I$*6P&'(&,%6$/D6I,+2.D&6=>&.,6I&/%.+/%6
$/D6$))+"$/A&%6$/D6=+6&'I)+*6?%%&'()*6%=$[^6$/DB
6L $A=6./6$/6$II,+I,.$=&6$/D6/&A&%%$,*6"$*6=+6I,+2.D&6=>&6%&,2.A&%6
,&\3.,&D60+,6=>&6?%%&'()*6=+6D+6.=%6"+,4#

NA>&D3)&6!6+06=>&6?A=6$)%+6$))+"%6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6=+6I,+'+=&6
I3().A6$"$,&/&%%6+06=>&6A3,,&/=6+,603=3,&6&)&A=+,$)6%*%=&'60+,6
=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6&'I+"&,%6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6=+6I,+'+=&6I3().A6
$"$,&/&%%6+06=>&6A3,,&/=6+,6$/*6I&/D./-6%*%=&'6+06D&2+)2&D6
-+2&,/'&/=6./6G$)&%#6

?6A+'I,&>&/%.2&6TS3.D&6=+6=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6
H+''.%%.+/U6>$%6(&&/6I,+D3A&D6=+6$A=6$%6$6%./-)&6%+3,A&6+06
./0+,'$=.+/6+/6=>&6,+)&B6A+'I+%.=.+/B603/A=.+/6$/D6,&%I+/%.(.).=.&%6
+06=>&6H+''.%%.+/#

Page 43



7_N&A=.+/67;L6666666666666666666666 @+,&"+,D

B##;,)-'@#"+("*'%#'%2&'C#0"%2'=55&$7/3
?%6"&6$II,+$A>6=>&6@+3,=>6?%%&'()*B6$=6$6=.'&6">&/6=>&6
A+/%=.=3=.+/$)6$/D6I+).=.A$)6)$/D%A$I&6>$%6A>$/-&D6$-$./B6.=6.%6=.'&)*6
0+,63%6=+6,&2.&"6=>&6)&%%+/%6)&$,/&D60,+'6=>&6I$%=60+3,6*&$,%6$/D6
=+6A+/%.D&,6=>&6A>$))&/-&%6=>$=6).&6$>&$D#6G&6>+I&6=>.%6,&I+,=6".))6
$%%.%=6=>&6/&"6H+''.%%.+/6./6.D&/=.0*./-6-++D6I,$A=.A&6=+6(3.)D6
./=+6=>&6?%%&'()*R%603=3,&6"$*%6+06"+,4./-B6$/D6./60+,'3)$=./-6
.=%6%=,$=&-.A6I,.+,.=.&%60+,6=>&6@+3,=>6?%%&'()*#6

5>&6,&I+,=6(&-./%6".=>6$/6+2&,2.&"6+06=>&6$II,+$A>6=$4&/6(*6
=>&6H+''.%%.+/6=+6.=%6%=,$=&-*6$/D6+,-$/.%$=.+/#6]=6=>&/6I,+2.D&%6
$6%&)&A=.+/6+06'.)&%=+/&%6$/D6>.->).->=%6$%6$6,&'./D&,6+06=>&6
A+/%.D&,$()&6(,&$D=>6+06$A=.2.=*6D3,./-6=>&60+3,6*&$,%#65>&6K/$)6
A>$I=&,%6,&2.&"6$A>.&2&'&/=6$-$./%=6&$A>6+06=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6
K2&6%=,$=&-.A6-+$)%6$/D6I,+2.D&6,&A+''&/D$=.+/%6=+6$%%.%=6=>&6
H+''.%%.+/6./6=>&6@+3,=>6?%%&'()*#

5>&6`*&%R62+=&6+/6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6)&-.%)$=.2&6I+"&,%6$/D6$6/&"6
I+).=.A$)6)$/D%A$I&60+))+"./-6=>&6?%%&'()*6&)&A=.+/6>$%6I,+2.D&D6=>&6
/&"6H+''.%%.+/6".=>6$6/&"6A+/=&J=60+,6,&2.&"./-6.=%6%=,$=&-.A6-+$)%6
0+,6=>&6@+3,=>6?%%&'()*#6G&6>+I&6=>$=6=>&6)&$,/./-%6A.=&D6./6=>.%6
,&I+,=6>&)I6./0+,'6=>$=6I,+A&%%#6

5>&6a=6b+/6=>&6c+,D6d$0*DD6<).%Z5>+'$%
G.)).$'6S,$>$'
e&=&,6V)$A4
c+,,$./&6V$,,&==
H>,.%6@,$/4%6

Page 44



78

6#0"#+7.("&5(%07"&$*"#$%&

D2&'1%"(%&-3'@#"'%2&'D2,"*'=55&$7/3'EFGGHIFGJJK'
5>&6H+''.%%.+/6$-,&&D6=>$=6.=%6+2&,$,A>./-6I3,I+%&6%>+3)D6(&Y
T5+6'$4&6=>&6?%%&'()*6$/6$AA&%%.()&6$/D6&[&A=.2&6I$,).$'&/=$,*6
(+D*6=>$=6./%I.,&%6=>&6A+/KD&/A&6+06=>&6I&+I)&6+06G$)&%U#

]=6$)%+6$-,&&D6%=,$=&-.A6-+$)%6$/D62$)3&%6=+6-3.D&6.=%6"+,46$/D6=>$=6
+06=>&6%=$[6+06=>&6?%%&'()*60+,6=>&6D3,$=.+/6+06=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*#

6#0"#+7$8(7%"'*("&5(9"':+*(/%0(#;+(<;$05()**+,-'.
=:0(7%"'*

:&'+,//'6"#$#%&'()*'+,*&)'&)-(-&$&)%',)'*&.#/0%,#)L
5>&6/&J=60+3,6*&$,%6'3%=6D&'+/%=,$=&6=>$=6=>&6?%%&'()*6.%6"+,4./-6
0+,6$))6A.=.f&/%6$/D6&/A+3,$-./-6-,&$=&,6$/D6'+,&6$A=.2&6I$,=.A.I$=.+/6
./6=>&6D&'+A,$=.A6I,+A&%%#6G&6".))6&'I>$%.%&6=>&6I+%.=.2&6.'I$A=6+06
=>&6?%%&'()*63I+/6=>&6).2&%6+06I&+I)&6./6G$)&%#65>&,&6".))6(&6-,&$=&,6
./A,&'&/=$)6D&2+)3=.+/6=>,+3->6=>&6!77M6?A=B6$/D6=>&,&6'$*6(&6$6
,&0&,&/D3'60+,6-,&$=&,6)&-.%)$=.2&6A+'I&=&/A&B6"&6".))6(&6,&$D*6=+6
-,$%I6=>&%&6A>$))&/-&%6&/=>3%.$%=.A$))*#

:&'+,//'52#+'0),%34'/&(*&"52,6'()*'('7#/*'"&56#)5&'
%#'8#)5%,%0%,#)(/'82()-&L'
5>&6?%%&'()*6".))6%>+"6A+/KD&/A&6$/D6A+'I&=&/A&6./6&'(,$A./-6.=%6
/&"6I+"&,%#6G&6$,&63/.=&D6./6%&A3,./-6%A,3=./*6$/D6)&-.%)$=.+/6+06=>&6
(&%=6\3$).=*B6$/D6./6%3II+,=./-6P&'(&,%6./6$))6=>$=6=>&*6D+6$%6&)&A=&D6
,&I,&%&/=$=.2&%#

M)'(//'#0"'+#";4'+&'+,//'*&$#)5%"(%&'"&56&8%4'6"#7,%3'
()*'-##*'-#.&")()8&L6
?))6=>$=6"&6D+6'3%=6(&6A$I$()&6+06./=&/%&6&J=&,/$)6%A,3=./*B6(&6
=,$/%I$,&/=6$/D6%>+3)D6,&g&A=6=>&6D.2&,%&6/$=3,&6+06G$)&%6$/D6
.=%6)$/-3$-&%6./6>+"6.=6D&$)%6".=>6$/D6./2+)2&%6=>&6A.=.f&/#

:&'+,//'+#";'505%(,)(7/3L6
G&6".))6%>+"6)&$D&,%>.I6./6>+"6"&6'$/$-&6+3,6"+,46$/D6&%=$=&B6
$/D6"&6$.'6=+6I,+2.D&6=>&6>.->&%=6$A>.&2$()&6)&2&)6+06%3%=$./$(.).=*6
./6(+=>#

:&'+,//'&)50"&'%2(%'%2&'=55&$7/3'2(5'%2&'7&5%'5&".,8&4'6"#.,*&*'
,)'%2&'$#5%'&>&8%,.&'+(3L'
G&6".))6=$4&6=>&6%&,2.A&%6I,+2.D&D60+,6P&'(&,%6$/D6=>&6I&+I)&6
+06G$)&%6=+6$6>.->&,6)&2&)B6">.)&6D&'+/%=,$=./-6".%&6$/D6&[&A=.2&6
3%&6+06.=%6,&%+3,A&%6$/D62$)3&60+,6'+/&*#65>&6&=>+%6+06%&,2.A&B6
=+6P&'(&,%6$/D6$/*+/&6">+6&/-$-&%6".=>6=>&6?%%&'()*B6D,.2&%6
&2&,*=>./-6=>$=6"&6D+#

N0"'.(/0&5
5>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6$/D6.=%6%=$[Y
6L $)"$*%6$A=6./6=>&6(&%=6./=&,&%=%6+06=>&6
?%%&'()*^
6L '$./=$./6>.->6%=$/D$,D%6$/D6D&).2&,6">$=6
"&6%$*6"&6".))^
6L $,&6I,+0&%%.+/$)6$/D6.//+2$=.2&^
6L "+,46+I&/)*6$/D6A+))$(+,$=.2&)*^
6L =,&$=6&2&,*+/&6".=>6,&%I&A=#

Page 45



7QN&A=.+/67!L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-*6$/D6+,-$/.%$=.+/

2%,,$**$%&+0*>("0+"*(%/(0+*?%&*$-$'$#.

5>&6H+''.%%.+/&,%6$,&6A+,I+,$=&)*6,&%I+/%.()&60+,6=>&6&J&,A.%&6
+06=>&603/A=.+/%6A+/0&,,&D6+/6=>&6H+''.%%.+/B6=>&6-+2&,/$/A&6+06
=>&6+,-$/.%$=.+/6$/DB6$AA+,D./-)*B6$A=6./6=>&6./=&,&%=%6+06=>&6?%%&'()*6
$%6$6">+)&#6@+,6=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6,&%I+/%.(.).=.&%6
"&,&6%I).=6./=+6%&I$,$=&6I+,=0+).+%#6<$A>6H+''.%%.+/&,6>$D6./D.2.D3$)6
,&%I+/%.(.).=*60+,6$6I$,=.A3)$,6$,&$6+06"+,4#65>&%&6I+,=0+).+6$,&$%6"&,&6
A,+%%ZA3==./-6$/D6%=,$=&-.A6./6$II,+$A>B6$/D6$))+"&D6H+''.%%.+/&,%6
=+6"+,46$A,+%%6$6,$/-&6+06%&,2.A&%#

2%,,$**$%&+0(?%0#/%'$%*

A2(,"'#@'%2&'A#$$,55,#)I?%L'O#)'%2&'B#"*'</,5PD2#$(5'=Q
5>&6H+''.%%.+/6"$%6A>$.,&D6(*6=>&6c)*"*DD6We,&%.D./-6hiA&,XB6
">+6>$D6%I&A.$)6,&%I+/%.(.).=*60+,6I,+'+=./-6D&'+A,$=.A6
&/-$-&'&/=^6&JA&))&/=6)&$D&,%>.I^6D&2&)+I./-6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6
03=3,&6)&-.%)$=.2&6I+"&,%6$/D6&J=&,/$)6,&)$=.+/%#

A#$$,55,#)&"'@#"'%2&'105%(,)(7/&'=55&$7/3IB#""(,)&'R(""&%%'=Q
5>.%6I+,=0+).+6./A)3D&D6,&%I+/%.(.).=*60+,6&\3$).=*B6)$/-3$-&B6
&/2.,+/'&/=6$/D6A$,(+/6/&3=,$).=*B6%3%=$./$()&6I,+A3,&'&/=6
$/D6&%=$=&6'$/$-&'&/=#

A#$$,55,#)&"'@#"'%2&'=55&$7/3'()*'%2&'A,%,S&)I!&%&"'R/(8;'=Q
5>.%6I+,=0+).+6./A)3D&D6)++4./-6$=6=>&6\3$).=*6+06%A,3=./*6$/D6
=>&6)&-.%)$=.2&6I,+A&%%^6&J=&,/$)6A+''3/.A$=.+/^6]H5^6A.=.f&/%>.I
&D3A$=.+/^6)&-$)6'$==&,%6$/D6@,&&D+'6+06]/0+,'$=.+/#

A#$$,55,#)&"'@#"'%2&'M$6"#.,)-'=55&$7/3IA2",5'C"();5'=Q
5>.%6I+,=0+).+6./A)3D&D6)++4./-6$=6.'I,+2./-6%&,2.A&%60+,6P&'(&,%6
$/D6A.=.f&/%^6./2+)2./-6%=$4&>+)D&,%6./6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6"+,4^6
%=,$=&-.A6I)$//./-^6$/D6A+/%.D&,./-62$)3&60+,6'+/&*#6

A#$$,55,#)&"'@#"'=55&$7/3'?&5#0"8&5I:,//,($'T"(2($'=Q
5>.%6I+,=0+).+6./A)3D&D6A+/%.D&,./-6=>&6'$/$-&'&/=6+06?%%&'()*6
$%%&=%^6?%%&'()*6I&+I)&6W./A)3D./-6&'I)+*&&%B6A+/=,$A=+,%B6%&,2.A&%6
I,+2.D&D6=+6%3II+,=6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,6%3II+,=6%=$[X^6(3D-&=^6
P&'(&,%R6%$)$,.&%6$/D6$))+"$/A&%^6&iA.&/A*6$/D6-++D6-+2&,/$/A&#

Page 46



;7

=07"&$*"#$%&"'(*#0:8#:0+

d3,./-6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6./$3-3,$)6'&&=./-6./6j3/&6!77_B6=>&6
H+''.%%.+/6$-,&&DB6./6$AA+,D$/A&6".=>6=>&6?A=B6=+6D&)&-$=&6.=%6
03/A=.+/%B6./A)3D./-6.=%6,&%I+/%.(.).=*60+,6=>&6'$/$-&'&/=6+06%=$[B6
=+6=>&6H>.&06<J&A3=.2&6$/D6H)&,46+06=>&6?%%&'()*B6%3(k&A=6=+6%&2&,$)6
&JA&I=.+/%6$/D6A+/D.=.+/%#

?6/&"6+,-$/.%$=.+/$)6%=,3A=3,&B6%3II+,=&D6(*6$II,+I,.$=&6,&%+3,A&%B6
"$%6I3=6./6I)$A&6=+6%3II+,=6=>&6&[&A=.2&603/A=.+/./-6+06=>&
?%%&'()*6$%6$6)&-.%)$=3,&#65>,&&6d.,&A=+,%6"&,&6$II+./=&DL$6H>.&06
hI&,$=./-6hiA&,6$6d.,&A=+,6+06?%%&'()*6V3%./&%%6$/D6$6H>.&06c&-$)6
?D2.%&,ld.,&A=+,6+06c&-$)6N&,2.A&%#6h2&,6=>&6A+3,%&6+06=>&6?%%&'()*B6
$6/3'(&,6+0603/A=.+/%6"&,&6%=,&/-=>&/&D6=+6>&)I6&/%3,&6=>&6
?%%&'()*R%6$(.).=*6=+6+I&,$=&6&[&A=.2&)*6$%6$6)&-.%)$=3,&6$/D6=+6
I,+2.D&6&[&A=.2&6%3II+,=6=+6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%B6$%6"&))6$%6=+6
&/-$-&6&[&A=.2&)*6".=>6=>&6G&)%>6&)&A=+,$=&#6

N=,+/-6A+,I+,$=&6-+2&,/$/A&6$,,$/-&'&/=%6"&,&6&%=$().%>&D60,+'6
=>&6+3=%&=#6?%6I$,=6+06=>.%B6$6H+,I+,$=&6S+2&,/$/A&6H+''.==&&B6
/+"64/+"/6$%6=>&6?3D.=6H+''.==&&B6"$%6&%=$().%>&D6=+6$D2.%&6=>&6
H+''.%%.+/6$/D6=>&6H>.&06<J&A3=.2&6+/6'$==&,%6+06K/$/A&B6$3D.=6
$/D6A+,I+,$=&6-+2&,/$/A&#6

]/6+,D&,6=+6&/%3,&6=>$=6H+''.%%.+/&,%6$/D6%&/.+,6+iA.$)%6A+3)D6
D,$"63I+/6$6".D&6,$/-&6+06&JI&,.&/A&6=+6$%%.%=6=>&'6./6=>&6
D.%A>$,-&6+06=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%603/A=.+/%B6./6F+2&'(&,6!77_6
=>&6H+''.%%.+/6$II+./=&D6./D&I&/D&/=6$D2.%&,%6=+6$A=6./6$/6
./D&I&/D&/=6/+/Z&J&A3=.2&6A$I$A.=*#65>&6./D&I&/D&/=6$D2.%&,%6
>$2&6+[&,&D6A+/%=,3A=.2&6A>$))&/-&%6$A,+%%6$))6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6
(3%./&%%6".=>6$62.&"6=+6&/%3,./-6=>$=6$))6$%I&A=%6+06%=,$=&-*6$/D6
D&).2&,*6"&,&6%A,3=./.%&D60+,6&[&A=.2&/&%%6$/D6&iA.&/A*#65>&*6
>$2&6A+/=,.(3=&D6=+6=>&6'+/.=+,./-6+06=>&6I&,0+,'$/A&6$/D6
I,+-,&%%6+06=>&6+,-$/.%$=.+/B6./A)3D./-6=>&63%&6+06>3'$/6$/D6
K/$/A.$)6,&%+3,A&%B6$/D6'$./=$./&D6$6A,.=.A$)6+2&,2.&"6+06=>&6
+,-$/.%$=.+/R%6K/$/A.$)6A+/=,+)%6$/D6I,+A&D3,&%#6

2'"$0+(2'"&8.
H>.&06<J&A3=.2&6$/D6H)&,46

+06=>&6?%%&'()*

=?+0"#$%&*(@$0+8#%0"#+A

@$"&&+(B+9"&
H>.&06hI&,$=./-6hiA&,

2%&&$+(2%8C-:0&
b&$D6+06<%=$=&%6$/D6]H5

6#+9+&(=>@%&%7;:+
b&$D6+06?%%&'()*6
a&%+3,A&%

!%&(D4$'.,
b&$D6+06<J=&,/$)6
H+''3/.A$=.+/%

)**+,-'.(B:*$&+**(
@$0+8#%0"#+A

)50$"&(20%,?#%&
d.,&A=+,6+06?%%&'()*6
V3%./&%%

6:'"/"(E"'*#+"5
b&$D6+06?%%&'()*6
H+''.==&&%

F"$0(G"00.HI%&+*
b&$D6+065,$/%)$=.+/6
m6a&I+,=./-6N&,2.A&

J"#;0.&(G%##+0
b&$D6+06=>&6P&'(&,%R6

a&%&$,A>6N&,2.A&

6$"&(1$'C$&*
b&$D6+06c&-.%)$=.+/6

m6H>$'(&,6N&,2.A&%

K+7"'(6+09$8+*(
@$0+8#%0"#+A

J+$#;(B:*;
d.,&A=+,6+06c&-$)6N&,2.A&%

E+"5(%/(2%0?%0"#+(L&$#A

20"$7(6#+?;+&*%&

U&("

VJ'Q("82'FGJJ
VJ'Q("82'FGJG
VJ'Q("82'FGGW
VJ'Q("82'FGGX
VJ'Q("82'FGGH

Y0$7&"'#@'
5%(>I%#%(/'
2&(*8#0)%

VZF
VHW
V[F
VFJ
VGG

C0//P%,$&'
&\0,.(/&)%5

VF[LHF'
V[ZLVX
VZXLFG
VGXLJJ
FX[LH]

Page 47



;;N&A=.+/67!L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-*6$/D6+,-$/.%$=.+/

M&5+?+&5+&#("59$*+0*(#%(#;+(2%,,$**$%&

Q(,"'R(")&5
P$.,6V$,/&%6>+)D%6$6/3'(&,6+06/+/Z&J&A3=.2&6D.,&A=+,%>.I%6
$/D6.%6=>&60+,'&,6H>$.,6+06n$/=.+%6I)A6$/D6P$/$-./-6d.,&A=+,6
+06G++)"+,=>%6I)A#6N>&6>$%6>&)D6/+/Z&J&A3=.2&6D.,&A=+,%>.I%6
$=6=>&6d&I$,='&/=6+065,$D&6$/D6]/D3%=,*6$/D6=>&6H$(./&=6hiA&#

?,82("*'A(/.&"%'
a.A>$,D6H$)2&,=6,&k+./&D6=>&6d&I$,='&/=60+,6]/=&,/$=.+/$)6
d&2&)+I'&/=6Wd@]dX6./6?3-3%=6!77Q6$%6d.,&A=+,ZS&/&,$)60+,6@./$/A&6
$/D6H+,I+,$=&6e&,0+,'$/A&6$0=&,6="+6$/D6$6>$)06*&$,%6$=6=>&6@++D6
N=$/D$,D%6?-&/A*6W@N?XB6">&,&6>&6>&)D6=>&6I+%=6+06d.,&A=+,6+06
N=,$=&-*6$/D6a&%+3,A&%#6a.A>$,DR%6)$%=6,+)&6./6d@]dB6(&0+,&6'+2./-6
=+6=>&6@N?B6"$%6$%6d.,&A=+,6+06@./$/A&6$/D6H+,I+,$=&6e&,0+,'$/A&#6
a.A>$,D6.%6$6\3$).K&D6P$/$-&'&/=6?AA+3/=$/=B6$/D6>$%6>&)D6$6
/3'(&,6+06/+/Z&J&A3=.2&6,+)&%6".=>./6=>&6I3().A6%&A=+,#

D,$'^),-2%#)
5.'6o/.->=+/6.%6A3,,&/=)*6V3%./&%%6N+)3=.+/%6d&).2&,*6d.,&A=+,6$=6
H+'I$/.&%6b+3%&#6V&0+,&6k+././-6H+'I$/.&%6b+3%&6./6!77_6$%6
d.,&A=+,6+06@./$/A&B65.'6%I&/=6=&/6*&$,%6".=>65&%A+6I)A6./6$62$,.&=*6
+06K/$/A&6,+)&%B6)$==&,)*6(&./-6,&%I+/%.()&60+,6=>&.,6po6%>$,&D6
%&,2.A&%6+I&,$=.+/#6e,.+,6=+6=>.%6>&6"$%6$/6<J&A3=.2&6d.,&A=+,6".=>6
S+)D'$/6N$A>%6./6=>&.,6H$I.=$)6P$,4&=6d.2.%.+/#

!"#@&55#"'?#7&"%'!,8;("*
e,+0&%%+,6a+(&,=6e.A4$,D6>$%6>&)D6$6)$,-&6/3'(&,6+06I3().A6
$II+./='&/=%B6'$/*6./6=>&6K&)D6+06>&$)=>6$/D6"&))(&./-#6?'+/-6
>.%6A3,,&/=6$II+./='&/=%B6>&6.%6$6@&))+"6+06=>&6a+*$)6N+A.&=*6+06
P&D.A./&#6b&6.%6$6%A.&/=.%=6(*6($A4-,+3/D#

N:+*#$%&*(#%(#;+()**+,-'.(2%,,$**$%&

]/6$AA+,D$/A&6".=>6N=$/D./-6h,D&,%B6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6'$*6
=$()&6\3&%=.+/%6=+6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6$(+3=6$/*6'$==&,6,&)$=./-6
=+6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6,&%I+/%.(.).=.&%L0+,6",.==&/6+,6+,$)6$/%"&,#

:",%%&)'\0&5%,#)5
G,.==&/6\3&%=.+/%6$,&6=$()&D6(*6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6$/D6=>&6
H+''.%%.+/R%6%&A,&=$,.$=6A+''.%%.+/%6$6D,$0=6,&I)*#6h/A&6
A)&$,&D6(*6=>&6,&)&2$/=6d.,&A=+,B6.=6.%6%3('.==&D6=+6=>&6?%%&'()*6
H+''.%%.+/&,6".=>6I+,=0+).+6,&%I+/%.(.).=*60+,6=>&6%3(k&A=6'$==&,6
0+,6$II,+2$)#65>&6$-,&&D6,&%I+/%&6.%6I,+2.D&D6=+6=>&6P&'(&,6
">+6=$()&D6=>&6\3&%=.+/6$/D6.%6I3().%>&D6$%6I$,=6+06=>&6a&A+,D6
+06e,+A&&D./-%#6

Page 48



;!

]/6=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*B6:96",.==&/6\3&%=.+/%6"&,&6%3('.==&D6
+/6$6,$/-&6+06%3(k&A=%B6./A)3D./-Y
6L =>&6A+%=6+06?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6$A=.2.=.&%6$=6H>,.%='$%B6%=$[6
$"$*6D$*%B6?%%&'()*6,&(,$/D./-B6G&)%>6)$/-3$-&6=3.=.+/B6N&/&DD6
,&I$.,6(.))%6$/D6=>&6?%%&'()*6e+).A&6p/.=^
6L =>&6/3'(&,%6+06%=$[6D.%A.I)./&DB6%3%I&/D&D6+,6D.%'.%%&D^
6L D.%$(.).=*6$AA&%%6=+6+3,6(3.)D./-%^
6L %3%=$./$(.).=*6.%%3&%#

N"(/'\0&5%,#)5
5.'&6.%6'$D&6$2$.)$()&6./6&2&,*60+3,6"&&4%6=>&6?%%&'()*6'&&=%60+,6
P&'(&,%6=+6$%46+,$)6\3&%=.+/%6,&)$=&D6=+6H+''.%%.+/6(3%./&%%#6]/6
=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*B6H+''.%%.+/&,%6$-,&&D6=>$=6+/&6H+''.%%.+/&,6
"+3)D6$/%"&,6$))6\3&%=.+/%6&$A>6'+/=>6+/6,+=$=.+/6,$=>&,6=>$/6
,&%I+/D./-6./D.2.D3$))*6=+6%./-)&6\3&%=.+/%6+/6=>&.,6I+,=0+).+6$,&$%#6
q3&%=.+/%6$,&6=$()&D6$=6)&$%=6K2&B6(3=6/+=6'+,&6=>$/6=&/B6"+,4./-6
D$*%6(&0+,&6=>&*6$,&6=+6(&6$/%"&,&D6$/D6=>&6+,D&,6+06+,$)6\3&%=.+/%6
.%6D&=&,'./&D6(*6,$/D+'6%>3r&6./6=>&65$()&6hiA&#6

5>&6%&A,&=$,.$=6=+6=>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6A+''.%%.+/%6
D,$0=6,&%I+/%&%6$/D6($A4-,+3/D6(,.&K/-%60+,6&$A>6+06=>&6\3&%=.+/%6
$/D6=>&%&6$,&6=>&/6%&/=6=+6=>&6H+''.%%.+/&,60+,6K/$)6$II,+2$)#6e,.+,6
=+6=>&6e)&/$,*6%&%%.+/B6(,.&K/-6%&%%.+/%6$,&6$,,$/-&D6".=>6?%%&'()*6
%=$[6$%6/&A&%%$,*#6@.0=*Z0+3,6+,$)6\3&%=.+/%6"&,&6$/%"&,&D6./6
=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*6$/D6"&,&6=$()&D6(*6P&'(&,%60,+'6$))6I$,=.&%#6
h,$)6\3&%=.+/%6A+2&,&D6$6,$/-&6+06%3(k&A=%B6./A)3D./-Y
6L =>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6,+)&6./6=>&6,&0&,&/D3'6+/6)$"Z'$4./-6I+"&,%6
0+,6=>&6?%%&'()*^
6L =>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6$//3$)6(3D-&=6$/D6$D'./.%=,$=.2&6%$2./-%^
6L %A>++)62.%.=%6=+6=>&6?%%&'()*^
6L A$=&,./-^
6L %=$[6A$,6I$,4./-^
6L D.%%+)3=.+/^
6L ]H56I,+k&A=%^
6L I,+-,&%%6+06=>&6./D&I&/D&/=6a&'3/&,$=.+/6V+$,D#

_"-&)%'\0&5%,#)5
?6P&'(&,6'$*6%3('.=6$6,&\3&%=60+,6$/63,-&/=6\3&%=.+/6=+6(&6
$/%"&,&D6(*6=>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6(3=6/+/&6"&,&6,&\3&%=&D6
./6=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*#

Page 49



;ON&A=.+/67OL6666666666666666666666 P.)&%=+/&%6$/D6>.->).->=%

<;$05()**+,-'.O(*%,+(%/(#;+(,$'+*#%&+*(
"&5(;$7;'$7;#*

FGGH

Q(3

5>&6?%%&'()*6>&)D6.=%6K,%=6e)&/$,*6
'&&=./-6+06=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*6
./6P$*B60+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&63/D&,6=>&6
S+2&,/'&/=6+06G$)&%6?A=6!77MB6
$/D6=>&6)$,-&,6A+,I+,$=&6(+D*6
"$%60+,'$))*6%&I$,$=&D6./=+6=>&6
F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6$/D6
=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6$/D6d&I3=*6
e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6"&,&6&)&A=&D#

`0)&

5>&6a+*$)6hI&/./-6+06=>&6
5>.,D6?%%&'()*6(*6b&,6P$k&%=*6
5>&6q3&&/B6bab65>&6d34&6+06
<D./(3,->B6bab65>&6e,./A&6+06
G$)&%6$/D6bab65>&6d3A>&%%6
+06H+,/"$))6=++46I)$A&6./6=>&6
I,&%&/A&6+06P&'(&,%B6=>&6
k3D.A.$,*B6,&I,&%&/=$=.2&%60,+'6
)+A$)6-+2&,/'&/=B6%I&$4&,%6+06
)./4&D6poB6H+''+/"&$)=>6$/D6
<3,+I&$/6I$,).$'&/=%B6D.I)+'$=%6
$/D6$/6$))ZG$)&%6&)&'&/=6+06
%&/.+,6A.=.f&/%6$/D6*+3=>6
,&I,&%&/=$=.2&%#6

H+''.%%.+/&,%6"&,&6&)&A=&D6
$/D6'&=60+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&#6

5>&6K,%=6S+2&,/'&/=ZI,+I+%&D6
c&-.%)$=.2&6H+'I&=&/A&6h,D&,6
"$%6./=,+D3A&D6W=>&6?DD.=.+/$)6
c&$,/./-6F&&D%6h,D&,6!778X#65>&6
K,%=6P&'(&,%R6($))+=%6"&,&6>&)DL
"+/6(*6?//6j+/&%6Wd+'&%=.A6@.,&6
N$0&=*6c&-.%)$=.2&6H+'I&=&/A&6
h,D&,X6$/D6j&//*6a$/D&,%+/6
Wb&$)=>*6<$=./-6./6NA>++)%6
P&$%3,&X#

`0/3

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6$-,&&D6.=%6
%=,$=&-.A60,$'&"+,460+,6=>&6
5>.,D6?%%&'()*B6.D&/=.0*./-6K2&6
4&*6-+$)%6$/D6.=%62.%.+/6=+6'$4&6
=>&6?%%&'()*6$/6$AA&%%.()&6$/D6
&[&A=.2&6I$,).$'&/=$,*6(+D*6=>$=6
./%I.,&%6=>&6A+/KD&/A&6+06=>&6
I&+I)&6+06G$)&%#6

5>&6K,%=6S+2&,/'&/=ZI,+I+%&D6
P&$%3,&6"$%6./=,+D3A&D6WFbN6
a&D,&%%6P&$%3,&6!778X#6

5>&6N3%=$./$(.).=*6H+''.==&&6
>&)D6$60+,'$)6'&&=./-6$=6=>&6
a+*$)6G&)%>6N>+"L=>&6K,%=60+,'$)6
'&&=./-6+06$6A+''.==&&6+06=>&6
5>.,D6?%%&'()*6+3=%.D&6H$,D.[#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6G&)%>6c$/-3$-&6
NA>&'&60+,6!77_L;;6"$%6
I3().%>&DB6%&==./-6+3=6=>&6
?%%&'()*R%6$'(.=.+/6=+6(&6$6=,3)*6
(.)./-3$)6+,-$/.%$=.+/6$/D6I)$A./-6
(.)./-3$).%'6$=6=>&6>&$,=6
+06&2&,*=>./-6.=6D+&%#

1&6%&$7&"

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6-$2&6
$6%I&&A>6'$,4./-6=>&6=&/=>6
$//.2&,%$,*6+06=>&6,&0&,&/D3'6
+/6D&2+)3=.+/6./6G$)&%B6$/D6A$))&D6
0+,6=>&6=&,'%6?%%&'()*6$/D6G&)%>6
S+2&,/'&/=6=+6(&6$D+I=&D6=+6
'$4&6.=6&$%.&,60+,6=>&6I3().A6=+6
3/D&,%=$/D6=>&6D.[&,&/=6,+)&%#

N8%#7&"

hI&,$=.+/6V)$A46n+=&6"$%6
)$3/A>&D6=+6>&)I6$DD,&%%6
=>&6D&KA.=6./6VP<6D&'+A,$=.A6
I$,=.A.I$=.+/6./6G$)&%#6

5>&6N&/&DD6"&)A+'&D6.=%6
:77B777=>62.%.=+,LP$3,$6
V3A4)&*B6">+6"$%62.%.=./-6=>&6
?%%&'()*6+/6>&,6_;%=6(.,=>D$*#6

5>&6@./$/A&6H+''.==&&6
%A,3=./.%&D6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6
(3D-&=60+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&B6
&JI,&%%./-6.=%6%3II+,=60+,6
=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6+I&/6$II,+$A>6
=+6.=%6(3D-&=6I,+A&%%6$/D6
".))./-/&%%6=+6I$,=.A.I$=&603))*6
./6+/-+./-6%A,3=./*#6

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6"$%6,&A+-/.%&D6
=>,+3->6=>&6d.%$(.).=*65"+65.A4%6
?"$,DB6">.A>6D&'+/%=,$=&%6
&JA&))&/A&6./6D.2&,%.=*6./6=>&6"$*6
"&6,&A,3.=6$/D6D&2&)+I6D.%$()&D6
%=$[#

Page 50



;9

Y#.&$7&"

5>&6@./$/A&6H+''.==&&6
%A,3=./.%&D6=>&6G&)%>6
S+2&,/'&/=R%6(3D-&=6I,+I+%$)%6
0+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&B6'&&=./-6
K2&6=.'&%6./6=+=$)6$/D6'$4./-6
,&A+''&/D$=.+/%B6%&2&,$)6+06
">.A>6"&,&6$AA&I=&D6(*6=>&6
G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=#6

@+3,6./D&I&/D&/=6$D2.%&,%6"&,&6
$II+./=&D6=+6&/%3,&6=>$=6=>&6
?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6$/D6%&/.+,6
'$/$-&'&/=6"&,&6%3II+,=&D6
$/D6A+/%=,3A=.2&)*6A>$))&/-&D6./6
=>&.,6,+)&%#6

5>&6N&/&DD6$AA&%%.(.).=*6,&I+,=6
"$%6,&Z&J$'./&D6)&$D./-6=+6
$AA&%%.(.).=*6.'I,+2&'&/=%6
(&./-6'$D&#

e3().A6?[$.,%6H*',36>&)D6$6
-$)$6D.//&,6./6=>&6e.&,>&$D6=+6
A&)&(,$=&6.=%6K,%=6$//.2&,%$,*#

9&8&$7&"

5>&6H+,I+,$=&6S+2&,/$/A&6
H+''.==&&6'&=60+,6=>&6K,%=6
=.'&6=+6$D2.%&6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6
+/6,.%4B6$3D.=B6-++D6-+2&,/$/A&6
$/D6K/$/A.$)6I,$A=.A&#65>&6
N=$=&'&/=6+/6]/=&,/$)6H+/=,+)6
"$%6./=,+D3A&DB6">.A>6"+3)D6
(&A+'&6$/6./=&-,$)6I$,=6+06
=>&6+,-$/.%$=.+/R%6I,+A&%%&%6
=>,+3->+3=6=>&6*&$,#6

5>&6cSV56%=$[6/&="+,46"$%6
D&2&)+I&D6=+6I,+2.D&6./0+,'$)6
%3II+,=6=+6cSV56&'I)+*&&%6$/D6
I$,=.A.I$=&6./6=>&6&\3$).=*6.'I$A=6
$%%&%%'&/=6I,+A&%%#6

5>&6@./$/A&6H+''.==&&6,&I+,=&D6
0+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&6+/6=>&6G&)%>6
S+2&,/'&/=R%6(3D-&=#6

5>&6K,%=6./D&I&/D&/=6I$/&)6+/6
@./$/A.$)6N3II+,=60+,6?%%&'()*6
P&'(&,%6'&=60+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&#6

5>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6?//3$)6a&I+,=6
+/6<\3$).=*6"$%6%A,3=./.%&D60+,6
=>&6K,%=6=.'&6(*6=>&6<\3$).=*6+06
hII+,=3/.=*6H+''.==&&#

'''

Page 51



;:N&A=.+/67OL6666666666666666666666 P.)&%=+/&%6$/D6>.->).->=%

FGGX

`()0("3

5>&6b&$)=>6$/D6G&))(&./-6
H+''.==&&6>&)D6$6N&/&DD6
A+/%3)=$=.+/6+/6.=%6./\3.,*6./=+6
e,&%3'&D6H+/%&/=60+,6h,-$/6
d+/$=.+/B6./2.=./-6'&'(&,%6+06
=>&6I3().A6=+6-.2&6=>&.,62.&"%#6
5>&6H+''.==&&6"+,4&D6".=>6
=>&6<D3A$=.+/6=&$'6=+6=$4&6=>&6
A+/%3)=$=.+/6./=+6%A>++)%#6

5>&6<\3$).=*6+06hII+,=3/.=*6
H+''.==&&63/D&,=++46$6,&2.&"6
+06=>&6,&%3)=%6+06.=%6./\3.,*6./=+6
N&,2.A&6e,+2.%.+/60+,6d.%$()&D6
C+3/-6e&+I)&B6"+,4./-6".=>6=>&6
%$'&6-,+3I6+06D.%$()&D6*+3/-6
I&+I)&6=+6.D&/=.0*6">$=6>$D6
A>$/-&D#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6"&)A+'&D6
=>&6n.A&6e,&%.D&/=6+06=>&6<3,+I&$/6
H+''.%%.+/6=+6=>&6N&/&DD#6?6
H+''.==&&6+06=>&6G>+)&6?%%&'()*6
"$%6A+/2&/&D60+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&6=+6
$))+"6P&'(&,%6=>&6+II+,=3/.=*6=+6
&/-$-&6./6D&($=&6".=>6P%6P$,-+=6
G$))%=,s'#6

5>&6K,%=6?%%&'()*6P&$%3,&6
A+'I)&=&D6=>&6K,%=6%=$-&6+06=>&6
)&-.%)$=.2&6I,+A&%%6">&/6.=6"$%6
D&($=&D6./6e)&/$,*#65>&6FbN6
a&D,&%%6WG$)&%X6P&$%3,&6$.'&D6=+6
'$4&6.=6&$%.&,6$/D6\3.A4&,60+,6FbN6
I$=.&/=%6=+6A)$.'6A+'I&/%$=.+/6
">&/6=>&.,6=,&$='&/=6-+&%6",+/-#6

hI&,$=.+/6V)$A46n+=&6"+/6=>&6
>.->)*6$AA)$.'&D6H>$//&)69l
b$/%$,D6N+A.&=*6e+).=.A$)6?"$,D#6

5>&6K,%=6k+./=6'&&=./-6(&="&&/6
$/6?%%&'()*6A+''.==&&6$/D6=>&6
b+3%&6+06H+''+/%6G&)%>6?[$.,%6
H+''.==&&6"$%6>&)D6=+6%A,3=./.%&6
I,+I+%&D6)&-.%)$=.+/6,&)$=./-6=+6
D+'.A.).$,*6A$,&#6

?/6./D&I&/D&/=6a&'3/&,$=.+/6
H+''.==&&6"$%6&%=$().%>&D6
=+6A+/%.D&,6$/D6'$4&6
,&A+''&/D$=.+/%6+/6=>&6I$*6
$/D6I&,0+,'$/A&6+06%&/.+,6+iA.$)%6
./6$6=,$/%I$,&/=6$/D6,+(3%=6"$*#6

`H*0/&".DR6"$%6)$3/A>&DB6$6
'&A>$/.%'6=+6-.2&6?%%&'()*6
%=$[6$6A>$/A&6=+6>$2&6=>&.,6%$*6
+/6A+,I+,$=&6=+I.A%#

C&7"0("3

j+/$=>$/6P+,-$/6?P6=$()&D6$6
I,+I+%&D6h,D&,6,&)$=./-6=+6,.->=%6
0+,6P&/=$)6b&$)=>6I$=.&/=%L=>&6
K,%=6P&'(&,ZI,+I+%&D6c&-.%)$=.2&6
H+'I&=&/A&6h,D&,6=+6,&$A>6
=>.%6%=$-&#6

5>&6K,%=6c&-.%)$=.2&6H+'I&=&/A&6
h,D&,6"$%6$II,+2&D6(*6=>&6
?%%&'()*L$6S+2&,/'&/=Z
I,+I+%&D6h,D&,6,&)$=./-6
=+6&D3A$=.+/6$/D6=,$././-#6

5>&6H>.&06c&-$)6?D2.%&,6>&)D6
$6%&'./$,6./=+6$AA&%%6=+6G&)%>6
)&-.%)$=.+/B6)++4./-6$=6"$*%6
=+6&/%3,&6&$%*6$/D6&[&A=.2&6
$AA&%%6=+6,&).$()&6./0+,'$=.+/6
$(+3=6G&)%>6)&-.%)$=.+/6$/D6
=>&6%=$=3=+,*6I+"&,%6+06G&)%>6
P./.%=&,%#

Q("82

5>&6K,%=6P&'(&,ZI,+I+%&D6
P&$%3,&6"$%6./=,+D3A&D6
Wb&$)=>*6<$=./-6./6NA>++)%6!778X#6

5>&6P&'(&,%R6a&%&$,A>6N&,2.A&6
./=,+D3A&D6$/6+/)./&6=,$A4./-6
%&,2.A&B6D&2&)+I&D6=+6>&)I6=>&6
I3().A6=+6(&==&,63/D&,%=$/D6=>&6
"+,46+06%A,3=./*6$/D6)&-.%)$=.+/6
A+''.==&&%#6

?0=&,6$/6+I&/6,&A,3.='&/=6
I,+A&%%6%3II+,=&D6(*6?%%&'()*6
%=$[6$/D6A>$.,&D6(*6?)3/6H$.,/%6
?PB6=>&6?%%&'()*6/+'./$=&D6
e&=&,65*/D$))6$%6e3().A6N&,2.A&%6
h'(3D%'$/60+,6G$)&%L=>&6
$II+./='&/=6"$%6A+/K,'&D6
(*6b&,6P$k&%=*65>&6q3&&/#6

5>&6,&I+,=6+06=>&6K,%=6
./D&I&/D&/=6I$/&)6+/6@./$/A.$)6
N3II+,=60+,6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6
"$%6I3().%>&DB6'$4./-6
,&A+''&/D$=.+/%6$(+3=6
P&'(&,%R6%$)$,.&%6">.A>6"&,&6
$AA&I=&D6(*6=>&6H+''.%%.+/#

'''

Page 52



;M

=6",/

5>&6K,%=6S+2&,/'&/=ZI,+I+%&D6
h,D&,6,&A&.2&D6a+*$)6?II,+2$)6
W5>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6
G$)&%6Wc&-.%)$=.2&6H+'I&=&/A&X6
W<D3A$=.+/6$/D65,$././-X6
h,D&,6!778X#6

N.$'(,6b*"&)6)$3/A>&D6$%6
<3,+I&R%6K,%=6D&D.A$=&D6*+3=>6
D&($=./-6A>$'(&,B6$A=./-6$%6$6
g$-%>.I6&J$'I)&6+06=>&6?%%&'()*R%6
I,+$A=.2&6&/-$-&'&/=6".=>6
*+3/-6I&+I)&63%./-6=>&6)$=&%=6
=&A>/+)+-.&%#6

5>&6?%%&'()*R%6&ZI&=.=.+/%6%*%=&'6
"$%6./=,+D3A&DB6)$3/A>&D6(*6e&=&,6
V)$A46?PB6,&%3)=./-6./6$6%.-/.KA$/=6
./A,&$%&6./6=>&6/3'(&,6+06
%3('.==&D6I&=.=.+/%#65>&6?%%&'()*6
$)%+6)$3/A>&D6%&/&DD#=2B6&Z0+,3'%B6
$/D6$6\3.A462+=&60$A.).=*60+,6+/)./&6
A+''.==&&6A+/%3)=$=.+/%#6

a&03,(.%>'&/=6"+,46./65t6b*"&)6
"$%63/D&,=$4&/6".=>6%3%=$./$(.).=*6
./6'./DB63%./-6%&/%+,Z$A=.2$=&D6
).->=./-B6A$,I&=./-63%./-6::6I&,6
A&/=6,&A*A)&D6'$=&,.$)B6.'I,+2&D6
&iA.&/A*6+06=>&6>&$=./-lA++)./-6
%*%=&'%B6)+A$))*Z%3II).&D603,/.=3,&6
$/D6(&==&,63%&6+06%I$A&#6e$I&,6
=+"&)%6"&,&6,&'+2&D60,+'6$))6
=+.)&=60$A.).=.&%B6=+6(&6,&I)$A&D6
".=>6&/&,-*6&iA.&/=6>$/D6D,.&,%B6
A3==./-6%+'&69LM6=+//&%6I&,6
$//3'6+06)$/DK))6"$%=&#6

?6P$/$-&'&/=6V+$,D6"$%6
0+,'&D6=+6,&I)$A&6=>&6<J&A3=.2&6
V+$,D#65>&6/&"6V+$,D6./A)3D&D6
b&$D%6+06N&,2.A&6$%6"&))6$%6
d.,&A=+,%6$/D6=>&6H>.&06<J&A3=.2&#6]=6
>$D6,&%I+/%.(.).=*60+,6'$/$-&'&/=6
$/D6+I&,$=.+/$)6$/D6I+).A*6'$==&,%#6

5>&6a+*$)6V$D-&6+06G$)&%6"$%6
$II,+2&D60+,63%&6+/6I3().%>&D6
?%%&'()*6P&$%3,&%#65>&6&'()&'6
.%6D.%=./A=.2&)*6G&)%>6./6A>$,$A=&,6
$/D6=>&,&0+,&6$II,+I,.$=&60+,6
'$,4./-6=>&63/.\3&6A>$,$A=&,6
+06?%%&'()*6P&$%3,&%6$%6G&)%>6
)&-.%)$=.+/#

Q(3

5>&6FbN6a&D,&%%6WG$)&%X6P&$%3,&6
!7786(&A$'&6=>&6K,%=6I.&A&6+06
I,.'$,*6)&-.%)$=.+/6I$%%&D6(*6=>&6
F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*B6=>&6K,%=6G&)%>6
)$"6=+6(&6I$%%&D6%./A&6=>&6'.DD)&6
$-&%6$/D6=>&6K,%=6(.)./-3$)6)$"6
&2&,6=+6(&6I$%%&D6./6V,.=$./#

?,="+,46(*6d*)$/6b$''+/D6
A+/%.%=./-6+06=./I)$=&6I+,=,$.=%6
+06V$,+/&%%65>$=A>&,6$/D6?/&3,./6
V&2$/6A$3%&D6D&($=&6$/D6
A+/=,+2&,%*6">&/6./%=$))&D6
$=6=>&60,+/=6+06=>&6N&/&DD#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6-$2&6$6
%I&&A>6'$,4./-6+/&6*&$,6+06
=>&6/&"6D&2+)3=.+/6%&==)&'&/=B6
%$*./-6=>$=6>&6"$%6TI)&$%&D6".=>6
=>&6"$*6"&6>$2&6,.%&/6=+6=>&6
A>$))&/-&%6+06=>&6/&"6)$"Z'$4./-6
H+/%=.=3=.+/6+06G$)&%U#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6$/D6?D,.$/6
H,+'I=+/6-$2&6&2.D&/A&6=+6
=>&6b+3%&6+06H+''+/%6j3%=.A&6
H+''.==&&6$%6I$,=6+06.=%6./\3.,*6
./=+6!"#$%&'($)*+,+-".,-"+$)#

`0)&

5>&6?%%&'()*6"&)A+'&D6bab6
5>&6e,./A&6+06G$)&%6=+6=>&6
?%%&'()*6=+6%I&$46$=6=>&6`@3/D./-6
@3=3,&%R6A+))+\3.3'6+,-$/.%&D6
(*6=>&6GHn?6./6=>&6e.&,>&$D#6
b&6$)%+6+iA.$))*6+I&/&D6N.$'(,6
b*"&)#6

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6)$3/A>&D6$6
I3().A6A+/%3)=$=.+/6+/6.=%6d,$0=6
N./-)&6<\3$).=.&%6NA>&'&6$/D6
?A=.+/6e)$/#6

5>&6?%%&'()*R%6?3D.=6H+''.==&&6
%A,3=./.%&D6+iA.$)%6+/6=>&
(3.)D./-6+06=>&6N&/&DD6./6$6
A>$))&/-./-6(3=6I+%.=.2&6%&%%.+/#6
5>&6H+''.==&&60+A3%&D6+/6=>&6
%3%=$./$(.).=*6+06=>&6(3.)D./-B6
./A)3D./-6.=%6&/&,-*6A+/%3'I=.+/#

`0/3

5>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6
G$)&%6H+''.%%.+/6I3().%>&D6.=%6
K,%=6$//3$)6,&I+,=#6

5>&6e&=.=.+/%6H+''.==&&6
A&)&(,$=&D6$6%3AA&%%03)6K,%=6*&$,6
".=>6$6I3().A6'&&=./-6$=6=>&6a+*$)6
G&)%>6N>+"#6h2&,6;776I&=.=.+/%6
"&,&6,&A&.2&D6D3,./-6.=%6K,%=6*&$,#

Page 53



;_N&A=.+/67OL6666666666666666666666 P.)&%=+/&%6$/D6>.->).->=%

=0-05%

?/6./D&I&/D&/=6I$/&)B6A>$.,&D6(*6
N.,6a+-&,6j+/&%B6"$%6$II+./=&D6=+6
,&2.&"6=>&6%*%=&'6+06?%%&'()*6
P&'(&,%R6I$*6$/D6$))+"$/A&%#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6"&)A+'&D6
G&)%>6+)*'I.A6>&,+&%6=+6=>&6
N&/&DD6">&/6-+)D6'&D$)).%=%6
F.A+)$6H++4&6$/D6S&,$./=65>+'$%6
$/D6%.)2&,6'&D$)).%=6d$2.D6d$2.&%6
$,,.2&D60+))+"./-6$/6+I&/Z=+I6
(3%6=+3,6+06H$,D.[6V$*#

1&6%&$7&"

?/6+3=,&$A>6&D3A$=.+/6%&,2.A&6
"$%6)$3/A>&D60+,6%+3=>6G$)&%#6

?/6?%%&'()*ZA+''.%%.+/&D6
%3,2&*6+06I3().A63/D&,%=$/D./-6
+06=>&6I+).=.A$)6)$/D%A$I&6./6G$)&%6
"$%6I3().%>&D6%>+"./-6=>$=6+2&,6
_76I&,6A&/=6+06I&+I)&6%3II+,=&D6
&.=>&,6I$,=.$)6+,603))6D&2+)3=.+/6+06
I+"&,60+,6G$)&%#6

Y#.&$7&"

5>&6?%%&'()*6>+%=&D6$6
A+/0&,&/A&6+/6e&,%I&A=.2&%6+/6
C+3=>6e$,=.A.I$=.+/B6$.'&D6$=6
D&2&)+I./-63%&03)6)./4%6$A,+%%6
$6/3'(&,6+06po6+,-$/.%$=.+/%B6
$))6".=>6./=&,&%=%6./6&/A+3,$-./-6
*+3/-6I&+I)&6=+6&/-$-&6./6=>&6
D&'+A,$=.A6I,+A&%%#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6)$3/A>&D6.=%6N./-)&6
<\3$).=*6NA>&'&#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6$A>.&2&D6c&2&)6
:6S,&&/6d,$-+/6</2.,+/'&/=$)6
P$/$-&'&/=6N*%=&'60+,6=>&6
">+)&6&%=$=&B6=>&6>.->&%=6)&2&)6
=>$=6A$/6(&6$==$./&D6./6=>&6po#6

9&8&$7&"

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6"&)A+'&D6
>.%6A+3/=&,I$,=%60,+'6NA+=)$/D6
$/D6F+,=>&,/6],&)$/D6=+6=>&6
?%%&'()*6=+6>&)I6(3.)D6$/D6
%=,&/-=>&/6=>&6A)+%&6"+,4./-6
,&)$=.+/%>.I%6(&="&&/6=>&6po6
D&2+)2&D6)&-.%)$=3,&%#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6"+/6=>&6
G$)&%6C&$,(++46!7786G&)%>6
e+).=.A.$/6+06=>&6C&$,6?"$,D6
0+,6>.%6,+)&6./6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6
=,$/%0+,'$=.+/6./=+6$6=,3&6
)&-.%)$=3,&B6I$%%./-6G&)%>6)$"%6
3/D&,6.=%6/&"6I+"&,%#6

5>&6]/=&,/$=.+/$)6d$*6+06d.%$()&D6
e&+I)&6"$%6A&)&(,$=&D6$=6=>&6
?%%&'()*6".=>6$6I,+-,$''&6
./A)3D./-6$AA&%%.()&6I&,0+,'$/A&6
"+,4%>+I%B6I,&%&/=$=.+/%60,+'6
I$,$)*'I.$/%B6D.%A3%%.+/%6+/6
D.%$(.).=*6,.->=%6$/D6$6dnd6+/6=>&6
$AA&%%.(.).=*6+06I3().A6(3.)D./-%6
./6G$)&%#

Page 54



;8

Q(3

5&/=>6$//.2&,%$,*6+06=>&6
?%%&'()*#65>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6
>+%=&D6$6=&/=>6(.,=>D$*6I$,=*6
0+,6=&/6A>.)D,&/6A&)&(,$=./-6
=>&.,6(.,=>D$*%6$)+/-6".=>6=>&6
?%%&'()*6+/6;!6P$*6!77Q#6

5>&6'3)=.'&D.$6h3=,&$A>6V3%6
"$%6)$3/A>&D6$=6n&/3&6H*',36./6
c)$/D3D/+B6&/$()./-6I&+I)&60,+'6
$A,+%%6G$)&%6=+6)&$,/6'+,&6$(+3=6
>+"6=>&6?%%&'()*6"+,4%B6)&$2&6
2.D&+6'&%%$-&%60+,6P&'(&,%6$/D6
I,+2.D&6&2.D&/A&6=+6A+''.==&&6
./\3.,.&%#6

5>&6H>.)D,&/6$/D6C+3/-6e&+I)&6
H+''.==&&6=++46d&".6=>&6d,$-+/6
=+6=>&6p,DD6<.%=&DD0+D6./6H$,D.[6
=+6&/A+3,$-&6*+3/-6I&+I)&6=+6
>$2&6=>&.,6%$*6+/6=>&603=3,&6"+,46
+06=>&6?%%&'()*#

5>&6p,DD6<.%=&DD0+D6=++46I)$A&6
./6H$,D.[6V$*B6".=>6=>&6N&/&DD6
0+,'./-6I$,=6+06=>&6+iA.$)6
&2&/=B6>+%=./-6=>&6?,=6$/D6H,$0=6
&J>.(.=.+/6$/D6>+3%./-6+2&,69776
I.&A&%6+06$,=6$/D6=>&65n6%&=6
">.A>6(,+$DA$%=6).2&6&$A>6D$*#

`0)&

5>&6N3%=$./$(.).=*6H+''.==&&6
3/D&,=++46$/6./\3.,*6./=+6
g++D./-6./6G$)&%63%./-6=>&6
?%%&'()*6(3%6$/D6>+)D./-6I3().A6
'&&=./-%6$A,+%%6G$)&%6=+6>&$,6
D.,&A=)*60,+'6=>&6$[&A=&D6$,&$%#6
?6%>+,=62.D&+6+062+JI+I%6"$%6
I,+D3A&D6$%6I$,=6+06=>&6./\3.,*#

e,+$A=.2&6I3().A$=.+/6+06?%%&'()*6
P&'(&,%R6&JI&/%&%6+/6=>&6
?%%&'()*R%6"&(%.=&6(&-$/B6".=>6
!B7776>.=%6./6=>&6K,%=6!96>+3,%#6
5>&6_:7B777=>62.%.=+,6"$%6
"&)A+'&D6=+6=>&6N&/&DD#6

FGGW

`()0("3
'
5>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*6"$%6
/$'&D6$%6+/&6+06=>&6poR%6=+I6
;776-$*Z0,.&/D)*6&'I)+*&,%B6
$AA+,D./-6=+6N=+/&"$))R%6
G+,4I)$A&6<\3$).=*6]/D&J6!77QB6
'$4./-6=>&6?%%&'()*6G$)&%R%6
'+%=6.'I,+2&D6&'I)+*&,6./6
=&,'%6+06(&./-6$6-$*Z0,.&/D)*6
I)$A&6=+6"+,46$/D6=>&6%&A+/D6
'+%=6.'I,+2&D6&'I)+*&,6
./6=>&6po#

Q("82

?%%&'()*6'&D.$6,&)&$%&%6
(&-$/6=+6(&6$AA+'I$/.&D6(*6
(.)./-3$)6$3D.+6A).I%B6>&)I./-6
)+A$)6,$D.+6%=$=.+/%6=+6A$,,*6'+,&6
./0+,'$=.+/6$(+3=6=>&6?%%&'()*#6

5>&6e&=.=.+/%6H+''.==&&6
,&A&.2&D6.=%6;:7=>6I&=.=.+/60,+'6
?''$/0+,D6j3/.+,6S$=&"$*6H)3(B6
A$))./-60+,60,&&6%".''./-60+,6
A>.)D,&/6$/D6*+3/-6I&+I)&#6

=6",/

5>&6.A>$/-&6,&2.&"6"$%6
I3().%>&DB6A+/A&/=,$=./-6+/6
>+"6=>&6?%%&'()*6A+3)D63%&6
]56=+6.'I,+2&6=>&6"$*6.=6"+,4%6
$/D6>+"6.=6&/-$-&%6".=>6=>&6
I3().A#65>&6,&2.&"6"$%6($%&D6+/6
$6A+'I,&>&/%.2&6A+/%3)=$=.+/6
&J&,A.%&6".=>6P&'(&,%B6=>&.,6%=$[B6
?%%&'()*6%=$[6$/D6%=$4&>+)D&,%#6
G+,46(&-$/6+/6A>$/-&%6=+6]H56
/&="+,4%B6$/D6>$,D"$,&6$/D6
%+0="$,&6"&,&6.D&/=.K&D6=+6&/%3,&6
=>$=6=&A>/+)+-*603))*6%3II+,=&D6
=>&6?%%&'()*R%6"+,4#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6I3=6+3=6.=%6K,%=6
A$))60+,62.D&+6&2.D&/A&6$%6=>&6
N3%=$./$(.).=*6H+''.==&&64.A4&D6
+[6.=%6g++D./-6./\3.,*#

5>&6b+3%&6+06H+''+/%6
NI&$4&,R%6H+/0&,&/A&6>&)D6$6
0+,'$)6'&&=./-6$=6=>&
?%%&'()*B6$/D6>&$,D60,+'6=>&6
H+''.%%.+/&,60+,6=>&6N3%=$./$()&6
?%%&'()*6$(+3=6=>&6"$*6./6">.A>6
=>&6?%%&'()*6"$%6)&$D./-6=>&6
"$*6+/6-&/D&,6($)$/A&6./6I+).=.A$)6
,&I,&%&/=$=.+/#6

`0/3

5>&6S&==./-6.=6a.->=60+,6G$)&%6
,&I+,=6"$%6I3().%>&DB6%&==./-6
+3=6.'I,+2&'&/=%6=+6=>&6
%*%=&'6+06K/$/A.$)6%3II+,=6
0+,6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%#6]=6"$%6$6
0$,Z6,&$A>./-6$/D6A+'I,&>&/%.2&6
./D&I&/D&/=6,&2.&"6+06P&'(&,%R6
I$*6$/D6$))+"$/A&%60+,6=,$2&)B6
$AA+''+D$=.+/B603/D./-60+,6
A+/%=.=3&/A*6$/D6,&-.+/$)6
+iA&%6$/D6%3II+,=6%=$[#
5>&6H+''.%%.+/6$AA&I=&D6
$))6;786,&A+''&/D$=.+/%6
$/D6.'I)&'&/=$=.+/6(&-$/6
.''&D.$=&)*#6

5>&6N&/&DD6"$%6,&A+-/.%&D6
$%6=>&6-,&&/&%=6-+2&,/'&/=6
(3.)D./-6./6=>&6poL=>&6
$//+3/A&'&/=6"$%6'$D&6=+6
A+./A.D&6".=>6S,&&/6V,.=$./6d$*6
+/6;76j3)*#6

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6I3().%>&D6.=%6
%&A+/D6$//3$)6,&I+,=B60+A3%./-6
+/6>+"6=+6'$4&6D&'+A,$A*6"+,46
./6G$)&%#6

Page 55



;QN&A=.+/67OL6666666666666666666666 P.)&%=+/&%6$/D6>.->).->=%

1&6%&$7&"

M76*+3/-6I&+I)&62.%.=&D6=>&
?%%&'()*6=+6=$4&6I$,=6./6?A$D&'.R%6
G,.=./-6N\3$D#6?%6"&))6$%6=$4./-6
I$,=6./6$6D&($=&B6=>&6*+3/-6
I&+I)&6"&,&6&/A+3,$-&D6=+6%&&46
./%I.,$=.+/60,+'6=>&6N&/&DD6
=+6I&/6I+&'%60+,6D&2+)3=.+/#6

5>&6H+''+/%6NI&$4&,B6j+>/6
V&,A+"6PeB62.%.=&D6=>&6?%%&'()*6
=+6'&&=6".=>6=>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6
=+6)&$,/6'+,&6$(+3=6=>&6"+,46
+06=>&6?%%&'()*B6%I&A.KA$))*6
">$=6=>&6?%%&'()*6.%6D+./-6=+6
&/A+3,$-&6'+,&6I&+I)&6
=+6=$4&6I$,=6./6=>&6D&'+A,$=.A6
I,+A&%%6=>,+3->6&ZI&=.=.+/%6
$/D6N&/&DD#=2#6

?60+3,=>6A+''.==&&6,++'6"$%6
A,&$=&D6=+6./A,&$%&6=>&6A$I$A.=*6
0+,6A+''.==&&6"+,4#

5>&6po6NA>++)6S$'&%B6'$/$-&D6
(*6=>&6C+3=>6NI+,=65,3%=B6>&)D6$6
)&$D&,%>.I6"+,4%>+I6&2&/=60+,6.=%6
*+3/-6)&$D&,%6$/D62+)3/=&&,%6
./6N.$'(,6b*"&)6I,.+,6=+6=>&6
+I&/./-6A&,&'+/*#

N8%#7&"

5>&6N&/&DD6(&A$'&6+/&6+06=>&6
poR%6'+%=6&/&,-*Z&iA.&/=6I3().A6
(3.)D./-%6">&/6.=%6d.%I)$*6</&,-*6
H&,=.KA$=&6"$%63I-,$D&D60,+'6
H6=+6V#6

N=&I6pI6H*',36"$%6)$3/A>&D#6
5>.%6"$%6$/6$))ZG$)&%6I,+k&A=6./6
I$,=/&,%>.I6".=>6=>&6GcS?6$/D6
=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6">.A>6
"$%6D&%.-/&D6=+6>&)I6=>+%&6">+6
>$2&6/+=6=,$D.=.+/$))*6&/-$-&D6
I+).=.A$))*#6]=6-$2&6I&+I)&6$/6
+II+,=3/.=*6=+6-$./6&JI&,.&/A&6
+06"+,4./-6".=>6?%%&'()*6
P&'(&,%6$/D6)+A$)6A+3/A.))+,%6
$/D6=+6&/-$-&6".=>6A.2.A6
$/D6I3().A6).0&6".=>6$62.&"6
=+6(&A+'./-6$'($%%$D+,%6
0+,6D&'+A,$A*6".=>./6=>&.,6
A+''3/.=.&%6$/D6-,+3I%#6

5>&6K,%=6H+''.%%.+/ZI,+I+%&D6
P&$%3,&6"$%6=$()&D6".=>6$62.&"6=+6
A,&$=./-6$6%=$=3=+,*B6./D&I&/D&/=6
(+D*6=+6D&=&,'./&6P&'(&,%R6
I$*6$/D6$))+"$/A&%#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6I$%%&D6=>&6K,%=6
H+''.==&&ZI,+I+%&D6)&-.%)$=.+/6
W=>&6N=$/D$,D%6H+''.%%.+/&,6
P&$%3,&X6=+6I)$A&6=>&6+iA&6
+06=>&6H+''.%%.+/&,6+/6$6
%=$=3=+,*60++=./-#

Y#.&$7&"

5>&6?))6G$)&%6H+/2&/=.+/6,&I+,=&D6
=>$=6$6'+2&6=+603))6)$"Z'$4./-6
I+"&,%60+,6=>&6?%%&'()*6./6$))6
D&2+)2&D6$,&$%6+[&,&D6%3(%=$/=.$)6
$D2$/=$-&6+2&,6=>&6A3,,&/=6
$,,$/-&'&/=%#6

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6$-,&&D6.=%6H$,(+/6
P$/$-&'&/=6N=,$=&-*B6A+''.==./-6
=>&6?%%&'()*6=+6=>&6A>$))&/-./-6
-+$)6+06A$,(+/6/&3=,$).=*6(*6!7;:B6
=+6(&6$A>.&2&D6(*6=>&6D&2&)+I'&/=6
+06'+,&6&/&,-*Z&iA.&/=6(3%./&%%6
I,$A=.A&%6$/D6=>&6&/A+3,$-&'&/=6
+06%3%=$./$(.).=*6$'+/-6%=$[B6
P&'(&,%6$/D6+=>&,6%=$4&>+)D&,%#6

5>&6K,%=6A+''.==&&ZI,+I+%&D6
c&-.%)$=.2&6H+'I&=&/A&6h,D&,B6
">.A>6"$%6$)%+6=>&6K,%=6=+6A+'&6
D.,&A=)*60,+'6=>&6I&=.=.+/%6I,+A&%%B6
,&A&.2&D6($A4./-60,+'6=>&6G&)%>6
S+2&,/'&/=#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6>&)D6$/6hI&/6
G&&4&/D6=+6A&)&(,$=&6=>&6=&/=>6
*&$,6+06D&2+)3=.+/6$/D6K2&6*&$,%6
+06=>&6G$)&%6P.))&//.3'6H&/=,&#6
?62$,.&=*6+06I&,0+,'$/A&%6"&,&6
%>+"A$%&DB6$/D6$6A+/A&,=6"$%6
>&)D6=+6I,&'.&,&6$6A+'I+%.=.+/6
(*6o$,)6j&/4./%#6

5>&6H>$/-&6e,+-,$''&6V+$,D6
"$%6&%=$().%>&D6=+6&/%3,&6$6
I,.+,.=.%&D6$/D6A+Z+,D./$=&D6
$II,+$A>6=+6?%%&'()*6(3%./&%%6
A>$/-&6I,+k&A=%#

9&8&$7&"

5>&6/&"6@.,%=6P./.%=&,6"$%6
$II+./=&D#6

5>&6He?6G$)&%6(,$/A>6+iA.$))*6
'$,4&D6$/D6A&)&(,$=&D6=>&6
M7=>6$//.2&,%$,*6+06=>&6'+D&,/6
H+''+/"&$)=>6".=>6$/6&2&/=6./6
=>&6N&/&DD6$==&/D&D6(*6+2&,6
;O76-3&%=%60,+'6+2&,6O76
H+''+/"&$)=>6A+3/=,.&%#6

?/6./D&I&/D&/=6I$/&)6(&-$/6.=%6
,&2.&"6+06I,+2.%.+/6+06(.)./-3$)6
%&,2.A&%6$=6=>&6?%%&'()*#6

5>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6
H+''.%%.+/&,60+,6N=$/D$,D%6
P&$%3,&6,&A&.2&D6a+*$)6?II,+2$)#6

5>&6e&=.=.+/%6H+''.==&&6
,&A&.2&D6.=%6)$,-&%=6I&=.=.+/6
=+6D$=&B6".=>6+2&,6;:B7776
%.-/$=3,&%#65>&6I&=.=.+/6A$))&D6
0+,6".=>D,$"$)60,+'6=>&6G&%=6
H>&%>.,&lF+,=>6<$%=6G$)&%6
N3(Za&-.+/$)6N=,$=&-*#

Page 56



!7

FGJG

`()0("3

5>&6?%%&'()*6"$%6,$/4&D69_=>6
./6=>&6=+I6;776-$*Z0,.&/D)*6I)$A&%6
=+6"+,46./6=>&6po6$AA+,D./-6=+6
=>&6G+,4I)$A&6<\3$).=*6]/D&J6
I,+D3A&D6(*6N=+/&"$))6W$/6
.'I,+2&'&/=60,+'6_O,D6=>&6
I,&2.+3%6*&$,X#

?6VVH6d&'+A,$A*6c.2&6I+D6"$%6
./%=$))&D6./6=>&6N&/&DD6=+6'$4&6.=6
&2&/6&$%.&,60+,6I&+I)&6=+6&/-$-&6
".=>6=>&6"+,46+06=>&6?%%&'()*#

5>&6,&I+,=6+06=>&6b+3%&6+06
H+''+/%6NI&$4&,R%6H+/0&,&/A&6
+/6&\3$).=.&%6I,$.%&D6=>&6&\3$).=.&%6
"+,463/D&,=$4&/6$=6=>&6F$=.+/$)6
?%%&'()*B6,&A+''&/D./-6=>$=6
G&%='./%=&,6A+/%.D&,%6D&2&)+I./-6
$6po6%A>&'&6$)+/-6=>&6)./&%6+06
=>&6N=&I6pI6H*',36%A>&'&B6$/D6
%$*./-6=>$=6T=>&6b+3%&6$/D6.=%6
P&'(&,%6"+3)D6(&/&K=60,+'6
>$2./-6$6%'$))6./Z>+3%&6=&$'6
+/6=>&6'+D&)6+06=>&6F$=.+/$)6
?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6<\3$).=.&%6
=&$'U#

C&7"0("3

5>&6?%%&'()*63/$/.'+3%)*62+=&D6
0+,6$6,&0&,&/D3'6+/6">&=>&,6
.=6%>+3)D6(&6-,$/=&D603,=>&,6
)&-.%)$=.2&6I+"&,%#6

5>&6<3,+I&$/6$/D6<J=&,/$)6?[$.,%6
H+''.==&&6>&)D6$60+,'$)6'&&=./-6
./6V,3%%&)%B6=>&6H+''.==&&R%6
K,%=60+,'$)6'&&=./-6".=>6$))60+3,6
G&)%>6P<e%#6

5>&6pFh6I,+k&A=B6=+6A,&$=&6
A+'I3=&,6%*%=&'%6./D&I&/D&/=6+06
=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=B6(&-$/#

Q("82

?0=&,6./=&,/$)6,&03,(.%>'&/=6$/D6
,&%=+,$=.+/B6=>&6e.&,>&$D6+I&/&D6
=+6=>&6I3().A6$%6I$,=6+06=>&6N=6
d$2.DR%6d$*6A&)&(,$=.+/%#6?)'+%=6
;7B7776I&+I)&62.%.=&D6=>&6e.&,>&$D6
./6=>&6K,%=6'+/=>6+06+I&/./-#65>&6
./$3-3,$)6e.&,>&$D6N&%%.+/%6=++46
I)$A&B6A&'&/=./-6=>&6e.&,>&$D6
$%6$6%I$A&6=+6./0+,'B6./2+)2&6$/D6
./%I.,&6I3().A6D&($=&#6h2&,6_776
I&+I)&6$==&/D&D#6

5>&6K,%=6H+''.%%.+/ZI,+I+%&D6
P&$%3,&L=+6&%=$().%>6$/6
./D&I&/D&/=6(+D*6=+6%&=6
P&'(&,%R6I$*6$/D6)&2&)%6+06
K/$/A.$)6%3II+,=L"$%6D&($=&D6
(*6=>&6?%%&'()*6./6e)&/$,*#6

Q(3

5>&6./D&I&/D&/=6I$/&)6+/6
(.)./-3$)6%&,2.A&%B6A>$.,&D6(*6
?,"&)6<)).%6h"&/B6,&I+,=&D6+/6
=>&603=3,&6+06(.)./-3$)6%&,2.A&%6$=6
=>&6?%%&'()*#65>&6H+''.%%.+/6
$AA&I=&D6=>&6,&A+''&/D$=.+/%6
$/D6A+''.==&D6=>&6?%%&'()*6
=+6A,&$=./-6$6'+,&6A.=.f&/Z
0,.&/D)*6$/D6$AA&%%.()&6a&A+,D6+06
e,+A&&D./-%B6$/D6"+,4./-6=+"$,D%6
+3,6+(k&A=.2&6+06(&A+'./-6$6=,3)*6
(.)./-3$)6+,-$/.%$=.+/#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6"&)A+'&D6
=>&6a=6b+/6d$2.D6H$'&,+/6Pe6=+6
=>&6?%%&'()*6+/6>.%6K,%=62.%.=6$%6po6
e,.'&6P./.%=&,#65>&6e,.'&6P./.%=&,6
%I+4&6$(+3=6=>&6a&%I&A=6?-&/D$6
$/D6>.%6A+''.='&/=6=+6'$4./-6
%3,&6=>$=6D&2+)3=.+/6"+,4%6&2&/6
(&==&,6./603=3,&#6b&6,&$i,'&D6=>$=6
>&6$/D6%&/.+,65,&$%3,*6P./.%=&,%6
"+3)D6(&6".))./-6=+6A+'&6(&0+,&6
=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6.=%6A+''.==&&%6
=+6$/%"&,6\3&%=.+/%#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6$//+3/A&D6.=%6
,&2.&"6+06=>&6?%%&'()*R%6N=$/D./-6
h,D&,%60+,6=>&6@+3,=>6?%%&'()*#6

`0)&

b3"6n$3->$/65>+'$%6"$%6A>+%&/6
$%6=>&6I,&0&,,&D6A$/D.D$=&60+,6=>&6
?3D.=+,6S&/&,$)60+,6G$)&%#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6$A>.&2&D6=>&6
]/2&%=+,%6./6e&+I)&6S+)D6$"$,DB6
+/&6+06+/)*6!:6I3().A6(+D.&%6./6=>&6
po6=+6,&$A>6=>.%6%=$/D$,DB6$/D6=>&6
+/)*6po6)&-.%)$=3,&#6

F$=.+/$)6?,'&D6@+,A&%6D$*6
A&)&(,$=.+/%6"&,&6>&)D6+/6=>&6
?%%&'()*6&%=$=&L'+,&6=>$/6
:7B7776I&+I)&6$==&/D&D6./A)3D./-6
bab65>&6e,./A&6+06G$)&%B6bab6=>&6
d3A>&%%6+06H+,/"$))6$/D6?,'&D6
@+,A&%6?.,6H>.&06P$,%>$)B6N.,6j+A46
N=.,,3I#

`0/3

5>&6a&'3/&,$=.+/6P&$%3,&6"$%6
$-,&&D6(*6=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6-.2&/6
a+*$)6?II,+2$)B6&%=$().%>./-6$/6
./D&I&/D&/=6%=$=3=+,*6(+D*6=+6
D&A.D&63I+/6=>&6%*%=&'6+06
K/$/A.$)6%3II+,=60+,6P&'(&,%#6
5>&6,&A,3.='&/=6I,+A&%%6(&-$/#6

?6/&"6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,60+,6N+3=>6
G$)&%6<$%=6"$%6%"+,/6./60+))+"./-6
c+,D6S&,'$/R%6&//+()&'&/=#6

@+,6=>&6=>.,D6*&$,6,3//./-B6=>&6
?3D.=+,6S&/&,$)60+,6G$)&%6.%%3&D6
$/63/\3$).K&D6+I./.+/6+/6=>&6
H+''.%%.+/R%6%=$=&'&/=6+06
$AA+3/=%#

Page 57



!;N&A=.+/67OL6666666666666666666666 P.)&%=+/&%6$/D6>.->).->=%

=0-05%

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6%I+4&6".=>6
*+3/-6I&+I)&6$=6=>&6%3''&,6
%>+"%6$/D6>&$,D6$(+3=6=>&6
.'I+,=$/A&6+06D.-.=$)6&/-$-&'&/=6
$%6=>&64&*6=+6-&==./-6*+3/-6I&+I)&6
2+=./-6./6=>&6,&0&,&/D3'6$/D6
?%%&'()*6&)&A=.+/6./6!7;;#6

5>&6h3=,&$A>6V3%62.%.=&D6=>&6
'$./6%3''&,6%>+"%B6$%6"&))6$%6
$6/3'(&,6+06%'$))&,6)+A$)6%>+"%6
I,+'+=./-6=>&6n+=&6!7;;6=>&'&#6

V+"65.&65n6(&-$/6"+,46$%6=>&6
?%%&'()*R%6>+%=6(,+$DA$%=&,#6
n.D&+6%A,&&/%6./6=>&6I3().A6
-$))&,.&%6=+6=>&6N.$'(,6$/D6N&/&DD6
A+''.==&&6,++'%6"&,&6,&I)$A&D6
=+6.'I,+2&6$AA&%%6=+6I,+A&&D./-%#6

NA,&&/%6./6=>&6./0+,'$=.+/6
I+D%6"&,&6$)%+6,&I)$A&DB6$/D6
/&"6'3)=.'&D.$6A+/=&/=6"$%6
D&2&)+I&D6=+6.'I,+2&62.%.=+,%R6
&JI&,.&/A&%#

1&6%&$7&"

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6$-,&&D6.=%6
&ZD&'+A,$A*6%=,$=&-*B6%&==./-6
+3=6>+"6.=6"+3)D63%&6/&"6
=&A>/+)+-.&%6=+603,=>&,6&/-$-&6
".=>6=>&6I&+I)&6+06G$)&%#6

5>&6H>$.,6$/D6'&'(&,%6+06
=>&6a&'3/&,$=.+/6V+$,D6"&,&6
$II+./=&D#6

5>&6./.=.$)6%=$-&%6+06=>&6n+=&6
!7;;6A$'I$.-/6(&-$/B6
&/A+3,$-./-6I&+I)&6=+6,&-.%=&,6
=+62+=&#6

5>&6]/=&,/$=.+/$)6d$*6+06=>&6
d.%$()&D60+,3'B6$,,$/-&D6(*6
=>&6H+''.%%.+/B6A+/A)3D&D6
=>$=6D.%$()&D6I&+I)&6+0=&/60&&)6
&JA)3D&D60,+'6=>&6D&'+A,$=.A6
I,+A&%%6./6G$)&%6(&A$3%&6=>&.,6
%I&A.KA6,&\3.,&'&/=%6$,&6/+=6
A$=&,&D60+,#6

5>&6/&"6`H+0/+D6H,*/+R6WH+/A.%&6
a&A+,DX6"$%6./=,+D3A&DB6I,+2.D./-6
$6'+,&6A3%=+'&,60,.&/D)*6
$II,+$A>6=+6$AA&%%./-6?%%&'()*6
I,+A&&D./-%#65>&6H+/A.%&6a&A+,D6
"$%6+/&6+06=>&6,&A+''&/D$=.+/%6
+06=>&6./D&I&/D&/=6I$/&)6+/6
(.)./-3$)6%&,2.A&%#6

N=$[6$/D6P&'(&,%62+=&D6
+2&,">&)'./-)*6=+6>$2&6@,&&D+'6
@++D63%&D6$A,+%%6=>&6?%%&'()*6
&%=$=&#65>&6aNeH?6A+/-,$=3)$=&D6
=>&6?%%&'()*6%$*./-6=>$=6.=6"$%6
T=>&6K,%=6/$=.+/$)6./%=.=3=.+/6./6
=>&6po6=+6A>++%&6$/.'$)6"&)0$,&Z6
0,.&/D)*60++DB6$/D6?%%&'()*6
P&'(&,%6$/D6=>&.,6%=$[6$,&6=+6
(&6$II)$3D&DU#

N8%#7&"

5>&6a&'3/&,$=.+/6V+$,D6'&=6
0+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&6=+6%=$,=6.=%6
A+/%.D&,$=.+/6+06=>&6%*%=&'6+06
K/$/A.$)6%3II+,=60+,6?%%&'()*6
P&'(&,%6./6=>&6@+3,=>6?%%&'()*#6

5>&6K,%=6%=$=3=+,*6H+''.%%.+/&,6
0+,6N=$/D$,D%6"$%6%&)&A=&D#6

5>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6)$.D6$/
h,D&,6%&==./-63I6$6,&0&,&/D3'6
+/6=>&6)&-.%)$=.2&6I+"&,%6+06=>&6
?%%&'()*B6%&==./-6$6D$=&6+06
O6P$,A>6!7;;#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6"$%6/$'&D6=>&6
'+%=6%3%=$./$()&6I3().A6%&A=+,6
+,-$/.%$=.+/6$=6-+2&,/'&/=6)&2&)6./6
=>&6po6(*6=>&6N3%=$./$()&6@$A.).=.&%6
P$/$-&'&/=6?"$,D%6!7;7#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6"&)A+'&D6
F.A46H)&--6Pe6=+6=>&6?%%&'()*#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6"&)A+'&D6=>&6
e,&%.D&/=6+06=>&6<p6H+''.%%.+/B6
j+%u6P$/3&)6V$,,+%+B6=+6=>&6
?%%&'()*6">&,&6>&6$==&/D&D6$/6
&J>.(.=.+/6+06N=,3A=3,$)6@3/D%6
I,+k&A=%6$,,$/-&D6(*6=>&6G&)%>6
S+2&,/'&/=#6h/6=>&6%$'&6D$*6=>&6
0+3,6G&)%>6P<e%6$==&/D&D6$/6&2&/=6
./6=>&6e.&,>&$D#6

!:6'&'(&,%6+06%=$[6)&0=6=>&6
?%%&'()*63/D&,6$62+)3/=$,*6&$,)*6
%&2&,$/A&6%A>&'&#65>&6pFh6
I,+k&A=6"$%6,+))&D6+3=6=+6&\3.I6
P&'(&,%B6=>&.,6%=$[6$/D6?%%&'()*6
%=$[6".=>6)&$D./-6&D-&6$/D6
./D&I&/D&/=6]560$A.).=.&%#6

Page 58



!!

Y#.&$7&"

5>&6b$/%$,D6N+A.&=*6$/D6=>&6
?%%&'()*6"+,4&D6./6I$,=/&,%>.I6=+6
>+%=6$/6&2&/=6&JI)+,./-6=>&6.%%3&6
+06-&/D&,6$/D6D&2+)3=.+/#6

5>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6=+3,&D6G$)&%6
=+6&/A+3,$-&6I&+I)&6=+6,&-.%=&,6
=+62+=&#6

5>&6a&0&,&/D3'6h,D&,6"$%6I$%%&D6
(*6=>&6po6e$,).$'&/=#6

5>&6K,%=6-$)$6D.//&,6=+6(&6
>&)D6./6=>&6e.&,>&$D6%./A&6.=%6
,&03,(.%>'&/=6"$%6>&)D6./6%3II+,=6
+06=>&6aNeH?R%6@,&&D+'6@++D6
A$'I$.-/#6

?6,&+,-$/.%$=.+/6+06=>&6?%%&'()*R%6
%=$[6%=,3A=3,&60+,6=>&6@+3,=>6
?%%&'()*6"$%6$//+3/A&D#

9&8&$7&"

5>&6q3&&/6./6H+3/A.)6-$2&6
a+*$)6?II,+2$)6=+6=>&6e)$*./-6
@.&)D%6WH+''3/.=*6]/2+)2&'&/=6
./6d.%I+%$)6d&A.%.+/%6WG$)&%X6
P&$%3,&6!7;7X#65>&6%&A+/D6
P&'(&,ZI,+I+%&D6P&$%3,&6=+6
(&6$-,&&D6(*6=>&6?%%&'()*B6=>&6
P&$%3,&6I)$A&%6$6D3=*6+/6)+A$)6
$3=>+,.=.&%6=+6A+/%.D&,6=>&6.'I$A=6
+06%&))./-6+[6)+A$)6$3=>+,.=*6
+"/&D6I)$*./-6K&)D%6+/6)+A$)6
A+''3/.=.&%#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6$II,+2&D6=>&6
I,+I+%&D6G&)%>6c$/-3$-&6
WG$)&%X6P&$%3,&#

Page 59



!ON&A=.+/67OL6666666666666666666666 P.)&%=+/&%6$/D6>.->).->=%

FGJJ

`()0("3

?6n+=&6!7;;6&2&/=6"$%6>&)D6=+6
,$.%&6$"$,&/&%%6+06($,,.&,%6=+6
D&'+A,$=.A6&/-$-&'&/=60$A&D6
(*6D.%$()&D6I&+I)&#6

@+))+"./-6$/63I-,$D./-6+06
?%%&'()*6%*%=&'%B6=>&6?%%&'()*6
D+/$=&D6'+,&6=>$/6:776eH%B6
!:76I,./=&,%6$/D6;O76)$I=+I%6=+6
a&'I)+*60+,6,&A+/D.=.+/./-6$/D6
,&A*A)./-#

Q("82

`C&%R62+=&6./6=>&6a&0&,&/D3'6+/6
03=3,&6I+"&,%60+,6=>&6?%%&'()*#

5>&6?%%&'()*6"$%6D.%%+)2&D60+,6
=>&6K,%=6=.'&6$=6'.D/.->=6
+/6O;6P$,A>6!7;;#

'''

Page 60



!9

Page 61



!:N&A=.+/679L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-.A6-+$)%

<;+(2%,,$**$%&>*(P9+(*#0"#+7$8(7%"'*(

Q1+(4$''(?0%,%#+("&5(4$5+&(+&7"7+,+&#($&(5+9%':#$%&R
a5>&6/&J=60+3,6*&$,%6'3%=6D&'+/%=,$=&6=>$=6=>&6?%%&'()*6.%6"+,4./-6
0+,6$))6A.=.f&/%6$/D6&/A+3,$-./-6-,&$=&,6$/D6'+,&6$A=.2&6I$,=.A.I$=.+/6
./6=>&6D&'+A,$=.A6I,+A&%%#6G&6".))6&'I>$%.%&6=>&6I+%.=.2&6.'I$A=6+06
=>&6?%%&'()*63I+/6=>&6).2&%6+06I&+I)&6./6G$)&%#65>&,&6".))6(&6-,&$=&,6
./A,&'&/=$)6D&2+)3=.+/6=>,+3->6=>&6!77M6?A=B6$/D6=>&,&6'$*6(&6$6
,&0&,&/D3'60+,6-,&$=&,6)&-.%)$=.2&6A+'I&=&/A&B6"&6".))6(&6,&$D*6=+6
-,$%I6=>&%&6A>$))&/-&%6&/=>3%.$%=.A$))*#U

D2&'=55&$7/3b5'8#$$0),8(%,#)5'"&\0,"&$&)%
5>&6S+2&,/'&/=6+06G$)&%6?A=6!77M6I)$A&D6$6D3=*6+/6=>&6?%%&'()*6
H+''.%%.+/6T=+6I,+'+=&6I3().A6$"$,&/&%%6+06D&2+)2&D6-+2&,/'&/=6
./6G$)&%B6$/D6=>&6%*%=&'60+,6=>&6&)&A=.+/6+06?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%U#6?%6
$6,&%3)=B6=>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6'$D&6&[&A=.2&6A+''3/.A$=.+/%6
".=>6=>&6I&+I)&6+06G$)&%6$6I,.+,.=*60+,6=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*#

?6D&D.A$=&D6A+''3/.A$=.+/%603/A=.+/6"$%6&%=$().%>&DB6$/D6(*6
d&A&'(&,6!77_B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6>$D6$-,&&D6$6A+''3/.A$=.+/%6
%=,$=&-*6=>$=6"$%6D&%.-/&D6=+Y6
6L ./0+,'6$/D6I,+'+=&6$6".D&/./-63/D&,%=$/D./-6+06=>&6"+,46+06=>&6
F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%B6.=%6I+"&,%6$/D6A+/%=.=3=.+/$)6%=$=3%^
6L &/A+3,$-&6&/-$-&'&/=6$/D6I$,=.A.I$=.+/6./6?%%&'()*6(3%./&%%6
$/D6G&)%>6D&'+A,$A*^
6L >&,$)D6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6$A>.&2&'&/=%6./6$6G&)%>B6po6$/D6
./=&,/$=.+/$)6A+/=&J=^6$/DB
6L D&2&)+I6$/D6-3$,D6=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*6(,$/D#

h2&,6=>&6A+3,%&6+06=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6>$%6
%&A3,&D6".D&,63/D&,%=$/D./-6$/D6,&A+-/.=.+/6+06=>&6?%%&'()*6$%6
$6'+D&,/60+,"$,DZ)++4./-6D&'+A,$=.A6(+D*#6]=6>$%6$)%+6,&+I&/&D6
$/D6./A,&$%&D6$AA&%%6=+6=>&6e.&,>&$DB6I,+2.D./-6$6%=$-&60+,6I3().A6
D&($=&6$/D6D&).(&,$=.+/#65>&6?%%&'()*R%6+)D6D&($=./-6A>$'(&,B6
N.$'(,6b*"&)B6"$%6$)%+6$D$I=&D6=+6(&A+'&6=>&6"+,)DR%6K,%=6
D&D.A$=&D6*+3=>6D&($=./-6A>$'(&,B6&/$()./-6$64&*6=$,-&=6$3D.&/A&6
=+6)&$,/6$(+3=6$/D6D.%A3%%6?%%&'()*6(3%./&%%#65>&6?%%&'()*6A$/6
/+"6(&6I,+3D6+06&JA&))&/=6)./4%6".=>6%=$4&>+)D&,%6$/D6+06$6,+(3%=6
$/D6,$I.D)*6.'I,+2./-6+/)./&6I,&%&/A&#65>&6H+''.%%.+/6>$%B6
=>,+3->6.=%6A+''.='&/=6=+6I3().A6&/-$-&'&/=B6&/%3,&D6=>$=6=>&6
?%%&'()*6$/D6.=%6(3%./&%%6$,&6$AA&%%.()&6=+B6$/D6D.%A3%%&D6$'+/-B6
>3/D,&D%6+06=>+3%$/D%6+06I&+I)&#6

9&c),)-'+2#'+&'("&'()*'+2(%'+&'*#
@+))+"./-6=>&6%&I$,$=.+/6+06=>&6?%%&'()*60,+'6=>&6G&)%>6
S+2&,/'&/=B6=>&6d&I$,='&/=6+06]/=&,/$=.+/$)6e+).=.A%6$=6
?(&,*%="*=>6p/.2&,%.=*6"$%6A+''.%%.+/&D6=+63/D&,=$4&6=>&6
)$,-&%=6&2&,6G&)%>6I+).=.A$)6,&%&$,A>6%3,2&*6$(+3=6I3().A6I&,A&I=.+/%6
+06=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6.=%6,+)&#65>&6,&%3)=%6./D.A$=&D6=>$=6=>&,&6"$%6%=.))6
A+/03%.+/6$(+3=6=>&6D.[&,&/A&6(&="&&/6=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*6
0+,6G$)&%6$/D6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=#

Page 62



!M

G+,46>$D6$),&$D*6%=$,=&D6+/6&%=$().%>./-6$6A)&$,6.D&/=.=*60+,6=>&6
?%%&'()*B6$/D6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6&/D+,%&D6$6%=,$=&-*6=+6D&2&)+I6$6
%=,+/-62.%3$)6(,$/D60+,6=>&6)&-.%)$=3,&#65>.%6./A)3D&D6$6I,+'./&/=6
I)$A&60+,6.'$-&%6+06=>&6.A+/.A6N&/&DDB6$/D6$6A)&$,6",.==&/6%=*)&6
=>$=6$2+.D&D6k$,-+/6$/D6A,&$=&D6$6,&A+-/.%$()&6$/D6A+/%.%=&/=6
2.%3$)6%=*)&60+,6I3().A$=.+/%#6

5>.%6"$%63/D&,I.//&D6(*6=>&6D&2&)+I'&/=6+06$6I+%.=.+/./-6
%=$=&'&/=B63%&D6+/6&2&,*=>./-60,+'6&'$.)6%.-/$=3,&%6=+6
I3().A$=.+/%B6">.A>6$,=.A3)$=&%6W=+6$/6./=&,/$)6$3D.&/A&6$%6"&))6$%6
&J=&,/$))*X6=>&6)&-.%)$=3,&R%6.D&/=.=*6$/D6.=%6A+/%=.=3=.+/$)603/A=.+/Y6

/0"+1,'($),%+233"45%6+7$8+9,%"3+(3+'0"+-"4$.8,'(.,%%6+"%".'"-+5$-6+
'0,'+8":8"3")'3+'0"+()'"8"3'3+$7+9,%"3+,)-+('3+:"$:%";+4,<"3+%,=3+
7$8+9,%"3+,)-+0$%-3+'0"+9"%30+>$#"8)4")'+'$+,..$&)'?+

5$4./-6./=+6$AA+3/=6=>&6,&%&$,A>6K/D./-%B6=>&6I+%.=.+/./-6
%=$=&'&/=6,&0&,&/A&%6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=B6=+6>.->).->=6=>&6
D.[&,&/A&6(&="&&/6=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6=>&6-+2&,/'&/=6">.A>6
.=6'3%=6%A,3=./.%&#6

A#$$0),8(%,)-'7&3#)*'%2&'1&)&**
5>&6H+''.%%.+/6>$%6./2&%=&D6A+/%.D&,$()&6&[+,=6./6+3=,&$A>B6
%&&4./-6=+6=$4&6=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6.=%6"+,46=+6=>&6>&$,=)$/D%6$/D6
A+''3/.=.&%6+06=>&6I&+I)&6+06G$)&%#6?%6I$,=6+06=>&6?%%&'()*R%6=&/=>6
$//.2&,%$,*6I,+k&A=B6=>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,62.%.=&D6&)&A=+,$)6,&-.+/%6
./6G$)&%6=+6%I&$46".=>6,&I,&%&/=$=.2&%6+06=,$D.=.+/$))*6D.%&/-$-&D6
%&A=+,%B6./A)3D./-6=>&6()$A46$/D6&=>/.A6'./+,.=*6A+''3/.=.&%B6$%6
"&))6$%6D.%$()&D6I&+I)&B60$.=>6A+''3/.=.&%6$/D6%&J3$)6+,.&/=$=.+/6
$/D6*+3/-6I&+I)&R%6-,+3I%#6

5>&6?%%&'()*R%6+3=,&$A>6"+,46$)%+6./A)3D&D6=>&6I3,A>$%&6+06$6(3%6
D&D.A$=&D6=+6%&A3,./-6$6'+(.)&6?%%&'()*6I,&%&/A&6$))+"./-6$AA&%%6
=+6$,&$%6$A,+%%6G$)&%6=>$=6"&,&6=,$D.=.+/$))*6,&'+2&D60,+'6+3=,&$A>6
&[+,=%#65>&6(3%6$)%+6I,+2.D&D6$6'&$/%60+,6,&=>./4./-6+3,6I,&%&/A&6$=6
G$)&%R%6/$=.+/$)6$/D6,&-.+/$)6%>+"%6$/D6&2&/=%6".=>6$/6&'I>$%.%6
+/6$==&/D./-6'+,&60+,6=>&6%$'&6A+%=B6.06/+=6)&%%#

]/6$DD.=.+/B6N.$'(,6b*"&)B6=>&6"+,)DR%6K,%=6D&D.A$=&D6*+3=>6
D&($=./-6A>$'(&,B6"$%60+,'&D60,+'6=>&6+)D6D&($=./-6A>$'(&,6
./65t6b*"&)B$/D6>$%6"&)A+'&D6+2&,6O7B7776%=3D&/=%6=+6I$,=.A.I$=&6
./6D&'+A,$=.A6D&($=&%6%./A&6.=6+I&/&D6./6?I,.)6!778#6

5>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*6>$%B6=>,+3->6.=%6./=&,/$=.+/$)6,&)$=.+/%6
$/D6$%%+A.$=.+/6".=>6I,+0&%%.+/$)6I$,).$'&/=$,*6(+D.&%6%3A>6$%6
=>&6H+''+/"&$)=>6e$,).$'&/=$,*6?%%+A.$=.+/6WHe?XB6V,.=.%>6],.%>6
e$,).$'&/=$,*6?%%+A.$=.+/6WV]e?X6$/D65>&6H+/0&,&/A&6+06<3,+I&$/6
a&-.+/$)6c&-.%)$=.2&6?%%&'().&%6WH?ca<XB6'$./=$./&D6.=%6I,&%&/A&6
$/D6./g3&/A&6+/6=>&6./=&,/$=.+/$)6%=$-&^6%&/D./-6D&)&-$=&%6=+6
A+/0&,&/A&%6$/D6%&'./$,%6./6=>&6po6$/D6+2&,%&$%6$%6"&))6$%6>+%=./-6
$6,$/-&6+062.%.=+,%60,+'6$))6A+/=./&/=%6=+6=>&6?%%&'()*#6e$,=.A3)$,6
&'I>$%.%6>$%6(&&/6I3=6+/6&/%3,./-62$)3&60+,6'+/&*60,+'6+3,6
./=&,/$=.+/$)6$A=.2.=*6$/D6%>$,./-6&JI&,.&/A&%6".=>6+=>&,6)&-.%)$=3,&%6
">.A>B6./6=3,/B6&/$()&%63%6=+6)&$,/60,+'6-++D6I,$A=.A&6&)%&">&,&6$/D6
I,+'+=&6+3,6+"/6$A>.&2&'&/=%#6@+,6&J$'I)&B6=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*6

Page 63



!_N&A=.+/679L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-.A6-+$)%

>$%6%&&/6=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*6V,$/A>6+06=>&6He?60+A3%6+/6"+,4./-6
./6$/6./A,&$%./-)*6%=,$=&-.AB6+I&/6$/D6$AA+3/=$()&6'$//&,6".=>6
)&%%+/%6)&$,/&D60,+'6I+%=ZA+/0&,&/A&6$/D6%&'./$,6,&I+,=%60&D6
($A4B6">&,&6I,$A=.A$)B6./=+6=>&6".D&,6"+,46+06=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*#6

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6=++46$6%=,$=&-.A6D&A.%.+/6=+6,&D&2&)+I6=>&6
e.&,>&$DB6$64&*6I$,=6+06=>&6?%%&'()*R%6&%=$=&6$/D6$/6.A+/.A6G&)%>6
)$/D'$,4#6h/6;6P$,A>6!7;7B60+))+"./-6'+/=>%6+06&J=&/%.2&6
,&03,(.%>'&/=B6=>&6(3.)D./-6,&Z+I&/&D6=+6=$4&6+/6.=%6/&"6,+)&6$%6
$63/.\3&6&2&/=%6$/D60,&&62.%.=+,6$==,$A=.+/#65+6D$=&B6+2&,6;77B7776
2.%.=+,%6>$2&6I$%%&D6=>,+3->6=>&6D++,%6+06=>&6e.&,>&$DB6&%=$().%>./-6
.=6$%6+/&6+06=>&6A$I.=$)R%6=+I6$==,$A=.+/%#

5>&6,&+I&/./-6+06=>&6e.&,>&$D6A+./A.D&D6".=>6=>&6(&-.//./-6+06
$6*&$,Z)+/-6I,+-,$''&6+06&2&/=%6'$,4./-6=&/6*&$,%6+06D&2+)3=.+/6
./6G$)&%#65>&6$.'6+06=>&6$//.2&,%$,*6I,+-,$''&6"$%6=+63%&6=>&6
A&)&(,$=.+/%6=+6,&./2.-+,$=&6./=&,&%=B63/D&,%=$/D./-6$/D6$AA&%%.()&6
&/-$-&'&/=6(&="&&/6=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6=>&6I&+I)&6+06G$)&%#

]/6$DD.=.+/B6/&"6./.=.$=.2&%B6%3A>6$%6=>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,R%6=+3,6
+06G$)&%B6=>&6&%=$().%>'&/=6+06$6/&"6+3=,&$A>6$/D6&ZD&'+A,$A*6
%&,2.A&B6$/D6=>&6)$3/A>6+06=>&6h3=,&$A>6V3%B6"&,&6%.-/.KA$/=6
'.)&%=+/&%6+06=>&6=&/Z*&$,6I,+-,$''&6$/D6%&,2&D6=+6./A,&$%&6
$/D6".D&/6&/-$-&'&/=6./6D&'+A,$A*6$%6"&))6$%6I,+2.D&6$6)&-$A*6
0+,603=3,&6?%%&'()*6A+''3/.A$=.+/%#

M))#.(%,.&'8#$$0),8(%,#)5'
5>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6>$%6A>$'I.+/&D6=>&63%&6+06.//+2$=.2&6
A+''3/.A$=.+/%6=&A>/.\3&%#6?%6&$,)*6$%6!77_B6=>&6?%%&'()*6>$D6
./=,+D3A&D6$6I&=.=.+/%6%*%=&'6=>,+3->6">.A>B60+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&B6
'&'(&,%6+06=>&6I3().A6A+3)D6I&=.=.+/6=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*6$/D6
$%460+,6$A=.+/6=+6(&6=$4&/6./6=>+%&6$,&$%6+06I+).A*60+,6">.A>6=>&6
?%%&'()*6"$%6,&%I+/%.()&#6?6A+'I)&'&/=$,*6&ZI&=.=.+/%6%*%=&'6
"$%6)$3/A>&D6+/6;:6?I,.)6!778B6'$4./-6./=&,$A=.+/6".=>6=>&6
?%%&'()*6&2&/6&$%.&,#6

?%6=,$D.=.+/$)6A+''3/.A$=.+/%6A>$//&)%6A+/=./3&D6=+6(&6
A>$))&/-&D6(*6=&A>/+)+-.A$)6.//+2$=.+/%6$/D6/&"6$/D6&'&,-./-6
A+''3/.A$=.+/%6=++)%B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6$-,&&D6$/6&ZD&'+A,$A*6
%=,$=&-*6./6!7;7#6d&%.-/&D6=+6'$4&6-,&$=&,63%&6+06$6,$/-&6+06D.-.=$)6
A>$//&)%6=+6./0+,'6$/D6&/-$-&B6.=6$.'&D6=+6./A,&$%&6=>&6(,&$D=>6
$/D6D&I=>6+06=>&6?%%&'()*R%6&/-$-&'&/=6".=>6=>&6I&+I)&6+06G$)&%#6

5>&6&ZD&'+A,$A*6%=,$=&-*6"$%6$II).&D6./6=>&6n+=&6!7;;6A$'I$.-/6
">.A>6$.'&D6=+6,$.%&6$"$,&/&%%6+06=>&6?%%&'()*6&)&A=.+/6$%6"&))6$%6
=>&6,&0&,&/D3'6+/6=>&603=3,&6I+"&,%6+06=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6=>&6po6
,&0&,&/D3'6+/6=>&6$)=&,/$=.2&62+=./-6%*%=&'#6

5>&6A$'I$.-/6A+'I,.%&D6$6A+>&,&/=6A+''3/.A$=.+/%6'&%%$-&6
I,+'+=&D6(*6$))6+3=,&$A>6%=$[B6=>&63%&6+062.D&+%6+/6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6
%+A.$)6/&="+,4./-6%.=&%B6$/6.//+2$=.2&6+/)./&6$D2&,=.%./-6A$'I$.-/6
=$,-&=./-6;86=+6O:6*&$,Z+)D%6$%6"&))6$%6$6'3)=.ZI)$=0+,'6'&D.$6,&)$=.+/%6
A$'I$.-/6=$,-&=./-6>*I&,Z)+A$)B6,&-.+/$)6$/D6/$=.+/$)6'&D.$#

Page 64



5>&6K,%=6+iA.$)62.%.=6(*6$60&D&,$)6H$/$D.$/6D&)&-$=.+/6=+6=>&6
F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6./6%I,./-6!7;;6I,+2.D&D6$/6&JA&))&/=6
+II+,=3/.=*6=+6%>$,&64/+")&D-&6$/D6&JI&,.&/A&%6+06I3().A6
&/-$-&'&/=#65>&62.%.=6./A)3D&D6=>&6D.,&A=6./2+)2&'&/=6+06;!6
?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6./A)3D./-6=>&6e,&%.D./-6hiA&,B6=>&6d&I3=*6
e,&%.D./-6hiA&,6$/D6=>,&&6+06=>&6H+''.%%.+/&,%#6]=6D&).2&,&D6$603))6
I,+-,$''&B6A+/%.%=./-6+06=&/60+,'$)6%&%%.+/%B6./A)3D./-6=>&6K,%=6
./6$6I)$//&D6%&,.&%6+06Tc&%%+/%60,+'6?(,+$DU6e.&,>&$D6N&%%.+/%#6

5>&6D&)&-$=.+/6D&%A,.(&D6=>&.,62.%.=6$%6&J=,&'&)*6I+%.=.2&#6d,6H$,+)*/6
V&//&==6eH6PeB6,&A+-/.%&D6$%6$6)&$D&,6./6A.=.f&/6&/-$-&'&/=6./6
>&,6+"/6,.->=B6A+''&/=&D6".D&)*6+/6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6I+%.=.2&6"+,46
./6=>&6K&)D6+06&/-$-&'&/=6$/D6D3,./-6>&,6I,&%&/=$=.+/6+/6=>&6
%3(k&A=6./6=>&6e.&,>&$DB6A+''&/D&D6=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6
.=%6A+''.='&/=6=+6=,$/%I$,&/=6D&'+A,$A*6%=$=./-6=>$=6TH.=.f&/6
</-$-&'&/=6.%6A)&$,)*6$6I,.+,.=*6W0+,6=>&6?%%&'()*X6$/D6.%6(3.)=6./=+6
.=%6dF?U#
6
?&8#$$&)*(%,#)5'%#'5088&55#"'A#$$,55,#)
@'+(3+8".$44")-"-+'0,'+'0"+)"A'+233"45%6+B$44(33($)+30$&%-+
.$).")'8,'"+$)+'0"+7$%%$=()C+0(C0D%"#"%+(33&"3+()+8"%,'($)+'$+'0"+
3'8,'"C(.+C$,%+EF8$4$'"+,)-+=(-")+")C,C"4")'+()+-"#$%&'($)G*
6L "+,46".=>6P&'(&,%6+/6A+''3/.A$=.+/%6$A=.2.=.&%6=+6&/$()&6$/D6
&'I+"&,6=>&'6=+6$A=6$%6$'($%%$D+,%60+,6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6"+,4^
6L A+/A&/=,$=&6+/6($%.A%6./6=&,'%6+06'&%%$-./-^6&-6=>&6D.%=./A=.+/6
(&="&&/6S+2&,/'&/=6$/D6?%%&'()*6">.A>6A+/=./3&%B6D&%I.=&6
+3,6&[+,=%B6=+6A$3%&6A+/03%.+/6=+6=>&6D&=,.'&/=6+06=>&6A.=.f&/R%6
&JI&,.&/A&6+06G&)%>6D&'+A,$A*^
6L D&).2&,6A)&$,6'&%%$-&%6$(+3=6=>&6"+,46+06=>&6?%%&'()*60+))+"./-6
=>&6`*&%R62+=&^
6L 4&&I63I6=>&6&[+,=6+/64&*6%=,$=&-.&%6%3A>6$%6(,$/D./-B6
&ZD&'+A,$A*6$/D6=>&6e.&,>&$DB6%+6=>$=6"&6,&$).%&6=>&603))6(&/&K=%6
+06=>&60+3/D$=.+/6"+,46=>$=6"$%6D+/&6D3,./-6=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*#

Page 65



!QN&A=.+/679L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-.A6-+$)%

Q1+(4$''(*;%4(:&$#.S('+"5+0*;$?("&5("(-%'5(0+*?%&*+(
#%(8%&*#$#:#$%&"'(8;"&7+R
T5>&6?%%&'()*6".))6%>+"6A+/KD&/A&6$/D6A+'I&=&/A&6./6&'(,$A./-6
.=%6/&"6I+"&,%#6G&6$,&63/.=&D6./6%&A3,./-6%A,3=./*6$/D6)&-.%)$=.+/6
+06=>&6(&%=6\3$).=*B6$/D6./6%3II+,=./-6P&'(&,%6./6$))6=>$=6=>&*6
D+6$%6&)&A=&D6,&I,&%&/=$=.2&%#U

1066#"%,)-'%2&'/&-,5/(%0"&'
5>&6A+/%=.=3=.+/$)6$/D6)&-.%)$=.2&603/A=.+/%6A+/0&,,&D6(*6=>&6
S+2&,/'&/=6+06G$)&%6?A=6!77M6I)$A&D6%.-/.KA$/=6$DD.=.+/$)6
D&'$/D%6+/6=>&6%&,2.A&%6I,+2.D&D6(*6?%%&'()*6%=$[#65>&%&6
"&,&6A>$,$A=&,.%&D6(*Y
6L $6>.->&,62+)3'&6+06"+,4Le)&/$,*6%$=60+,6)+/-&,6$/D6A+''.==&&%6
"&,&6'+,&6$A=.2&6=>$/6./6I,&2.+3%6?%%&'().&%^63%&6+06=>&6a&%&$,A>6
N&,2.A&6,+%&6./&J+,$()*^6=>&6)&-.%)$=.2&6I,+-,$''&6-,&"6%=&$D.)*^6
$/D6=>&6D&2&)+I'&/=6+06)&-.%)$=.2&6I,+I+%$)%6(*6./D.2.D3$)6
?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6$/D6A+''.==&&%6-&/&,$=&D6$6>3-&6$'+3/=6
+06D&'$/D./-6"+,460+,6,&%&$,A>&,%B6)$"*&,%6$/D6A)&,4%6$/D6)+/-&,6
>+3,%60+,6%3II+,=./-6%=$[^
6L -,&$=&,6A+'I)&J.=*6$/D6%+I>.%=.A$=.+/6./6=>&6%&,2.A&%6,&\3.,&D6(*6
P&'(&,%6=>,+3->+3=6=>&6)&-.%)$=.2&6I,+A&%%6$/D6./603)K))./-6=>&.,6
%A,3=./*6,+)&6./6A+''.==&&^6=>&6I,+A&D3,$)6$D2.A&6,&\3.,&D60,+'6
c&-.%)$=.+/6hiA&6$/D6H>$'(&,6%=$[^6=>&6)&-.%)$=.2&6D,$0=./-6$/D6
$D2.A&6D&).2&,&D6(*6=>&6c&-$)6N&,2.A&^6%I&A.$).%=6)&-$)6=,$/%)$=.+/^6
$/D6=>&6A+'(./$=.+/6+06I+).A*6$/D6I,+A&D3,$)6$D2.A&6D&'$/D&D6
(*6./D&I&/D&/=6%A,3=./*6$/D6+=>&,6A+''.==&&%#

@,+'6=>&6+3=%&=B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6+(k&A=.2&6"$%6=+6&/%3,&6=>$=6
=>&6/&A&%%$,*6,&%+3,A&%6"&,&6./6I)$A&6=+6'&&=6=>&%&6I,&%%3,&%#6
N+'&6+06=>&6I,$A=.A$)6%=&I%6.=6=++46"&,&6=+Y
6L '&&=6k+./=)*6".=>6=>&6V3%./&%%6H+''.==&&6%+6$%6=+6'$=A>6
,&%+3,A./-6".=>6=>&6+,-$/.%$=.+/6+060+,'$)6?%%&'()*6(3%./&%%^
6L $II,+2&6$/6./A,&$%&6./6=>&6,&%+3,A&%6$2$.)$()&6=+6=>+%&6$,&$%6
">+%&6I,.'$,*60+A3%6.%6=>&6%3II+,=6+06?%%&'()*6(3%./&%%B6
/$'&)*6H+''.==&&6N&,2.A&%B6c&-.%)$=.+/6$/D6H>$'(&,6N&,2.A&B6
=>&6a&%&$,A>6N&,2.A&B65,$/%)$=.+/6$/D6a&I+,=./-6N&,2.A&#6
a&%+3,A./-6,+%&6=+6vM6'.)).+/6./6!778L7Q60,+'6v9#M6'.)).+/6./6
!77_L78#6G.=>./6=>&%&6K-3,&%B6=>&6(3D-&=60+,6%=$i/-6./A,&$%&D6
0,+'6%+'&6v!#96'.)).+/6=+6$,+3/D6vO6'.)).+/#6?%6$6,&%3)=B6=>&%&6
%&,2.A&6$,&$%6"&,&6$()&6=+63/D&,=$4&6$6%=,$=&-.A6,&%=,3A=3,./-B6$/D6
$/6./A,&$%&6./6=>&6/&A&%%$,*6,&%+3,A&6=+6%3II+,=6=>&6./A,&$%&6$/D6
A>$/-&6./6I$==&,/6+06?%%&'()*6(3%./&%%^
6L A+/2&,=6$6A+/0&,&/A&6,++'6./65t6b*"&)6./=+6$/+=>&,603/A=.+/./-6
A+''.==&&6,++'#65>.%6I,+2.D&D6(3%./&%%6A+/=./3.=*6($A4Z3I6./6
=>&6&2&/=6+06,++'%6./6=>&6N&/&DD6(&./-63/$2$.)$()&6$/D6$)%+B6
2&,*6\3.A4)*B6I&,'.==&D6=>&6,+3=./&6%A>&D3)./-6+06$6>.->&,6)&2&)6
6+060+,'$)6A+''.==&&6"+,4#6

Page 66



5>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*6%$"6A>$/-&%6./6$)'+%=6&2&,*6$%I&A=6+060+,'$)6
?%%&'()*6(3%./&%%Y6%A,3=./*6./6A+''.==&&6$/D6e)&/$,*6>$D6$6
%>$,I&,6&D-&6$0=&,6=>&6%&I$,$=.+/6+06)&-.%)$=3,&6$/D6&J&A3=.2&^6
$6%.-/.KA$/=6)&-.%)$=.2&6I,+A&D3,&6"$%6&%=$().%>&D60+,6=>&6K,%=6
=.'&^6$6/+/Z-+2&,/'&/=6)&-.%)$=.2&6I,+-,$''&6"$%6D&2&)+I&D6
$/D6"$%B6./6=>&6&$,)*6D$*%B6$%6%.-/.KA$/=6./62+)3'&6=&,'%6$%6=>$=6
+06=>&6-+2&,/'&/=^6$/D6A+''.==&&%63/D&,=$4./-6&/=.,&)*6/&"6
03/A=.+/%6"&,&6&%=$().%>&DB6%3A>6$%6=>+%&6%A,3=./.%./-6K/$/A&6
$/D6I3().A6I&=.=.+/%#6

]/6&2&,*6+/&6+06=>&%&6$%I&A=%B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6&/%3,&D6=>$=60,+'6
D$*6+/&B6=>&6,&%+3,A&%6$2$.)$()&6$))+"&D6=>&%&6I,+A&D3,&%6=+6(&6
A$,,.&D6+3=6./6$6"$*6=>$=6A+3)D6(&6%&&/6$%6$/6&J&'I)$,60+,6+=>&,6
)&-.%)$=3,&%6./6=>&6po#6

=')&+'(66"#(82'%#'%2&'/&-,5/(%,.&'6"#8&55
5>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*6A>$'I.+/&D6$/6.//+2$=.2&6$II,+$A>6
=+6)&-.%)$=.+/6$/D6I3().A6A+/%3)=$=.+/%6+/6I,+I+%&D6)$"%#6

]/6j3/&6!77_B6j&//*6a$/D&,%+/6?P6"$%6%3AA&%%03)6./6=>&6K,%=6($))+=6
=+6./=,+D3A&6$6I,+I+%$)60+,6$6/&"6)$"6./6G$)&%B6+/6>+"6(&%=6=+6
&/%3,&6A>.)D,&/6>$D6$AA&%%6=+6>&$)=>*6$/D6/3=,.=.+3%60++D6">.)&6
$=6%A>++)#65+6>&)I6./0+,'6=>&6I,+I+%&D6)$"B6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6
&D3A$=.+/6%&,2.A&6$/D6+3=,&$A>6%&,2.A&%63%&D6%A>++)62.%.=%6=+6
=>&6N&/&DD6$/D6+3=,&$A>6&[+,=%6=+6-$=>&,6./0+,'$=.+/60,+'6
=>&6A>.)D,&/6=>&6I,+I+%&D6)$"6D.,&A=)*6$[&A=&D#65>.%6./2$)3$()&6
./0+,'$=.+/6"$%6I,&%&/=&D6=+6$/D63%&D6(*6=>&6H+''.==&&6$%6
&2.D&/A&6=+6>&)I60+,'6=>&6)$"#6

@+))+"./-6=>&6$-,&&'&/=6+06=>&6?%%&'()*6./6e)&/$,*B6=>&6)$"6"$%6
./=,+D3A&D6./6P$,A>6!778#6]=6"$%6=>&6K,%=6P&$%3,&6=+6(&$,6=>&6a+*$)6
V$D-&6+06G$)&%B6">.A>6/+"6$II&$,%6+/6$))6?%%&'()*6P&$%3,&%#6
V$%&D6+/6=>&6$,'%6+06=>&6/$=.2&6I,./A&%6+06G$)&%B6D$=./-6($A46=+6
=>&6;O=>6A&/=3,*B6.=6"$%6D&%.-/&D6(*6=>&6S$,=&,6o./-6+06?,'%B6e&=&,6
S"*//&Zj+/&%#6
666666666666666
?%6I$,=6+06=>&6?%%&'()*R%6A+''.='&/=6=+6'$4./-6./0+,'$=.+/6
$2$.)$()&6./6=>&6(&%=6I+%%.()&6"$*6$/D6%3II+,=./-6.=%6+(k&A=.2&6
+06I,+'+=./-6$/D6".D&/./-6&/-$-&'&/=6./6D&2+)3=.+/B6=>&6
H+''.%%.+/6$)%+6&/D+,%&D6=>&6+/6-+./-603/D./-6+06G$)&%6
c&-.%)$=.+/6h/)./&#6@3/D&D6k+./=)*6(*6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6$/D6=>&6
G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=B6.=6I,+2.D&%6$6I3().A6%+3,A&6+06./0+,'$=.+/6+/6
G&)%>6)&-.%)$=.+/6$/D6+/6=>&6)&-$)60,$'&"+,46".=>./6">.A>6D&2+)2&D6
03/A=.+/%6$,&6D.%A>$,-&D#6]=6.%60,&&6=+63%&,%6$/D6.%6%I&A.KA6=+6G&)%>6
)&-.%)$=.+/#6

B&-,5/(%,#)'()*'58"0%,)3
5>.%6.%6$6%3''$,*6+06=>&6?%%&'()*R%6)&-.%)$=.2&6$/D6%A,3=./*6
$A>.&2&'&/=%6+2&,6=>&6I$%=60+3,6*&$,%#6

C,@%&&)'B&-,5/(%,.&'A#$6&%&)8&'N"*&"56>$2&6(&&/6'$D&6
(*6b&,6P$k&%=*6./6H+3/A.)#6N)&'B&-,5/(%,.&'A#$6&%&)8&'N"*&"6
"$%6".=>D,$"/#6D+&)%3P%+#'Q&(50"&56>$2&6,&A&.2&D6a+*$)6
?II,+2$)B6./A)3D./-6=>&6K,%=6A+''.==&&ZI,+I+%&D6P&$%3,&6W=>&6
F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6H+''.%%.+/&,60+,6N=$/D$,D%6P&$%3,&6
!77QX6$/D6=>&6K,%=6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/ZI,+I+%&D6P&$%3,&6W=>&6
F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*60+,6G$)&%6Wa&'3/&,$=.+/X6P&$%3,&6!7;7X#6Page 67



O;N&A=.+/679L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-.A6-+$)%

A#$$0),%,&5'd'A0/%0"&

<)%&"6",5&'d'B&("),)-

O&(/%24':&//7&,)-'()*'
B#8(/'T#.&")$&)%

105%(,)(7,/,%3

?0"(/'9&.&/#6$&)%'
107PA#$$,%%&&

=0*,%e!07/,8'=88#0)%5'

A2,/*"&)'d'U#0)-'!&#6/&

<\0(/,%3'#@'N66#"%0),%3

<0"#6&()'()*'<f%&")(/'
=>(,"5

C,)()8&

!&%,%,#)5

18"0%,)3'#@'C,"5%'Q,),5%&"

1%()*("*5'#@'A#)*08%

B&-,5/(%,#)'A#$$,%%&&5

107#"*,)(%&'B&-,5/(%,#)e
A#)5%,%0%,#)(/'=>(,"5'
A#$$,%%&&

D#%(/

M)8/0*&5'FX'&f%&")(/'
$&&%,)-5

FGGHIGX' FGGXIGW' FGGWIJG' FGJGIJJ' D#%(/

;O6 6 ;96 6 ;M6 6 ;_6 6 M7

!!6 6 OO6 6 !M6 6 !O6 6 ;79

;_6 6 O!6 6 !O6 6 ;_6 6 8Q

;86 6 !M6 6 !96 6 !;6 6 8Q

;;6 6 !!6 6 !76 6 ;96 6 M_

XJ' ' JFH' ' JGW' ' WF' ' ZGW
6 6

7M6 6 ;_6 6 ;M6 6 !O6 6 M!

7_6 6 ;Q6 6 ;M6 6 ;_6 6 :Q

;;6 6 ;M6 6 ;M6 6 ;:6 6 :8

7M6 6 ;O6 6 ;:6 6 ;M6 6 :7

;96 6 ;Q6 6 !O6 6 !!6 6 _8

;;6 6 ;Q6 6 ;:6 6 ;M6 6 M;

6 6 6 6 7!6 6 7!6 6 79

7O6 6 7M6 6 7!6 6 796 6 ;:

]X' ' JGW' ' JG]' ' JGF' ' VXH
6 6

:76 6 QM6 6 ;7!6 6 _Q6 6 O!_

;Q6 6 OO6 6 O76 6 !Q6 6 ;;;

MQ6 6 ;!Q6 6 ;O!6 6 ;786 6 9O8
' '

FGX' ' V[]' ' VZ[' ' VGF' ' JFVZ
' ' ' '
7O6 6 ;96 6 7_6 6 796 6 !8

<%#"'(&:,-+0(%/(8%,,$##++(,++#$&7*(
$&(#;+(<;$05()**+,-'.

Page 68



O!

]/63/D&,=$4./-6=>&.,6)&-.%)$=.2&B6%A,3=./*6$/D6,&I,&%&/=$=.2&6
03/A=.+/%B6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6'3%=6>$2&6$AA&%%6=+60$A=3$)6
./0+,'$=.+/6>&)D6(*6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=#65>&6a&%&$,A>6N&,2.A&6
>$%6$64&*6,+)&6=+6I)$*6./6I,+2.D./-6P&'(&,%6".=>6$3=>+,.=$=.2&B6>.->6
\3$).=*B6=.'&)*6$/D63IZ=+ZD$=&6./0+,'$=.+/B6=>&,&(*6%3II+,=./-6=>&6
%=,$=&-.A6I3,I+%&6+06=>&6?%%&'()*B6">.A>6A$//+=603/A=.+/6".=>+3=6$6
I,+I&,6g+"6+06./0+,'$=.+/#65>.%6"$%6,&A+-/.%&D6(*6=>&6]/D&I&/D&/=6
a&2.&"6e$/&)6./6!77Q6$/D6(*6=>&6a&'3/&,$=.+/6V+$,D6./6!7;;6">.A>6
,&A+''&/D&D6=>$=6./D.2.D3$)6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6/&&D6(&==&,6
$AA&%%6=+6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6+iA.$)%6$/D6=>&6./0+,'$=.+/6=>&*6>+)DB6
2.$6=>&6a&%&$,A>6N&,2.A&#
6
]/6!77_6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6I3=6./6I)$A&6$6%&=6+06$,,$/-&'&/=%6
">&,&(*6$))6,&\3&%=%60+,6./0+,'$=.+/6'$D&6(*6=>&6a&%&$,A>6N&,2.A&6
+/6(&>$)06+06P&'(&,%6>$D6=+6(&6,+3=&DB6./6",.=./-B6=>,+3->6=>&6
P./.%=&,.$)6e,.2$=&6hiA&%#6a&%&$,A>6N&,2.A&6%=$[6$,&6I,+>.(.=&D6
(*6D.,&A=6A+/=$A=6".=>6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6+iA.$)%6$/D6%+6>$2&6
'+,&6,&%=,.A=&D6$AA&%%6=>$/6+=>&,6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6%=$[6+,6
A+))&$-3&%6./6=>&6&\3.2$)&/=6,&%&$,A>6%&,2.A&%6./6=>&6b+3%&%6+06
e$,).$'&/=6$/D6=>&6+=>&,6D&2+)2&D6)&-.%)$=3,&%#6

5>&6a&'3/&,$=.+/6V+$,D6,&A+''&/D&D6=>$=6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6
&/-$-&D6".=>6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6=+6I3=6./6I)$A&6$,,$/-&'&/=%6
&\3.2$)&/=6=+6=>+%&6./6+=>&,6I$,).$'&/=$,*6./%=.=3=.+/%6+06=>&6poB6
/$'&)*6$6%&,2.A&6($%&D6+/6=>&6I,./A.I)&%6=>$=6./D.2.D3$)6P&'(&,%6
$/D6A+''.==&&%6'3%=6>$2&6$6I,.+,.=.%&D6,.->=6+06$AA&%%6=+60$A=3$)6
./0+,'$=.+/6>&)D6(*6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6$/D6=>$=6a&%&$,A>6
N&,2.A&6%=$[6%>+3)D6(&6$()&6=+6A+''3/.A$=&6D.,&A=)*6".=>6=>&6
,&)&2$/=6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6I+).A*6+iA.$)%#6

?&8#$$&)*(%,#)5'%#'5088&55#"'A#$$,55,#)
]=6.%6,&A+''&/D&D6=>$=6=>&6/&J=6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6%>+3)D6
A+/A&/=,$=&6+/6=>&60+))+"./-6>.->6)&2&)6.%%3&%6./6,&)$=.+/6=+6=>&6
%=,$=&-.A6-+$)6TN>+"63/.=*B6)&$D&,%>.IB6$/D6$6(+)D6,&%I+/%&6=+6
A+/%=.=3=.+/$)6A>$/-&UY
<$,)*6./6=>&6@+3,=>6?%%&'()*6=&,'Y
6L &/%3,&6=>$=6,&%+3,A&%6$,&6./6I)$A&6=+6'&&=6=>&603=3,&6
,&\3.,&'&/=%6+06=>&6?%%&'()*60+))+"./-6=>&6`*&%R62+=&6$/D6=>&6
D&A.%.+/%6+06=>&6V3%./&%%6H+''.==&&l?%%&'()*6./6,&%I&A=6+06=>&6
+,-$/.%$=.+/6+06e)&/$,*6$/D6A+''.==&&6(3%./&%%^
6L ).$.%&6".=>6=>&6a&'3/&,$=.+/6V+$,D6=+6&/%3,&6=>$=6H+''.%%.+/6
$/D6V+$,D6D&A.%.+/%6A+'I)&'&/=6&$A>6+=>&,6">&,&2&,6I+%%.()&^
6L &/-$-&6".=>6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6=+6&/%3,&6=>$=6./D.2.D3$)6
P&'(&,%6$/D6A+''.==&&%6>$2&6$6I,.+,.=.%&D6,.->=6+06$AA&%%6
=+60$A=3$)6./0+,'$=.+/6>&)D6(*6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=#

Page 69



OON&A=.+/679L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-.A6-+$)%

QM&("''(%:0(4%0CS(4+(4$''(5+,%&*#0"#+(0+*?+8#S(
?0%-$#.("&5(7%%5(7%9+0&"&8+R
T?))6=>$=6"&6D+6'3%=6(&6A$I$()&6+06./=&/%&6&J=&,/$)6%A,3=./*B6(&6
=,$/%I$,&/=6$/D6%>+3)D6,&g&A=6=>&6D.2&,%&6/$=3,&6+06G$)&%6$/D6
.=%6)$/-3$-&%6./6>+"6.=6D&$)%6".=>6$/D6./2+)2&%6=>&6A.=.f&/#U

]/6I)$//./-60+,6=>&6&%=$().%>'&/=6+06=>&6./$3-3,$)6?%%&'()*6
H+''.%%.+/B6=>&6N>$D+"6H+''.%%.+/6I)$A&D6,.-+,+3%6A+,I+,$=&6
-+2&,/$/A&6$=6=>&6>&$,=6+06=>&6&'&,-./-6I$,).$'&/=$,*6(+D*R%6
+I&,$=.+/%#6?6H+,I+,$=&6S+2&,/$/A&6H+''.==&&6"$%6&%=$().%>&D6
=+6$D2.%&6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6$/D6=>&6H>.&06<J&A3=.2&6+/6.%%3&%6=+6
D+6".=>6K/$/A&B6$3D.=6I,+=+A+)6$/D6A+,I+,$=&6-+2&,/$/A&#6N=,+/-6
./=&,/$)6A$I$(.).=.&%6"&,&603,=>&,6(+)%=&,&D6(*6=>&6$II+./='&/=6+06
./D&I&/D&/=6$D2.%&,%6=+6$%%.%=6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6./6A$,,*./-6+3=6.=%6
D3=.&%#6

@./$/A.$)6,&%+3,A&%6$/D6I,.+,.=.&%60+,6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6$,&6$II,+2&D6
D3,./-6=>&6?3=3'/6=&,'6=>,+3->6$62+=&6./6e)&/$,*#65>&6I,+A&%%6
.%6%&=6+3=6./6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6N=$/D./-6h,D&,%6$/D6./2+)2&%6=>&6
H+''.%%.+/6)$*./-6$6D,$0=6(3D-&=B6">.A>6.%6%A,3=./.%&D6(*6=>&6
?%%&'()*R%6@./$/A&6H+''.==&&#65>&6H+''.==&&R%6K/D./-%6+/6=>&6
(3D-&=6I,+I+%$)%6$,&6A+/%.D&,&D6$/D6$II,+2&D6(*6=>&6?%%&'()*6
./6$6D&($=&#6]/6$DD.=.+/B6D3,./-6=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6
>$%6%+3->=6%3II)&'&/=$,*6(3D-&=%6$%6$6'&A>$/.%'6=+6$Dk3%=6
=>&6$II,+2&D6(3D-&=#6]/6D+./-6%+B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6'3%=6&JI)$./6
=>&6,$=.+/$)&60+,6=>&6I,+I+%&D6$DD.=.+/$)6%I&/D6=+6=>&6@./$/A&6
H+''.==&&#6

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6>$%6%&=6+3=6$6(3D-&=6%=,$=&-*60+,6=>&6@+3,=>6
?%%&'()*6".=>6=>&6$.'6+06,&D3A./-6.=%6(3D-&=6./6)./&6".=>6
I&,A&/=$-&6,&D3A=.+/%6./6=>&6G&)%>6()+A4#

5>.%6,+(3%=6%A,3=./*6I,+A&%%6>&)I%6%=,&/-=>&/6=>&6$AA+3/=$(.).=*6
$/D6=,$/%I$,&/A*6+06=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6%I&/D./-6I)$/%#6

?603,=>&,6A+''.='&/=6=+6'$4./-6=>&6?%%&'()*6$6=,3)*6=,$/%I$,&/=6
$/D6$AA+3/=$()&6./%=.=3=.+/6"$%6$6I,+'I=6$/D6+I&/6$II,+$A>6=+6
,&%I+/D./-6=+6,&\3&%=%63/D&,6=>&6@,&&D+'6+06]/0+,'$=.+/6?A=#6
5>&6?%%&'()*6,&A&.2&D6!7:6,&\3&%=%6D3,./-6=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*6
".=>6!7;;6%&&./-6$6I$,=.A3)$,)*6%>$,I6,.%&6./6=>&6/3'(&,6+06,&\3&%=%6
,&A&.2&D#65>&60+A3%6+06,&\3&%=%62$,.&D6%.-/.KA$/=)*6$/D6,&\3&%=%6
"&,&6%&/=6(*6'&'(&,%6+06=>&6-&/&,$)6I3().AB6./=&,&%=6-,+3I%6
$/D6=>&6'&D.$#6

5>&6/$=3,&6+06,&\3&%=%6>$2&6,$/-&D60,+'6%.'I)&6&JI)$/$=.+/%6$(+3=6
=>&6"+,46+06=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6,&\3&%=%60+,6A+I.&%6+06D+A3'&/=%6
=>,+3->6=+6'+,&6./2+)2&D6$/$)*%&%#6?6%.-/.KA$/=6/3'(&,6+06,&\3&%=%6
,&A&.2&D6WM9X6,&)$=&D6=+6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%B6./A)3D./-6=>&.,6I$*6
$/D6I&/%.+/%B6$))+"$/A&%6$/D6&JI&/%&%B6$/D6A+%=%6+06=>&.,6%3II+,=6
%=$[#6?6A+/%.D&,$()&6$'+3/=6+06./0+,'$=.+/6,&)$=./-6=+6?%%&'()*6
P&'(&,%R6$))+"$/A&%6$/D6&JI&/%&%6.%6/+"6I3().%>&D6+/6=>&6
?%%&'()*6"&(%.=&6">.A>6>$%6>&)I&D63%6=+6I,+2.D&6=>.%6./0+,'$=.+/6=+6
=>&6-&/&,$)6I3().A6$/D6%=$4&>+)D&,%6./6$/6+I&/6$/D6=,$/%I$,&/=6"$*#6

Page 70



O9

5>&6=$()&6+II+%.=&6D&=$.)%6=>&6/3'(&,6+06,&\3&%=%6,&A&.2&D6$/D6
.D&/=.K&%6=>+%&6%I&A.KA$))*6,&)$=./-6=+6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6
(&="&&/6!77_L;;#

h=>&,6,&\3&%=%6I,+A&%%&D6D3,./-6=>.%6I&,.+D6,&)$=&D6=+6A+%=%6(+,/&6
(*6=>&6?%%&'()*60+,6$,&$%6+06%I&A.KA6&JI&/D.=3,&6%3A>6$%6I3().A6
&/-$-&'&/=B6=,$././-6$/D6D&2&)+I'&/=B6G&)%>6)$/-3$-&63%&6$/D6
I+).A.&%B6=>&6+,-$/.%$=.+/6$/D6%=,3A=3,&6+06=>&6?%%&'()*B6A+'I)$./=%6
,&)$=./-6=+6P&'(&,%B6=>&6"+,46+06=>&6H+''.%%.+/&,60+,6N=$/D$,D%6
$/D6%3%=$./$(.).=*#

]/6P$*6!778B6$603))6*&$,6(&0+,&6=>&6d$.)*65&)&-,$I>6I3().%>&D6D&=$.)%6
+06Pe%R6&JI&/%&%B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6$II,+2&D6=>&6&%=$().%>'&/=6+06
$/6./D&I&/D&/=6I$/&)6=+6,&2.&"6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%R6,&'3/&,$=.+/#6
h2&,6$6=&/Z'+/=>6I&,.+D6$6I$/&)B6A>$.,&D6(*6N.,6a+-&,6j+/&%B6
3/D&,=++46$603))6,&2.&"6+06?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%R6I$*6$/D6$))+"$/A&%6
0+,6=,$2&)B6$AA+''+D$=.+/B603/D./-60+,6A+/%=.=3&/A*6$/D6,&-.+/$)6
+iA&%6$/D6%3II+,=6%=$[#6]=%6,&I+,=B6S&==./-6.=6a.->=60+,6G$)&%B6"$%6
I3().%>&D6./6j3)*6!77QB6$/D6"$%6=>&6K,%=6%3A>6,&2.&"6=+6(&6I3().%>&D6
./6=>&6po#65>&6H+''.%%.+/6$AA&I=&D6$))6=>&6,&A+''&/D$=.+/%6
A+/=$./&D6./6=>&6,&2.&"#6

]/6=>&6'&$/=.'&B6$6I3().A6+/)./&6)+-6+06?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%R6
&JI&/%&%6A)$.'%6"$%6)$3/A>&D6+/6=>&6F$=.+/$)6?%%&'()*6"&(%.=&B6
$))+"./-6&2&,*+/&6=+6%&&B6$=6=>&6A).A46+06$6'+3%&B6">$=6&JI&/%&%6
=>&.,6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6>$D6A)$.'&D#6H)$.'%6$,&6I3().%>&D6
'+/=>)*B6=>,&&6'+/=>%6./6$,,&$,%#6

5+6.'I)&'&/=6=>&6K/D./-%B6$/D6./6$603,=>&,6%.-/.KA$/=6%=&I6=+6
&/%3,&6=>$=6=>&,&6$,&6,.-+,+3%6$/D6./D&I&/D&/=6'&A>$/.%'%6
0+,6D&A.D./-6>+"6$/D6">$=6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6$,&6I$.DB6=>&6
H+''.%%.+/6I,+I+%&D6.=%6K,%=6&2&,6P&$%3,&6=+6&%=$().%>6$/6
./D&I&/D&/=6a&'3/&,$=.+/6V+$,D#65>&6V+$,DB6">.A>6>$D6
,&%I+/%.(.).=*60+,6%&==./-6=>&6I$*6$/D6$))+"$/A&%60+,6?%%&'()*6
P&'(&,%B6,&I+,=&D6./6P$,A>6!7;;#65>&6d&=&,'./$=.+/B6">.A>6
"$%6$AA+'I$/.&D6(*6=>&6,&I+,=B6@.=60+,6e3,I+%&B6"$%6D&%.-/&D6=+6
I,+2.D&6P&'(&,%6".=>6=>&6,&\3.%.=&6=++)%6$/D6%3II+,=6=+6I&,0+,'6
=>&.,6A+,&603/A=.+/%6+06%A,3=./.%./-6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=B6'$4./-6
)$"%6$/D6,&I,&%&/=./-6=>&.,6A+/%=.=3&/=%#6]=6$)%+6,&g&A=&D6=>&6G&)%>6
K/$/A.$)6=+I+-,$I>*6./6=&,'%6+06=.->=6I3().A6%&A=+,6(3D-&=%6$/D6
$2&,$-&6I$*6)&2&)%6$A,+%%6G$)&%#6]=6+[&,&D6$6%3%=$./$()&6$/D6A+%=Z
&[&A=.2&6%*%=&'6+06K/$/A.$)6%3II+,=60+,6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6$/D6
"$%63/D&,I.//&D6(*6=>,&&6A+,&6I,./A.I)&%6=+6&/%3,&6=>$=6=>&6%*%=&'6
+06K/$/A.$)6%3II+,=60+,6P&'(&,%Y
6L D+&%6/+=6D&=&,B6+/6K/$/A.$)6-,+3/D%B6I&,%+/%6".=>6=>&6/&A&%%$,*6
A+''.='&/=6$/D6$(.).=*60,+'6%&&4./-6&)&A=.+/6$%6?%%&'()*6
P&'(&,%^6
6L I,+2.D&%6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6".=>6$D&\3$=&6,&%+3,A&%6=+6&/$()&6
=>&'6=+6&J&,A.%&6=>&.,603/A=.+/%6$%6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%^6$/DB6
6L &/%3,&%6=>$=6I3().A6'+/&*6.%6%I&/=6".=>6I,+(.=*B6$AA+3/=$(.).=*B6
2$)3&60+,6'+/&*6$/D6=,$/%I$,&/A*#6

U&("

FGGH
FGGX
FGGW
FGJG
FGJJ
E%#'=6",/K

D#%(/')0$7&"'
#@'"&\0&5%5

FZ
Z]
]F
]Z
VG

Y0$7&"'#@'"&\0&5%5'
"&/(%,)-'%#'Q&$7&"5'

GH
F]
JF
J]
G]

Page 71



O:N&A=.+/679L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-.A6-+$)%

]/6!7;;B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6I,+D3A&D6.=%6K,%=6<\3$).=*6N=$=&'&/=B6
./A)3D./-6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%62$)3&%6$/D62.%.+/60+,6I,+'+=./-6&\3$).=*6
$/D6I3().%>&D6$/6<\3$).=*6NA>&'&#6@+))+"./-6&J=&/%.2&6A+/%3)=$=.+/6
".=>6%=$4&>+)D&,%6$/D6&JI)+,$=.+/6+06(&%=6I,$A=.A&6$,,$/-&'&/=%6./6
+=>&,6+,-$/.%$=.+/%B6=>&6NA>&'&6%&=6+3=6=>&6&\3$).=*6+(k&A=.2&%60+,6
=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*6=&,'6$/D6$//3$)6,&I+,=%6>$2&6(&&/6I3().%>&D6
&2&,*6*&$,6=+6I,+2.D&6$/63ID$=&6+/6I,+-,&%%#65>&6+(k&A=.2&%6>$2&6
0+A3%&D6+/6./A,&$%./-6$AA&%%6=+6=>&6?%%&'()*6$/D6.=%6%&,2.A&%B6
".D&/./-6&/-$-&'&/=B6$/D6(&A+'./-6$/6&J&'I)$,6&'I)+*&,6$/D6
%&,2.A&6I,+2.D&,#65>&6?%%&'()*R%6<\3$).=*6+06hII+,=3/.=*6H+''.==&&6
%A,3=./.%&D6=>&6,&I+,=6$//3$))*6$/D6'+/.=+,&D6I,+-,&%%6+/6.=%6
.'I)&'&/=$=.+/#6

5>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6"+,4&D6./6I$,=/&,%>.I6".=>6hI&,$=.+/6
V)$A46n+=&6./6!77_6=+6,3/6=>&6K,%=6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,6N>$D+"./-6
NA>&'&6./6G$)&%60+,6()$A46$/D6'./+,.=*6&=>/.A6I&+I)&#6@+))+"./-6
+/60,+'6=>&6%3AA&%%6+06=>$=6%A>&'&B6./6!77QL;76=>&6H+''.%%.+/6
"+,4&D6./6I$,=/&,%>.I6".=>6=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=6$/D6G&)%>6c+A$)6
S+2&,/'&/=6?%%+A.$=.+/6=+6D&2&)+I6$/D6,3/6N=&I6pI6H*',3B6$6
'&/=+,./-6$/D6,+)&Z%>$D+"./-6%A>&'&60+,6I&+I)&6">+60&)=6=>$=6
=>&*6"&,&63/D&,Z,&I,&%&/=&D6./6G&)%>6I+).=.A$)6$/D6A.2.)6).0&#6

='%"0/3'7,/,)-0(/'#"-(),5(%,#)
]/6!77QB6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6&%=$().%>&D6$/6./D&I&/D&/=6,&2.&"6I$/&)6
=+6)++46$=6=>&6I,+2.%.+/6+06.=%6(.)./-3$)6%&,2.A&%#6H>$.,&D6(*6?,"&)6<)).%6
h"&/B6.=6'$D&6$6/3'(&,6+06,&A+''&/D$=.+/%B6./A)3D./-6D&2&)+I./-6
$6'+,&63%&,Z0,.&/D)*62&,%.+/6+06=>&6a&A+,D6+06e,+A&&D./-%B6=>&6
2&,($=.'6=,$/%A,.I=.+/6+06D&($=&%6./6=>&6?%%&'()*6N.$'(,#6

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6$)%+6I,+I+%&D6=>$=6.=6%>+3)D6./=,+D3A&6$6/&"6
P&$%3,&6=>$=6"+3)D6I)$A&6$6)&-$)6D3=*6+/6=>&6?%%&'()*6=+6&/%3,&6
(.)./-3$).%'6"$%6$=6=>&6A&/=,&6+06.=%6%&,2.A&6I,+2.%.+/#65>&6I,+A&%%6
".))6(&-./6".=>6$6I3().A6A+/%3)=$=.+/6&$,)*6./6=>&6@+3,=>6?%%&'()*#6

?&8#$$&)*(%,#)5'%#'5088&55#"'A#$$,55,#)
]=6.%6,&A+''&/D&D6=>$=6=>&6/&J=6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6%>+3)D6
A+/A&/=,$=&6+/6=>&60+))+"./-6>.->Z)&2&)6.%%3&%6./6,&)$=.+/6=+6
=>&6%=,$=&-.A6-+$)6Td&'+/%=,$=&6,&%I&A=B6I,+(.=*6$/D6-++D6
-+2&,/$/A&UY
6L A+/%.D&,6A$,&03))*6=>&6$II,+I,.$=&6($)$/A&6(&="&&/6&A+/+'.&%6
$/D6%&,2.A&6D&).2&,*6=+6$2+.D6D$'$-./-6&%%&/=.$)6%&,2.A&%6=+6
P&'(&,%6$/D6"$%=./-6&/&,-*6$/D6,&%+3,A&%6+/6D&0&/D./-6
D&A.%.+/%6=>$=6P&'(&,%6K/D63/$AA&I=$()&^
6L &/%3,&6=>$=6&\3$).=*6$/D6D.2&,%.=*6D+6/+=6%3[&,6D3,./-6=+3->6
&A+/+'.A6=.'&%^
6L I,+A&&D6".=>6/&"6$,,$/-&'&/=%6=+6%=,&/-=>&/6+3,6D&).2&,*6
+06(.)./-3$)6%&,2.A&%B6./A)3D./-6$/6hiA.$)6c$/-3$-&%6NA>&'&^
6L %3II+,=6=>&6?3D.=6H+''.==&&6./6.=%6"+,46=+6'$./=$./6>.->6
%=$/D$,D%6+06-+2&,/$/A&6,.->=6$A,+%%6=>&6+,-$/.%$=.+/B6./A)3D./-6
./6=>&6$,&$%6+06I,+A3,&'&/=6$/D6A+/=,$A=6'$/$-&'&/=#

Page 72



OM

Q1+(4$''(4%0C(*:*#"$&"-'.R
TG&6".))6%>+"6)&$D&,%>.I6./6>+"6"&6'$/$-&6+3,6"+,46$/D6&%=$=&B6
$/D6"&6$.'6=+6I,+2.D&6=>&6>.->&%=6$A>.&2$()&6)&2&)6+06%3%=$./$(.).=*6
./6(+=>#U

@,+'6=>&6+3=%&=B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6>$%6,&A+-/.%&D6=>&6/&&D60+,6
=>&6?%%&'()*6=+6(&6$6)&$D&,6./6.=%6$'(.=.+/6=+6"+,46%3%=$./$()*6
$/D6>$%6%&=6,.-+,+3%6(3=6"+,4$()&6%3%=$./$(.).=*6I+).A.&%#65>,+3->6
=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6&/2.,+/'&/=$)6I+).A*B6=>&6?%%&'()*6A+/=./3&%6
=+6'./.'.%&6.=%6&/2.,+/'&/=$)6.'I$A=6(*6A+/%3'./-60&"&,6/+/Z
,&/&"$()&6,&%+3,A&%B6,&D3A./-6"$%=&B6,&A*A)./-B6I,&2&/=./-6
I+))3=.+/6$/D6A+'I)*./-6".=>6$))6&/2.,+/'&/=$)6)&-.%)$=.+/#65>&6
H+''.%%.+/6.%6A+''.==&D6=+6$A>.&2./-6&/2.,+/'&/=$)6&JA&))&/A&6
$/D6(&./-6$/6&J&'I)$,6./6&/2.,+/'&/=$)6I&,0+,'$/A&#65>&6N&/&DD6
>$%6(&&/6>$.)&D6$%6$6(&/A>'$,460+,6%3%=$./$()&6A+/%=,3A=.+/6$/D6
+I&,$=.+/$)63%&#

h2&,6=>&6A+3,%&6+06=>&6I$%=60+3,6*&$,%B6=>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6
>$%6+2&,%&&/6$6/3'(&,6+06/+=$()&6$A>.&2&'&/=%6./6=&,'%6+06
+I&,$=.+/$)6%3%=$./$(.).=*#65>&%&6,$/-&60,+'6.'I,+2./-6=>&6A$,(+/6
0++=I,./=6+06+3,6&%=$=&6=+6D&2&)+I./-6/&"6"$*%6+06"+,4./-6=+6)&%%&/6
$D2&,%&6&/2.,+/'&/=$)6.'I$A=#6
6L 5>&6?%%&'()*6>$%6$A>.&2&D6,&ZA&,=.KA$=.+/6=+6c&2&)6:6+06=>&6S,&&/6
d,$-+/6</2.,+/'&/=$)6N=$/D$,D60+,6=>&6">+)&6H$,D.[6V$*6&%=$=&#
6L ]/6!77QL;7B6$/686I&,6A&/=6,&D3A=.+/6./6&/&,-*6&'.%%.+/%6
"$%6$A>.&2&D6./6)./&6".=>6=>&6=$,-&=%6+3=)./&D6./6=>&6H$,(+/6
P$/$-&'&/=6e)$/#65>.%6>$%6$)%+64&I=6+3,6&/&,-*6A+%=%6%=$()&B6
D&%I.=&6./A,&$%./-6I,.A&%#
6L ]/6P$,A>6!77QB6=>&6?%%&'()*6$A>.&2&D6`c&2&)69L</>$/A./-6
h,-$/.%$=.+/R6+/6=>&6n$)3&6G$)&%6N3%=$./$()&6e,+A3,&'&/=6
?%%&%%'&/=6@,$'&"+,4#
6L 5>&6H+''.%%.+/6>$%6$-,&&D6$6I,+-,$''&6+06.'I,+2&'&/=%6=+6
=>&6%3%=$./$(.).=*6+06+3,6(3.)D./-%6+2&,6=>&6/&J=60+3,6*&$,%6$/D6$))6
,+3=./&6'$./=&/$/A&6.%6A$,,.&D6+3=6".=>6&/2.,+/'&/=$)6.'I$A=6
./6'./D#6
6L d.%I)$*6</&,-*6H&,=.KA$=&6Wd<HX6,$=./-%60+,6$))6=>,&&6(3.)D./-%6
./6=>&6?%%&'()*6&%=$=&6>$2&6.'I,+2&D#
6L ]/6P$*6!77QB6$6A*A)&6=+6"+,46%$)$,*6%$A,.KA&6%A>&'&6"$%6
./=,+D3A&D6=+6&/A+3,$-&6%3%=$./$()&6A+''3=./-#66?6=+=$)6+06;M6
(3.)D./-63%&,%6>$2&6%.-/&D63I#
6L ]/6!77QL;7B6$6A+''&,A.$)6A+'I+%=6A+))&A=.+/6"$%6%&=63I6$/D6=>&6
?%%&'()*6A+'I+%=&D6+2&,6%&2&/6=+//&%6+06.=%60++D6"$%=&60+,6)+A$)6
,&A)$'$=.+/6I,+k&A=%#
6L ]'I,+2&'&/=%6./6A+,I+,$=&6,&I+,=./-6)&D6=+6+I&//&%%6$(+3=6
%A+I&6;B6!6$/D6O6&'.%%.+/%60+,6=>&6K,%=6=.'&6./6!77QL;7#
6L 5>&6./=,+D3A=.+/6+06$6)+"6&'.%%.+/6I++)6A$,60+,6(3%./&%%6=,$2&)6>$%6
)&D6=+6A+%=6%$2./-%6+06v!B:776$/D6$6,&D3A=.+/6+067#:6=+//&%6+06Hh

!
6

+2&,6;76'+/=>%#

Page 73



O_N&A=.+/679L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-.A6-+$)%

?&8#$$&)*(%,#)5'%#'5088&55#"'A#$$,55,#)
]=6.%6,&A+''&/D&D6=>$=6=>&6/&J=6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6%>+3)D6
A+/A&/=,$=&6+/6=>&60+))+"./-6>.->Z)&2&)6.%%3&%6./6,&)$=.+/6=+6=>&6
%=,$=&-.A6-+$)6TG+,46N3%=$./$()*UY
6L ,&A+-/.%&6$/D6(3.)D63I+/6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6)&$D&,%>.I6./6%&A3,./-6
%3%=$./$()&6"+,4./-60+,6=>&6?%%&'()*6">&/6D&A.D./-6I,.+,.=.&%60+,6
=>&6@+3,=>6?%%&'()*^
6L .D&/=.0*6"$*%6=+6'$./=$./6'+'&/=3'6">&/6=>&6&A+/+'.A6
A).'$=&6A+3)D6'$4&6D.,&A=6./2&%='&/=6./6%3%=$./$(.).=*6'+,&6
D.iA3)=6=+6$A>.&2&^
6L '$4&6+3,6$A>.&2&'&/=%6./6&/2.,+/'&/=$)6I+).A.&%6$/D6+3,6".%>6
=+6%3%=$./6=>&6'+'&/=3'6$64&*6I$,=6+06A+''3/.A$=.+/%6".=>6
$/D6&D3A$=.+/6+063%&,%6+06=>&6?%%&'()*6&%=$=&B62.%.=+,%6$/D6
".D&,6G$)&%^
6L $%6I$,=6+06=>.%6$II,+$A>B6I,.+,.=.%&6%3%=$./$(.).=*6I+).A.&%6A$,&03))*6
=+6$A>.&2&6D&%.,&D6+3=A+'&%6".=>+3=6./$II,+I,.$=&6.'I$A=63I+/6
P&'(&,%6$/D6+=>&,%6">+63%&6=>&6?%%&'()*6&%=$=&#66

Page 74



O8

Q1+(4$''(+&*:0+(#;"#(#;+()**+,-'.(;"*(#;+(-+*#(
*+09$8+S(?0%9$5+5($&(#;+(,%*#(+T+8#$9+(4".R
TG&6".))6=$4&6=>&6%&,2.A&%6I,+2.D&D60+,6P&'(&,%6$/D6=>&6I&+I)&6
+06G$)&%6=+6$6>.->&,6)&2&)B6">.)&6D&'+/%=,$=./-6".%&6$/D6&[&A=.2&6
3%&6+06.=%6,&%+3,A&%6$/D62$)3&60+,6'+/&*#65>&6&=>+%6+06%&,2.A&B6
=+6P&'(&,%6$/D6$/*+/&6">+6&/-$-&%6".=>6=>&6?%%&'()*B6D,.2&%6
&2&,*=>./-6=>$=6"&6D+#U

<)50",)-'7&5%'05&'#@'%&82)#/#-3
@+))+"./-6$6'$k+,6A+/%3)=$=.+/6".=>6P&'(&,%B6%=$[6$/D6+=>&,6
%=$4&>+)D&,%6+/6>+"6.=6A$/6+I=.'.%&63%&6+06./0+,'$=.+/6$/D6
A+''3/.A$=.+/%6=&A>/+)+-*6=+6(&==&,6&/-$-&6".=>6=>&6I&+I)&6
+06G$)&%B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6A+'I)&=&D6$6%.-/.KA$/=6I,+k&A=6=+6A,&$=&6
$63/.K&D6./0+,'$=.+/6=&A>/+)+-*6/&="+,460+,6P&'(&,%6
$/D6?%%&'()*6%=$[#6

5>.%6"+3)D6K/$))*6%&A3,&6$/6]56./0,$%=,3A=3,&6=>$=6"$%6%&I$,$=&6=+6
=>$=6+06=>&6G&)%>6S+2&,/'&/=B6">.A>6+[&,&D6)+/-&,Z=&,'6(&/&K=%6
+06A+%=Z&[&A=.2&/&%%B6'$/$-./-6./0+,'$=.+/B6I3().A6&/-$-&'&/=B6]56
I,+A3,&'&/=6$/D6&/>$/A./-6(3%./&%%6A+/=./3.=*#65>.%6"$%6$A>.&2&D6
=>,+3->6,&D.,&A=./-6v;6'.)).+/6+06%&,2.A&6$/D6I,+k&A=6(3D-&=%6=+6
&/%3,&6=>&6D&).2&,*6+06=>&6I,+k&A=6./6=>&6!7;76L;;6K/$/A.$)6*&$,6
".=>+3=6=>&6/&&D60+,6$DD.=.+/$)603/D./-#6

Q(;,)-'%2&'$#5%'#@'#0"'5%(>
a&A+-/.%./-6=>$=6%3AA&%%6D&I&/D%6+/6I&+I)&B6+/&6+06=>&6
H+''.%%.+/R%6&$,)*6D&A.%.+/%6"$%6=+6$D+I=6$6e&+I)&6N=,$=&-*6
%&==./-6+3=6K2&6$'(.=.+/%60+,6%=$[6&/-$-&'&/=6$/D6D&2&)+I'&/=Y
6L =+6>$2&6=>&6,.->=6%4.))%6./6=>&6,.->=6I)$A&6$=6=>&6,.->=6=.'&^
6L 0+,6I&+I)&6=+6(&6D&2&)+I&D6=+6'$J.'.%&6=>&.,6A+/=,.(3=.+/^
6L =+6,&A+-/.%&6%3AA&%%6$/D6,&"$,D6A+/=,.(3=.+/^
6L =+62$)3&6D.2&,%.=*6$/D6"&))(&./-^6$/DB
6L =+6>$2&6-,&$=6)&$D&,%6$/D6-,&$=6'$/$-&,%#

5>&6H+''.%%.+/6(&A$'&6$AA,&D.=&D6$%6$/6]/2&%=+,6./6e&+I)&6
./6?I,.)6!77Q6$/D6A&'&/=&D6.=%6$II,+$A>6=+6%=$[6&/-$-&'&/=6
$/D6D&2&)+I'&/=6(*6(&./-6$%%&%%&D6$%6$6S+)D6N=$/D$,D6]/2&%=+,
./6e&+I)&6D3,./-6!7;7B6+/&6+06+/)*6=>,&&6$"$,D&D6./6G$)&%#6
]/2&%='&/=6./6)&$,/./-6$/D6D&2&)+I'&/=6.%6>3-&)*6.'I+,=$/=6
=+6=>&6H+''.%%.+/B6".=>6v;#!6'.)).+/6(&./-6%I&/=6+2&,6=>&6A+3,%&6
+06=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*#

Page 75



OQN&A=.+/679L6666666666666666666666 N=,$=&-.A6-+$)%

='82()-,)-'c)()8,(/'/()*58(6&
N+3/D6K/$/A.$)6'$/$-&'&/=6).&%6$=6=>&6>&$,=6+06-++D6A+,I+,$=&6
-+2&,/$/A&#6b+"&2&,B6.=%6.'I+,=$/A&6(&A$'&6&2&/6'+,&6&2.D&/=6
".=>6=>&6%>.0=6./6=>&6K/$/A.$)6A).'$=&6+2&,6=>&6A+3,%&6+06=>&6I$%=6
?%%&'()*#6

b$2./-6&%=$().%>&D6$/6$II,+I,.$=&6)&2&)6+06K/$/A.$)6,&%+3,A&%6$=6=>&6
%=$,=6+06=>&65>.,D6?%%&'()*B6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6$D+I=&D6$6%=,$=&-*6+06
$.'./-6=+64&&I6A>$/-&%6./6=>&6$//3$)6(3D-&=6./6)./&6".=>6A>$/-&%6
./6=>&603/D./-6A+'./-6=+6G$)&%6=>,+3->6=>&6`G&)%>6()+A46-,$/=R6
0,+'6G&%='./%=&,#6

G>.)&6=>&6?%%&'()*R%6A+,&6(3%./&%%6A$I$(.).=.&%6A+3)D6/+=6(&6
A+'I,+'.%&DB6=>&6H+''.%%.+/6>$%6(&&/6A+''.==&D6=+6./A,&$%./-6
&iA.&/A*6$/D6,&D3A./-6A+%=6">&,&2&,6I+%%.()&#6N=&I%6$),&$D*6=$4&/6
./A)3D&6$62+)3/=$,*6%&2&,$/A&6%A>&'&60+,6%=$[6./6A+/k3/A=.+/6
".=>6'$/$-./-6I+%=%6=>$=6(&A+'&62$A$/=6'+,&6,+(3%=)*6".=>6=>&6
&JI&A=$=.+/6=>$=6%3A>6I+%=%6".))6(&62$A$/=60+,6$6'./.'3'6+06=>,&&6
'+/=>%#6N=,$=&-.&%6"&,&6I3=6./6I)$A&6=+6.'I,+2&6%=$[6I,+D3A=.2.=*6
(*6(,./-./-6D+"/6%.A4/&%%6$(%&/A&6=>,+3->+3=6=>&6?%%&'()*B6
,&D3A./-6=>&6,&).$/A&6+/6+2&,=.'&B6$/D6./A,&$%./-6%=$[6g&J.(.).=*6
./6+,D&,6=+6'$/$-&6".=>6$6%'$))&,6"+,40+,A&B6">.)&6'$./=$././-6
+II+,=3/.=.&%60+,6%=$[6=+6&JI$/D6=>&.,6&JI&,.&/A&6$/D6$(.).=*6=+6
3/D&,=$4&6%=.'3)$=./-6"+,4#6

M$6"#.&$&)%'6"#-"($$&'()*'6&"@#"$()8&'"&6#"%,)-
5>&6H+''.%%.+/6./=,+D3A&D6$6H>$/-&6e,+-,$''&6./6!77QB6
,&A+-/.%./-6=>&6+II+,=3/.=*6=+6.'I,+2&6A+Z+,D./$=.+/B6D&2&)+I'&/=6
$/D6'$/$-&'&/=6+06I,+k&A=%6=+6&/$()&6(3%./&%%6.'I,+2&'&/=%6
$/D6%3II+,=6=>&6H+''.%%.+/R%6%=,$=&-.A6-+$)%#6?%I&A=%6+06=>.%6
I,+-,$''&6>$2&60+A3%&D6+/6&/>$/A./-6I,+k&A=6'$/$-&'&/=6
%4.))%B6(3.)D./-6=>&6$(.).=*6=+6(&==&,6.D&/=.0*6(3%./&%%6(&/&K=%6
$/D6=>&/6'&$%3,&6$A>.&2&'&/=#

Page 76



97

6+09$&7()**+,-'.(F+,-+0*

=55&$7/3'Q&$7&"'5(%,5@(8%,#)'50".&3
]/6!778B6=>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6$-,&&D6=+63/D&,=$4&6$6%3,2&*6
=+6-&/&,$=&6./0+,'$=.+/6+/6=>&6)&2&)6+06P&'(&,6%$=.%0$A=.+/6".=>6
=>&6%&,2.A&%6I,+2.D&D6(*6=>&6?%%&'()*#65>,&&6,+3/D%B6&$A>6=$,-&=./-6
!76P&'(&,%B6"&,&63/D&,=$4&/6=>,+3->6=+6?I,.)6!77Q6$/D6$6=+=$)6
+06O;6./=&,2.&"%6"&,&63/D&,=$4&/#65>&6$II,+$A>6$/D6\3&%=.+/%6
"&,&6$II,+2&D6(*6H>,.%6@,$/4%6?PB6=>&6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/&,6
".=>6%I&A.KA6,&%I+/%.(.).=*60+,6.'I,+2./-6=>&6%&,2.A&%6I,+2.D&D6=+6
P&'(&,%#6

?%6"&))6$%6I,+D3A./-6>.->Z)&2&)6./D.A$=+,%6+06%$=.%0$A=.+/6".=>64&*6
%&,2.A&6$,&$%B6=>&6%3,2&*6"$%6D&%.-/&D6=+6-.2&6P&'(&,%6=>&6A>$/A&6
=+6-.2&6D.,&A=60&&D($A46+/6=>&.,6&JI&,.&/A&6+06=>&6%&,2.A&%6I,+2.D&D6
$/D6=+6'$4&6%I&A.KA6%3--&%=.+/%60+,6%&,2.A&6.'I,+2&'&/=%#6
]/=&,2.&"%6"&,&6A$,,.&D6+3=6(*6=>&6H>.&06<J&A3=.2&6$/D6d.,&A=+,%6
">+6"&,&6&$A>6$AA+'I$/.&D6(*6$6%&/.+,6'$/$-&,#65>&6,&%3)=%6
&/$()&D6%&/.+,6'$/$-&,%6=+6%>$I&6=>&6%&,2.A&%6=>&*6I,+2.D&#6

N3,2&*6\3&%=.+/%6"&,&6./60+3,6'$./6$,&$%Y
6L e)&/$,*^
6L A+''.==&&^
6L +=>&,6%&,2.A&%6W%3A>6$%6,&%&$,A>B6]H5B6I$*'&/=6+06$))+"$/A&%X^6$/DB6
6L %3II+,=6I,+2.D&D6./6=>&6,+)&6+06$6P&'(&,6=+6%A,3=./.%&B6'$4&6
)&-.%)$=.+/6$/D6%3II+,=6A+/%=.=3&/=%#

h2&,$))6%A+,&%6./6=>&60+3,6'$./6$,&$%6"&,&6I+%.=.2&B6,$/-./-6
0,+'6_#_6W+=>&,6%&,2.A&%X6=+68#!6We)&/$,*X6+3=6+06$6I+%%.()&6;7#6

5>&6%3,2&*6,&%3)=%6$/D6=>&6A+''&/=%6I,+2.D&D6&/$()&D6
H+''.%%.+/6%=$[6=+6=$4&6%I&A.KA6$/D6.''&D.$=&6$A=.+/6+/6
%+'&6+06=>&6I+./=%6,$.%&D6(*6P&'(&,%#6]/6$DD.=.+/6=+6I,+2.D./-6
(&/A>'$,46./0+,'$=.+/60+,603=3,&6%$=.%0$A=.+/6%3,2&*%B6"&6"&,&6
$)%+6$()&6=+60+A3%6+/6$6>.->Z)&2&)6$II,+$A>6=+6.'I,+2./-6%$=.%0$A=.+/6
+/6]H56A+//&A=.2.=*B6./6I$,=.A3)$,60,+'6A+/%=.=3&/A*6+iA&%6$/D6
'+(.)&6D&2.A&%6=>,+3->6$6I,+k&A=6">.A>6D&).2&,&D6=>&6$/=.A.I$=&D6
(3%./&%%6(&/&K=%6./6!7;7#

Page 77



9;N&A=.+/67:L6666666666666666666666 N&,2./-6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%

R",)-,)-'%2&'D2,"*'=55&$7/3'%#'('8/#5&
5>&6!77M6?A=6A>$/-&D6=>&6"$*6./6">.A>6=>&6?%%&'()*6D,&"6=+6
$6A)+%&B6./6=>$=6,$=>&,6=>$/6,&'$././-6./6+iA&63/=.)6=>&6&)&A=.+/B6
?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6A&$%&D6=+6(&6P&'(&,%6$(+3=6K2&6"&&4%6
(&0+,&>$/DB6">&/6=>&6?%%&'()*6"$%6D.%%+)2&D#

</%3,./-6$6%3AA&%%03)6D.%%+)3=.+/6,&\3.,&D6=>+,+3->6A+/%3)=$=.+/6
".=>6?%%&'()*6P&'(&,%6$/D6=>&.,6%3II+,=6%=$[#6?6'$k+,6A>$))&/-&6
"$%6=+6&/%3,&6=>$=6A+/%=.=3&/=%6"+3)D6/+=6(&6D.%$D2$/=$-&D6(*6
D.%%+)3=.+/B6">.)&6'$./=$././-6$6)&2&)6I)$*./-6K&)D60+,6I,+%I&A=.2&6
$/D60+,'&,6P&'(&,%#65>.%6"$%6$6=&%=./-6I,+A&%%B6$/D6)&%%+/%6".))6
&'&,-&60+,6=>&6/&"6H+''.%%.+/60,+'6=>&6I,+k&A=6$/D6./6=>&6"&&4%6
(&0+,&6$/D6$0=&,6=>&6&)&A=.+/#6

?&8#$$&)*(%,#)5'%#'5088&55#"'A#$$,55,#)
]=6.%6,&A+''&/D&D6=>$=6=>&6/&J=6?%%&'()*6H+''.%%.+/6%>+3)D6
A+/A&/=,$=&6+/6=>&60+))+"./-6>.->Z)&2&)6.%%3&%6./6,&)$=.+/6=+6=>&6
%=,$=&-.A6-+$)6T</%3,&6=>$=6=>&6?%%&'()*6>$%6=>&6(&%=6%&,2.A&B6
I,+2.D&D6./6=>&6'+%=6&[&A=.2&6"$*UY
6L &/-$-&6A)+%&)*6".=>6P&'(&,%6$/D6=>&.,6%3II+,=6%=$[6+/6=>&6
%&,2.A&%6=>&*6/&&D6$/D6=>&6\3$).=*6+06=>&6%&,2.A&%6"&6I,+2.D&^
6L ,&2.&"6=>&6P&,)./6A+/=,$A=6W"+,46.%63/D&,"$*X6$/D6=>&6(&/&K=%6
,&$).%$=.+/6$/D62$)3&60+,6'+/&*6$%I&A=%6+06=>&6pFh6I,+k&A=^6$/DB
6L '$./=$./6=>&6%=,+/-&%=6-+2&,/$/A&6$,,$/-&'&/=%6./6+,D&,6
/+=6=+6A+'I,+'.%&6+3,6$(.).=*6=+6D&).2&,6+,6+3,6,&I3=$=.+/#

Page 78



9!

Page 79



9ON&A=.+/67L666666666666666666666666666666666666666666 JJJJJJJJJJJJJJ

Page 80



1 

Comisiwn y Cynulliad 

Assembly Commission 

NAFWC 2011 (Paper 6) 
Assembly case management system 
(electoral registers) 
 
Date:  Thursday 16 June 2011 

Time: 13:00 

Venue: Conference Room 4B 

Author name and contact number: Dominic Houlihan, ext 8811 

Assembly case management system (electoral 
registers) 

 
1.0 Purpose and summary of issues 

1.1. The Assembly case management system has the facility to allow 

Members and their caseworkers to access a full, unedited 

constituency (or regional) electoral register in order to search 

and check constituent details.  Data held within the unedited 

registers is strictly confidential and regulated under the 

Representation of the People (England and Wales) Regulations 

2001. 

1.2. Only bodies named within the Regulations may request a copy of 

the electoral register from the appropriate Electoral Returning 

Officer.  This includes Assembly Members, but does not include 

the National Assembly for Wales Commission, which cannot 

therefore request copies on behalf of Members. 

1.3. A request has been received that the Assembly Commission 

should pursue a new approach to uploading electoral registers 

onto the Assembly Case Management system by seeking to 

become an authorised body within the Regulations.  

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1. The Assembly Commission is invited to consider whether to: 

2.2. Pursue a legislative change by approaching the Secretary of State 

for Wales to request a change to the relevant Regulation in order 

Agenda Item 6

Page 81



NAFWC 2011 (Paper 6) 

Assembly case management system (electoral registers) 

2 

to become a named body authorised to make requests for 

electoral registers on behalf of Members. 

2.3. If a change in legislation is not achievable, the existing 

arrangements would be retained (whereby Members’ offices 

individually request electronic copies of the register and forward 

to ICT to upload). 

3.0 Discussion 

3.1. At present, individual offices request a copy of their electronic 

electoral register from their returning officer (regional Members 

request a number of registers that make up their region) and 

import the data into a template to be uploaded onto the 

Assembly case management system.  The Commission is 

permitted to upload copies of the register without viewing the 

data, and the ICT Operations service facilitates this. 

3.2. The Case Management Project team has previously explored with 

the Electoral Commission Wales the possibility of informally 

requesting copies of the electoral register on behalf of Members 

given that section 27 of the Government of Wales Act 2006, 

requires the Commission to provide “… the property, staff and 

services required for the Assembly’s purposes”.  It was proposed 

that all Members would sign a declaration authorising the 

Commission to act on their behalf to request the registers. 

3.3. However, Electoral Commission advice was clear, stating that the 

Assembly Commission is not a body named within the 

Representation of the People (England and Wales) Regulations 

2001, and is not therefore entitled to make requests of Electoral 

Returning Officers to obtain the registers on behalf of Members. 

3.4. A change in legislation allowing the Assembly Commission to 

become a named body would be required to remove the need for 

Members’ offices to request copies and import the data into a 

template document for upload. 

3.5. The UK government would have to agree to any request to 

amend the Regulations (which, if agreed, may further require 

public consultation) and this could therefore take some time to 

achieve. 

Page 82



NAFWC 2011 (Paper 6) 

Assembly case management system (electoral registers) 

3 

3.6. If the current arrangements are maintained, responsibility would 

remain within the office of the Member to request a copy of the 

register on an annual basis (by emailing the Electoral Returning 

Officer), transferring the data into the template and forwarding 

to ICT Operations to upload. 

3.7. Were the Assembly Commission to become a named body, the 

responsibility for obtaining copies of registers would transfer to 

Assembly Commission ICT staff, who would request the registers 

on an annual basis, and import and upload the data onto the 

case management system.  As a consequence, Service Level 

Agreements between ICT and Members would need to be 

reviewed at a later date to agree timeframes for delivery of 

electoral registers. 

3.8. Although registers are revised and reissued on a monthly basis 

between December-September of each year, it is proposed that 

Assembly Commission staff would only upload one, annual 

register onto the Assembly case management system. This is 

due to resource implications of providing monthly updates for 

each constituency and region.  Members that would prefer 

monthly updates would still be able to request copies from the 

Returning Officers themselves, and forward to ICT for uploading. 

Page 83


	Agenda
	1c Minutes of the previous meeting
	2 Assembly Commission Governance and Procedure
	AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex A - Assembly Commission governance principles and supporting provisions
	AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex B - Assembly Commission rules for conduct of business
	AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex C - Assembly Commission instrument of delegation
	AC(4)2011(1) Paper 2 Annex D - Exercise of Clerk's functions

	3 Assembly Commission Portfolios
	AC(4)2011(1) Paper 3 Annex A - Commissioner portfolios

	4 Communicating Effectively with Assembly Members
	5 Assembly Commission Legacy Report
	6 Assembly Case Management System (Electoral Registers)

